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Lam Hing Man, Patrick

2019 7
HPH HPH
1992 HIT 20 HPH
HPH HPH
HIT
Lee Tung Wan, Diana

IR

2011 2016
IR
HPH HPH HPH

HPH
2006 HPH
Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand

Fung Kam Hung, Leonard

HIT
HIT HPH 1996
HIT 2019
Hutchison Ajman
International Terminals Panama Ports Company, S.A.
Macquarie University
Shum Kai Shing, Lawrence
COSCO-HIT ACT
COSCO-HIT ACT
HPH 1996 HPH 2016
HPH 15
HPH
North and East China 2020

Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
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Tang Hin Kee, Edward

39 HPH 2013 HPH
1979 HIT HPH
HPH
Su Yu Nin, Eric
HPH HPH
30
Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers Institution of Civil Engineers

Institution of Structural Engineers
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HPH HPH

HPH HPH 100
HPH 30 12 31
90

CDP

CDP
HPH

HPH

HPH
HPH
HPH
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HPH

HPH
HPH
HPH
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HPH
HPH 2018 12 31
12,289
HPH
HPH
10 2008
2016
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HPH
HPH HPH HPH
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HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH

HPH HPH 100
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HPH HPH

HPH

HPH
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HPH

HPH
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HPH nGen
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HPH HPH
HPH HPH
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HPH
HPH nGen
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HPH 1T
IT
IT
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CKHH 15
15 HPH
CKHH
HPH 15
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COSCO-HIT ACT MTL
2019 619
HPH
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Cai Shui [2016] No.36 YICTP
HNTE 2016 2018 2017
15
YICTP YICTP YWP
50
HPH HPH
2020 16 HPH
2,619,246,222
30.07
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH
HPH HPH
HPH
HPH HPH
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2012
HPH
http://www.info.gov.hk/hkma/eng/statistics/index__efdhk.htm
12 31 12 31
HPH HPH 50.0
0.5
HPH
HPH 1.0
HPH
HPH 0.5
HPH
100.0
HPH
HPH
500
2.5 HPH
HPH
500 500
1.5 HPH
HPH

87/485



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HPH

IT IT
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0.0325

2020 30

20 15 2013
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20
15 2013 2037 12 31
2.1
2014 37 14
37 14
2014 2023 12 31 10
100 2016 120
37 14
2024 2028 12 31 102
20 2023 18
2016 37 14
37 14
2016 2023 12 31
80
20 2023 18
20
15 2013 2037 12 31
2.1
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HPH
25,088.9 100.1
(14.1) 0.1
1.7 0.0
25,076.5 100.0
14.1) 0.0
(7.796.6) 17.1
53,374.0 117.1
45,563.3 100.0
HPH HPH HPHT
32 250 3,800 40
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A HIT
111
12
100
g
B B COSCO-HIT
30
C0SCO 50/50
C ACT
29
40 60 HPH
C0SCO
HIT COSCO-HIT ACT
2019 COSCO-HIT
MTL 23
16
62
170
2019 10.0  TEU
1,800 2,900
2019
2019 12 31
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60 800
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477
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2019
21,237TEU €0Sco
C0SCO Shipping Star
2019
50
2019 31 HIT
HPH HPH HIT 5,000
Msc MSC Giilsiin mMsc
62 23,756TEU
%
2019
2018
23.3 TEU 2018
2018 TEU
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11,120.9 2018 11,482.6
3,881.6 4,143.5
288.0 3,079.7
2019 96.4 129.1 25
2017 2018 2018
2018 2019
537.1 553.9
3,430.9 2018 120.9
1,821.7 2018 12,289.0
221.3 11
HIBOR LIBOR 2019 1,075.2
2019 10 480.0
2018 HNTE
528.2 2018 209.5 28
2017 10
2018 12 31 31,689.5 2019 12 31
30,678.9 2019 11 2024 2.875 500
2,310.0 7,219.0
2019 473.8 7,040.2
2019 23,638.7
2019 958.2 11.0
2019 12 31 0.172

8.2
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AR
AR
ACT
47.5
20,000TEU
HPH 23,756TEU  MSC
21,237TEU
2019 16
HPH
HIT 42
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2020
2019
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Hong Kong Marine Department

COSCO-HIT ACT

2009 HIT COSCO-HIT ACT

2013 ACT ACT

2016 12 HICT HICT

2019
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2020 16
2020 16 8,711,101,022
HPH
99 12 0.03 263 0.00
100 1,000 3,099 9.06 2,967,380 0.04
1,001 10,000 17,897 52.30 90,649,231 1.04
10,001 1,000,000 13,091 38.25 835,524,082 9.59
1,000,001 123 0.36 7,781,960,066 89.33
34,222 100.00 8,711,101,022 100.00
2020 16
cK 2,619,246,222 | 30.07
2,406,227,022 | 27.62
CK
2,406,227,022 | 27.62
905,364,000 | 10.39
PSA
315,764,400 3.62 905,364,000 | 10.39
1,221,272,773 | 14.02
CK CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (CKHH ) CKHH
CK CK Hutchison Global Investments Limited
CKHGI HPGH
HPH CKHH CKHH
CKH CKH 2.45
HPGH CKHGI HPGH HPH
PSA
PSA PSA
PSA
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20
2020 16
2,406,227,022 | 27.62
1,514,135,333 | 17.38
DBS 963,405,272 | 11.06
905,364,000 | 10.39
386,042,802 4.43
PSA 330,814,600 3.80
DBSN 187,191,318 2.15
BNP 167,958,989 1.93
HSBC 165,679,077 1.90
10 | OCBC 107,832,711 1.24
H 95,750,900 1.10
12 | DB 61,923,589 0.71
13 39,713,700 0.46
14 | uoB 38,196,739 0.44
15 30,475,010 0.35
16 25,867,577 0.30
17 | BPSS 20,017,658 0.23
18| DS 19,441,503 0.22
19 19,136,500 0.22
20 | CGS-CIMB 14,690,884 0.17
7,499,865,184 | 86.10
2020 16 55.88
HPH 723
2019 1,890,176 0.265 0.355 0.149 0.205
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)
2019 12 31
( ) )|( )
HPHT 10,000,000 10 2,509 25,088.9 100
100
100
)
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40,293.5 558,871 39,326.6 545,460 4.63 64 4.51 63
2017 12
26,767.7 371,268 26,029.0 361,022 3.07 43 2.99 41
2018 12
25,850.9 358,552 25,415.3 352,510 2.97 41 2.92 41
2019 12
HPH
52,325.5 725,755 | 51,358.6 712,344 6.01 83 5.90 82
2017 12
26,374.5 365,814 | 25,635.8 355,569 3.03 42 2.94 41
2018 12
25,076.5 347,811 | 24,640.9 341,769 2.88 40 2.83 39
2019 12
2011 HPH
2019 0.230 24.73 0.310 23.53
2019 0.220 23.66 0.300 22.77
2019 0.157 16.88 0.220 16.70
2019 0.156 16.77 0.215 16.32
2019 10 0.155 16.67 0.210 15.94
2019 11 0.158 16.99 0.215 16.32
2019 12 0.172 18.50 0.235 17.83
2020 0.160 17.20 0.220 16.70
2020 0.147 15.81 0.200 15.18
2020 0.103 11.08 0.150 11.38
2020 0.130 13.98 0.182 13.81
2020 0.115 12.37 0.151 11.46
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( ) ( )
1,794.5 20.60
2017 2017 12 31
1,480.9 17.00
2018 2018 12 31
958.2 11.00
2019 2019 12 31
()
3.3
2017 2017 12 31
(30.1)
2018 2018 12 31
1.3
2019 2019 12 31

() A B)+ Bx 100

A (

1.2
2017 2017 12 31 ) ) )
2018 2018 12 31 ) ) )
2019 2019 12 31 ) ) )
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6.1.1 36 806 2020
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HPH

38 59 131

23
103
193
independent auditor®s report

2020 29
13.87
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2019 12 31
2019 12 31
2019 2018
4 11,120,922 154,247 11,482,562 159,263
(3,881,596) (53,838) (4,143,451) (57,470)
(287,994) (3,994)  (286,534) (3,974)
(3,079,672) (42,715)  (3,076,015) (42,664)
96,354 1,336 129,122 1,791
(537,087) (7,449)  (553,942) (7.683)
(7,689,995)  (106,660) (7,930,820)  (110,000)
5 3,430,927 47,587 3,551,742 49,263
6 (1,075,228) (14,913)  (1,021,801) (14,172)
(92,296) (1,280)  (106,904) (1,483)
38,338 532 54,279 753
14(b) - - (11,359,000)  (157,549)
16 - - (930,000) (12,899)
2,301,741 31,925  (9,811,684)  (136,088)
7 (479,988) (6,657)  (434,368) (6,025)
1,821,753 25,268 (10,246,052)  (142,113)
(1,293,542) (17,941)  (1,305,268) (18,104)
HPH
9 528,211 7,326 (11,551,320)  (160,217)
HPH o 6.06 0.84 (132.60) (18.39)

117/485



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31
2019 2018
1,821,753 25,268 (10,246,052)  (142,113)
31,118 432 40,815 566
(91,587) (1,270) - -
(35,634) (494) (85,522) (1,186)
(8,259) (115) (10,524) (146)
(11,345) @157) (23,148) (321)
(910) (13) (595) ()
- - (97,044) (1,346)
(115,447) (1,601)  (193,381) (2,682)
(232,064) (3,219)  (369,399) (5.124)
1,589,689 22,049 (10,615,451)  (147,236)
(1,240,768) (17,209)  (1,201,250) (16,661)
HPH 348,921 4,840 (11,816,701)  (163,898)
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
10 23,789,534 329,961 24,629,553 341,612
11 648,058 8,989 996,397 13,820
12 37,046,989 513,842 38,373,329 532,238
13 10,813 150 11,619 161
14(a) 5,501,771 76,310 5,835,978 80,945
14(b) 11,270,044 156,316 11,270,044 156,316
15 952,533 13,212 945,342 13,112
16 2,656,680 36,848 2,683,777 37,224
17 560,682 7,777 560,929 7,780
18 24,997 347 18,528 257
82,462,101 1,143,749 85,325,496 1,183,465
19 7,040,166 97,647 6,566,354 91,075
20 3,056,031 42,387 3,060,915 42,455
102,354 1,420 103,137 1,431
10,198,551 141,454 9,730,406 134,961
21 5,783,133 80,212 5,928,221 82,224
22 4,097,271 56,829 2,517,506 34,918
473,874 6,573 358,228 4,969
10,354,278 143,614 8,803,955 122,111
(155,727) (2,160) 926,451 12,850
82,306,374 1,141,580 86,251,947 1,196,315
22 26,459,077 366,987 28,974,121 401,871
23 41,747 579 56,601 785
18 9,918,159 137,565 10,290,856 142,734
24 324,068 4,495 262,210 3,637
36,743,051 509,626 39,583,788 549,027
45,563,323 631,963 46,668,159 647,287
25 68,553,839 950,842 68,553,839 950,842
(42,702,921)  (592,290) (41,786,104)  (579,573)
HPH
25,850,918 358,552 26,767,735 371,268
19,712,405 273,411 19,900,424 276,019
45,563,323 631,963 46,668,159 647,287
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2019 2018
26 25,088,891 347,983 26,390,258 366,033
19 2,530 35 4,525 63
20 1,961 27 337 5
4,491 62 4,862 67

21 16,836 234 20,555 285
(12,345) @) (15,693) (218)

25,076,546 347,812 26,374,565 365,815

25 68,553,839 950,842 68,553,839 950,842
(43,477,293)  (603,030) (42,179,274)  (585,027)
25,076,546 347,812 26,374,565 365,815
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2019 2018
27(a) 6,369,406 88,344 6,055,269 83,987
(999,498) (13,863)  (984,652) (13,657)

(735,243) (10,198)  (825,547) (11,450)

4,634,665 64,283 4,245,070 58,879
(133,200) (1,847) (40,050) (555)

(581,362) (8,063)  (743,559) (10,313)

15,733 218 22,074 306

25,749 357 48,848 678

102,472 1,421 78,452 1,088

147,819 2,050 99,979 1,387

1,600 22 181,700 2,520

(421,189) (5,842)  (352,556) (4,890)

6,210,000 86,133 5,040,750 69,915
(7,219,040)  (100,128) (6,077,010) (84,288)
(40,834) (566) (8,775) (122)

(4,379) (61) - -

(1,261,367) (17,495)  (1,709,118) (23,705)
(1,424,044) (19,751)  (1,340,089) (18,587)
(3,739,664) (51,869)  (4,094,242) (56,787)

473,812 6,572 (201,728) (2,798)

6,524,354 90,493 6,726,082 93,291

19 6,998,166 97,065 6,524,354 90,493
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2019 12 31

2019 68,553,839 (133,545) (151,515) (67,158) (30,102) 181,989 (41,585,773) 26,767,735 19,900,424 46,668,159
= - - - - - 528,211 528,211 1,293,542 1,821,753
= - - - - 31,118 - 31,118 - 31,118
- - (91,587) - - - - (91,587) - (91,587)
- - - (35,634) - - - (35,634) - (35,634)
= - - - (8,259) - - (8,259) - (8,259)|
- (7,835) - - - - - (7,835) (3,510)  (11,345)
- (910) - - - - - (910) - (910)|
- (66,183) - - - - - (66,183)  (49,264)  (115,447)
- (74,928)  (91,587)  (35,634) (8,259) 31,118 - (179,290)  (52,774)  (232,064)
- (74,928)  (91,587)  (35,634) (8,259) 31,118 528,211 348,921 1,240,768 1,589,689
- (4,217) - - - - (154) (4,371) 4,371 -
- - - - - - (1,261,367) (1,261,367) - (1,261,367)
- - - - - - - - (1,433,158) (1,433,158)

2019 12 31 68,553,839  (212,690)  (243,102)  (102,792)  (38,361) 213,107 (42,319,083) 25,850,918 19,712,405 45,563,323
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2017 12 31 68,553,839 (19,474)  (55,471) (1,214) - 141,174 (28,325,300) 40,293,554 20,028,352 60,321,906
HKFRS - - - 19,578 (19,578) - - - - -
2018 68,553,839 (19,474)  (55,471) 18,364 (19,578) 141,174 (28,325,300) 40,293,554 20,028,352 60,321,906

- - - - - - (11,551,320) (11,551,320) 1,305,268 (10,246,052)

- - - - - 40,815 - 40,815 - 40,815
- - (97,044) - - - - (97,044) - (97,044)
- - - (85,522) - - - (85,522) - (85,522)
- - - - (10,524) - - (10,524) - (10,524)
- (15,198) - - - - - (15,198) (7,950)  (23,148)
- (1,595) 1,000 - - - - (595) - (595)
- (97,313) - - - - - (97,313)  (96,068)  (193,381)
- (114,106)  (96,044)  (85,522)  (10,524) 40,815 - (265,381) (104,018)  (369,399)

- (114,106)  (96,044)  (85,522)  (10,524) 40,815 (11,551,320) (11,816,701) 1,201,250 (10,615,451)

- 35 - - - - (35) - - -
- - - - - - (1,709,118) (1,709,118) - (1,709,118)
_ - - - - - - - (1,329,178) (1,329,178)
2018 12 31 68,553,839  (133,545) (151,515)  (67,158)  (30,102) 181,989 (41,585,773) 26,767,735 19,900,424 46,668,159
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2019 950,842 (1,852) (2,102) (931) (418) 2,524 (576,795) 371,268 276,019 647,287
- - - - - - 7,326 7,326 17,941 25,268
- - - - - 432 - 432 - 432
- - (1,270) - - - - (1,270) - (1,270)
- - - (494) - - - (494) - (499)
- - - - (115) - - (115) - (115)
- (109) - - - - - (109) (49) (157)
- (13) - - - - - (13) - (13))
N (918) - - - B - (918) (683) (1,601)
- (1,039) (1,270) (494) (115) 432 - (2,487) (732) (3,219)
- (1,039) (1,270) (494) (115) 432 7,326 4,840 17,209 22,049
- (58) - - - - ) (61) 61 -
- - - - - - (17,495) (17,495) - (17,495)
- - - - - - - - (19,878) (19,878)
2019 12 31 950,842 (2,950) (3,372) (1,426) (532) 2,956  (586,966) 358,552 273,411 631,963
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2017 12 31 950,842 (270) (769) 7 - 1,958 (392,872) 558,872 277,793 836,665
HKFRS - - - 272 272) - - - - -
2018 950,842 (270) (769) 255 272) 1,958 (392,872) 558,872 277,793 836,665
- - - - - - (160,217)  (160,217) 18,104  (142,113)
- - - - - 566 - 566 - 566
- - (1,346) - - - - (1,346) - (1,346)
- - - (1,186) - - - (1,186) - (1,186)|
- - - - (146) - - (146) - (146)|
- (211) - - - - - (211) (110) (321)
- (22) 14 - - - - ®) - (©)
- (1,350) - - - - - (1,350) (1,332) (2,682)
- (1,583) (1,332) (1,186) (146) 566 - (3,681) (1,443) (5,124)
- (1,583) (1,332) (1,186) (146) 566  (160,217)  (163,898) 16,661  (147,236)
- 0 - - - - ) - - -
- - - - - - (23,705)  (28,705) - (23,705)
_ - - - - - - - (18,436) (18,436)
2018 12 31 950,842 (1,852) (2,102) (931) (418) 2,524 (576,795) 371,268 276,019 647,287
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68,553,839 (42,179,274) 26,374,565
- (36,652) (36,652)

- (1,261,367) (1,261,367)
68,553,839 (43,477,293) 25,076,546
68,553,839 (16,228,331) 52,325,508
- (24,241,825) (24,241,825)

- (1,709,118) (1,709,118)
68,553,839 (42,179,274) 26,374,565
950,842 (585,027) 365,815

- (508) (508)

- (17,495) (17,495)

950,842 (603,030) 347,812
950,842 (225,087) 725,755

- (336,234) (336,234)

- (23,705) (23,705)

950,842 (585,027) 365,815
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HPH
2011 25
HPH
31A 289
HPH
048623 50
32-01 HPH 2011 18
SGX-ST
HPH
HPH HPH
HKICPA
HKFRS
HKFRS IFRS
HKFRS IFRS
2019 12 31
155.7 2020

¢ 39 )

HKFRS
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2019
HKICPA
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 16 HKAS 17
(@)

)
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12
)
(b)
HKFRS 16
2019
2018
HKAS 17
HKFRS 16
HKAS 17
HKFRS 16 2019

HKAS 17 ( ) HKFRS 16
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2019 12 31
HKFRS 16 HKFRS 16

3,073,816 5,856 3,079,672

543,514 (6,427) 537,087

1,074,259 969 1,075,228

480,012 (24) 479,988

1,822,127 (374) 1,821,753

HPH 528,375 (164) 528,211
2019 12 31

HKFRS 16 HKFRS 16

23,756,358 33,176 23,789,534

5,775,788 7,345 5,783,133
473,898 4) 473,874
297,839 26,229 324,068

42,703,085 (164) 42,702,921

19,712,615 (210) 19,712,405
2019 12 31

HKFRS 16 HKFRS 16

6,364,058 5,348 6,369,406
(998,529) (969) (999,498)
- (4,379) (4,379)
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HKFRS @

HKAS HKAS @

HKAS 39  HKFRS HKFRS @

HKERS 10 HKAS 28 @

D 020

)

HKFRS

@)

2019 12 31

©) (d)
2019 12 31

()

bargain purchase
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4
@
2019 2018
10,749,188 11,134,666
179,805 187,958
35,512 36,962
12,232 13,374
1,287 1,173
10,978,024 11,374,133
142,898 108,429
11,120,922 11,482,562
®)
HPH
HPH
HPH
2019 2018 2019 2018
3,521,848 3,883,780 23,065,225 24,050,421
7,599,074 7,598,782 59,396,876 61,275,075
11,120,922 11,482,562 82,462,101 85,325,496
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2019 2018
17 22,610 46,490
- 9,499
15,530 14,103
1,917 991
1,292,151 1,292,271
512 535
334,207 334,206
1,446,946 1,449,003
5,856 -
3,205 17,069
66,539 -
- 36,442
1,365,152 1,393,400
119,556 127,346
6,827 -

2019 2018
741,451 705,948
269,728 261,925
3,140 3,186
969 -
59,940 50,742
(56,672) 906
56,672 (906)
1,075,228 1,021,801

145/485
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2019 2018
858,836 774,087
(378,848) (339,719)
479,988 434,368
2019 2018
2,355,699 2,529,941
669,415 695,888
(399, 431) (485,808)
(5,296) (3.751)
101,692 93,248
119,295 121,253
- (80)
(3,148) (1,645)
(7,009) 13,579
4,108 1,475
362 209
479,988 434,368

114
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2019 2018
2017 2017 12 31
11.10 - 966,932
2018 2018 30
8.52 - 742,186
2018 2018 12 31
8.48 738,701 -
2019 2019 30
6.00 522,666 -
1,261,367 1,709,118
2020 10 2019 2019 12 31
5.00 2018 8.48
435.5 2018 738.7 2020 27
2020 12 31
2019 12 31 HPH
528,211,000 2018 11,551,320,000
2019 12 31 8,711,101,022 2018
8,711,101,022

2019 2018 12 31
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16,530,486 7,569,965 36,025 493,077 24,629,553
59,881 50,253 511 3,169 113,814
112,285 374,690 - 106,986 593,961
(614,394) (736,346) (7.955) (94,107)  (1,452,802)
(2,171) (1,010) (15,575) (182) (18,938)
(58,933) (13,962) - (3,159) (76,054)
16,027,154 7,243,590 13,006 505,784 23,789,534
20,993,619 13,145,813 22,317 1,019,069 35,180,818
(4,966,465)  (5,902,223) (9,311) (513,285) (11,391,284)
16,027,154 7,243,590 13,006 505,784 23,789,534
16,382,757 7,674,807 45,243 523,587 24,626,394
13,117 68,730 2,857 642 85,346
876,840 616,422 - 55,458 1,548,720
(607,875) (749,709) (9,102) (82,317)  (1,449,003)
(9,064) (26,776) (2,973) (320) (39,133)
(125, 289) (13,509) - (3,973) (142,771)
16,530,486 7,569,965 36,025 493,077 24,629,553
20,900,362 12,744,709 66,130 930,613 34,650,814
(4,378,876)  (5,174,744) (30,105) (437,536) (10,021,261)
16,530,486 7,569,965 36,025 493,077 24,629,553
20,182,423 12,067,400 78,104 897,327 33,225,254
(3,799,666)  (4,392,593) (32,861) (373,740)  (8,598,860)
16,382,757 7,674,807 45,243 523,587 24,626,394
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2019 12 31
862,000
2019 12 31

10

36,155,000
3,720,000 1,851,000
32,450,000 4,182,000 576,000
2019 2018
996,397 1,970,166
245,795 563,992
(593,961) (1,548,720)
(173) 10,959
648,058 996,397
2019 2018
38,373,329 39,724,150
(1,292,151) (1,292,271)
(34,189) (58,550)
37,046,989 38,373,329
48,209,865 48,250,794
(11,162,876) (9,877,465)
37,046,989 38,373,329
7,760,978,000 2019 12 31
283,042,000
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2019

11,619
(512)
(294)

2018

12,667
(535)
(513)

10,813

11,619

14,735
(3,922)

15,343
(3,724)

10,813

11,619

2019

5,835,978
(334,207)

2018

6,170,184
(334,206)

5,501,771

5,835,978

8,440,000
(2,938,229)

8,440,000
(2,604,022)

5,501,771

5,835,978
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®
CGU
2019 2018
11,270,044 11,270,044
11,270,044 11,270,044
2019 2018
11,270,044 22,629,044
304 - (11,359,000)
11,270,044 11,270,044
2018 CGU CGU
97 17
2019
2018
10 2018 10
CGU
0.5 0.5 0.5
CGU 18 13 CGU
20 22
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15

2019 2018
486,333 603,342
466,200 342,000
952,533 945,342
420,000,000 466,200,000
4.0
2019 2018 12 31
A 23.84
41.31
(@)
)
2019 12 31
2019 2018
(92,296) (106,904)
(11,345) (23,148)
(103,641) (130,052)
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16

2019 2018
3,460,730 3,486,227
a 125,950 127,550
b (930,000) (930, 000)
2,656,680 2,683,777
) 120,000,000 2018 120,000,000
HIBOR 2.1 2018  HIBOR
2.1 5,950,000 2018 7,550,000
(b) 2018 930
2019 2018 12 31
COSCO-HIT « ) 50.00
1
40.00
1
1 50.00
50.00
2
49.00
1
28.21
1
2

2019 12 31

153/485
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2019

38,338
(910)

2018

54,279
(595)

37,428

53,684

2019

38,813
338,600
67,515
85,004

30,750

2018

39,150
428,600
2,159
91,020

560,682

560,929

2019

(24,997)
9,918,159

2018

(18,528)
10,290,856

9,893,162

10,272,328

154/485
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2019 12 31

2018
2018

2018 12 31

@

Q)

©
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(23,702) 608,718 9,372,998 321,166 (6,852) 10,272,328
(5,940)  (28,808)  (360,306) 16,222 (16)  (378,848)
26 11 - (351) 4) (318)
(29,616) 579,921 9,012,692 337,037 (6,872) 9,893,162
(29,065) 615,593 9,734,188 298,202 (6,522) 10,612,396
5,363 (6,890)  (361,129) 23,314 @G377)  (339,719)
- 15 (61) (350) 47 (349)
(23,702) 608,718 9,372,998 321,166 (6,852) 10,272,328
2019 12 31 125,621,000
95,127,000
30,494,000
2019 2018
- 7,892
30,494 6,324
30,494 14,216
12
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2019 2018
451,449 817,733
6,546,717 5,706,621
6,998,166 6,524,354
() 42,000 42,000
7,040,166 6,566,354
2019 2018
2,530 4,525
2019 12 31 2016 42,000,000
2018 12 31 42,000,000
2019 2018
39 43
12 21
49 36
100 100
2019 2018
26 33
15 20
59 a7
100 100
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2019 2018
a 2,585,212 2,518,572
(51,261) (51,255)
2,533,951 2,467,317
332,208 355,792
- 30,001
20 20
21,705 12,139
b 168,147 195,556
3,056,031 3,060,915
2019 2018
250 335
a 1,711 2
1,961 337
2019 2018
47 51
33 31
20 18
100 100
2019 2018
100 100

(a) 2018 1 2,617,272,000

(b

157/485
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51,261,000 2018 51,255,000
2019 2018
51,255 56,838
5 220
- (5,803)
1 -
51,261 51,255
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21

2019 2018
5,441,035 5,511,212
155,392 157,742
11,705 -
24 3,647 -
91,059 100,846
3,959 5,482
76,336 152,939
5,783,133 5,928,221
2019 2018
4,021 4,535
12,810 12,405
b 5 3,615
16,836 20,555
2019 2018
66 75
34 25
100 100
2019 2018
- 18
76 60
24 22
100 100
2019 12 31
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@) 30,380,000 2018
30,380,000 2018
70,000,000 77,700,000 2018
70,000,000 79,800,000 2.00 2018 2.00
()
22
192,000 18,731,350 18,923,350
10,545 44,955 55,500
3,900,000 7,800,000 11,700,000
4,102,545 26,576,305 30,678,850
(1,627) (117,228) (118,855)
(3,647) - (3,647)
2019 12 31 4,097,271 26,459,077 30,556,348
2,510,000 21,313,350 23,823,350
9,120 57,000 66,120
- 7,800,000 7,800,000
2,519,120 29,170,350 31,689,470
(1,614) (135,910) (137,524)
- (60,319) (60,319)
2018 12 31 2,517,506 28,974,121 31,491,627
2020 2024
2018 2019 2024
2015 2020 2.875 500
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2017 2022 2.75 500
2019 11 2024 2.875 500
2019 12 31 2.9 2018
3.2
2019 2018
18 21
82 79
100 100
2019 12 31 193,894,000 2018 200,770,000
23
2019 2018
41,747 56,601
@
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

HKAS 19 2011
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2019 2018

1.50 2.30 - 2.40
4.00 4.00
5.00 - 6.00 5.00 - 6.00

2019 2018

1,447,445 1,370,653

(1,405,698) (1,314,052)

41,747 56,601

1,370,653 (1,314,052) 56,601
49,138 1,023 50,161
30,996 (30,197) 799
80,134 (29,174) 50,960
(11,431) - (11,431)
77,447 - 77,447
114 114
- (97,248) (97,248)
66,130 (97,248) (31,118)
- (34,696) (34,696)

7,777 7,777 i
(83,799) 83,799 -
6,550 (6,550) -
1,447,445 (1,405,698) 41,747

162/485
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1,413,479 (1,332,927) 80,552
52,326 825 53,151
22,777 (21,803) 974
75,103 (20,978) 54,125

4,992 - 4,992
(65,581) - (65,581)
48 - 48
- 19,726 19,726
(60,541) 19,726 (40,815)
- (37,261) (37,261)
8,300 (8,300) -
(64,005) 64,005 B}
(1,683) 1,683 -
1,370,653 (1,314,052) 56,601
2019 2018

1,019,387 939,337

340,498 335,713

45,813 39,002

1,405,698 1,314,052
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2019 2018
2 4
1 1
2 2
1 3
56 46
2 4
1 1
1 1
5 8
2 1
73 71
6
7
2
9 11
24 26
3 3
100 100
2019 2018
Aaa/AAA 23 24
Aal/AA+ 18 17
Aa2/AA 4 4
Aa3/AA-
Al/A+ 11 11
A2/A 11 11
A3/A- 6 6
Baal/BBB+ 7 7
Baa2/BBB 3 3
4 4
6 6
100 100

164/485
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2018 2019 12 31
1994
ORSO
2019 30 134
2019 12 31
ORSO 2019 12 31
1,028,000 2018 963,000 2019 12 31
2019 12 31
2018
0.25 1.7 1.7
0.25 0.3 0.3
35,609,000 (2018 38,055,000 )
2019 12 31 6.8 2018 7.0
®)
68,596,000 2018

73,221,000
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24
2019 2018
3,647 60,319
120,033 80,725
51,871 16,535
(3.647) -
171,904 157,579
29,017 -
123,147 104,631
324,068 262,210
25
2018 2018 12 31 2019 12 31 8,711,101,022 68,553,839
26
2019 2018
10,000 10,000
49,290,942 50,592,309
(24,212,051) (24,212,051)
25,088,891 26,390,258
HPH HPHT 2011
HPH HPHT 67,280,000,000
HPH HPHT
HPHT HPH

166/485
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31

242 2018

2019

3,430,927

3,079,672

3,205
(25,749)
(142,898)

2018

3,551,742
3,076,015
17,069
(49,799)
(108, 429)

6,345,157

761
(38,544)
(60, 284)
98,938
23,378

6,486,598

6,477
149,158
27,192

(631,020)
16,864

6,369,406

6,055,269
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(b)
2019 - 2,517,506 21,268,658 7,705,463 157,579 - 31,649,206
(1,424,044) (2,519,040) (2,398,775) 3,867,941 - (4,379) (2,478,297)
9,114) (80) (1,500) - - - (10,694)
- - - 56,672 - - 56,672
- 202,545  (202,545) - - - -
1,433,158 - - - - - 1,433,158
_ _ . - - 44,132 44,132
- 1,614 42,831 15,058 (12,778) 969 47,694
2019 12 31 - 202,545 18,708,669 11,645,134 144,801 40,722 30,741,871
2019 74,791,000

168/485
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- 347,140 20,552,169 11,590,772 60,627 32,550,708

(1,340,089) (347,010) 3,201,975  (3,900,000) - (2,385,124)
10,911 (130) (2,900) - - 7,881

- - - (906) - (906)

- 2,517,506 (2,517,506) - - -

1,329,178 - - - - 1,329,178
- - 34,920 15,597 96,952 147,469
- 2,517,506 21,268,658 7,705,463 157,579 31,649,206

2019 2018
106,275 32,230
881,479 724,415
987,754 756,645

2019 2018

- 17,860
79,746 84,492
79,746 102,352

169/485
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2018

10

2019 2018
602 7,591
- 178
602 7,769

2019 2018
36,532 37,631
25,354 32,023
18,597 19,745
16,528 11,985
8,525 9,040
105,536 110,424

170/485
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15 16 20 21
()
2019 2018
36,772 41,553
a
b 48,500 50,189
38,215 35,778
C
d 19,068 20,040
23,149 28,531
e
35,419 6,306
e
f
24,618 23,988
g 147,706 141,787
IT
" 46,973 40,154
i 1,339 1,527
J 4,630 9,517
@
(©)
©
[C)) 120,000,000 2018 :120,000,000 HIBOR
2.1 2018 : HIBOR 2.1 420,000,000
466,200,000 2018 :300,000,000 342,000,000 4.0

2018 : 4.0
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©
®
2,500,000 19,500,000

2012 2019 12 31
2019 12

@

D) IT 1T

@

)

2019 12 31

2019 2018

- 15,399
7,082 28,049

)

COSCO-HIT

2019

23
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)
2019 2018
27,890 30,158

30
€))
®)

2019 12 31 45,563,323,000 2018 46,668,159,000

23,638,684,000
2018 25,123,116,000

©
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ECL
2019 2018 12 31 ECL
@
9,661,000 2018 11,344,000

2019 2018
(175,551) (146,496)
11,700,000 11,700,000

2020 2020

2023 2023
11 11
67,424 (74,620)
(67,424) 74,620

174/485
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2019 2018
(89,283) (80,725)
7,800,000 7,800,000
2022 2022

2023 2023
11 11
46,136 (26,416)
(46,136) 26,416

2019 2018
(26,379) 26,059
(1,052,552) (1,108,387)
(28) (103)
8 3
(1,078,951) (1,082,428)
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Q)
2019
5,783,133 5,783,133 5,783,133 - -
30,556,348 30,678,850 4,102,545 26,576,305 -
200,921 128,657 57,875 70,782 -
36,540,402 36,590,640 9,943,553 26,647,087 -
2018
5,928,221 5,928,221 5,928,221 - -
31,491,627 31,689,470 2,519,120 29,163,510 6,840
262,210 (8,019) 38,807 (46,826) -
37,682,058 37,609,672 8,486,148 29,116,684 6,840
1,127,446,000 2018
943,504,000 4,778,601,000 2018
1,731,732,000 2018 152,000
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2019
16,836 16,836 16,836 -
2018
20,555 20,555 20,555 -
@
HKFRS 2019 12 31 2018
12 31
2019 2018
17 FVoCI 38,813 39,150
17 FVoCI 338,600 428,600
17 30,750 -
19 7,040,166 6,566,354
20 3,056,031 3,060,915
10,504,360 10,095,019
2019 2018
22 30,556,348 31,491,627
21 5,767,781 5,928,221
21,24 40,722 -
24 120,033 80,725
24 55,518 76,854
36,540,402 37,577,427
FVOCI 377,413 467,750
10,096,197 9,627,269
30,750 -

36,364,851 37,419,848
175,551 157,579

177/485
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™

2019 12 31
17 38,813 - - 38,813
17 - - 338,600 338,600
17 - 30,750 - 30,750
24 - (3.647) - (3.647)
24 - (120,033) - (120,033)
24 - (51,871) - (51,871)
38,813 (144,801) 338,600 232,612
2018 12 31
17 39,150 - - 39,150
17 - - 428,600 428,600
24 - (60,319) - (60,319)
24 - (80,725) - (80,725)
24 - (16,535) - (16,535)
39,150 (157,579) 428,600 310,171

178/485
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2019 2018 12 31

2019 12 31 22 30,641.0
2018 12 31 31,403.9

179/485
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31
@ 2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
HPHT [€) 10,000,000 100 100
100 100
)
HIT “ o 200 100 100
@ “ oo 800
100 100
@
20 100 100
)
2,400,000,000 56.41 56.41
)
6,056,960,000 51.64  51.64
)
150,000,000 51.64  51.64
[€))
2,343,300,000 51.64  51.64
[€)
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2019 2018
10,000,000 79.45 79.45
(€]
@ o 32 94.88 94.88
“ 593
2,005 79.45 79.45
(€)) o 8,424
200 100 100
@
@ 10,000 100 100
100 100
@
1
2
712 715

®)
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32

93

2019 2018
63,729,101 65,581,163
6,850,540 6,597,197
70,579,641 72,178,360
8,353,015 8,401,928
3,856,242 4,908,406
12,209,257 13,310,334

2019 2018
7,359,662 7,403,373
2,909,678 2,957,592

2019 2018
213,827 242,387
1,424,044 1,340,089

147 2020 10

182/485
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AMMUAL REFORT 2019 95

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 Dacember 2019

2019 2018

Note HES00 HES"1

Rovemen and obwer income 4 11,120, 522 11,482 562
Cos1 of services rencered (3,881, 558) 14,143.451)
S1af cosls (26T Sy (286,534)
Dapreciation and amoriisation {3.07T9.872) {3.076,015)
Cither operating income 86,354 128,112
Other operabng espenses (537.087) (553,042}
Tatal apenating expanses {7,BBE.995) {7.930, 830)
Opedating profit 5 3430927 3,551,742
Interest and other finance costs ] (1,075 228) {1,021 801)
Share of profits less iosses after tax of associated companies (92,296 (106, 304)
Shate of profits less kosses after fax of jont vantures 38,33 54,278
Imipairment of goodwill 14ib) - (11,350,000)
Impairmant of investment in @ joint vanbune 16 = (530,000}
Profitiiloss) before tox 2,301,741 {0,811 684}
Tain T (470, 500) (424, 368)
Profitloss) Tor the year 1,821,753 {10,246, 052)
Allocaled as: Profit attributable §o non-controling inferests {1,283 542} {1,305, 64)
Profit(ioss) atinbutable to unitholders of HPH Trust B 52B.2N (11,551,320)

HE cenis HK cents

Eaminga/(lees) per unit atinbutable to unitholders of HPH Trust (] 6 08 (132 .60)

183/485
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B4  HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
HEK$'000 HES'000
Profiti{lozs) for the year 1821753 (10,246,052}
Cither comprehensive loss
lozm that will nel be reclassified o praly or Kes
Remeasurement of defined benaefi plans 31118 40,815
Imyastments
Valuation losses laken 1o reserves (81,587) -
ltems that may be reclassified subsoquanitly to profit or loss:
Cash flow hedpes arising from cross currency nferest rele swap contracts and
interest rate swap contracts
Fair value losses recognised directly in resanves (35 634) (B5,522)
Caosts of hadging
Changes in fair value of cumency basis spread {B,259) (10,524)
Share ol other comgrehensive loss of essoclaled companies {11,345) (23 148}
Share of other comprehensive i0ss af joint veniues (910} (393)
Imvestments
Valuation losses laken 1o reserves - (97 0a4)
Cumency transiation differences (115,847) {193,381}
Tatal other comprehensive loss for the year (232,064} (360,308}
Tatal comprehensive incomal(loss) lar the year 1,588,688 (10,815,451}
Allocated as Atiributable 10 non-contralling nlerests {1.240,768) (1,201,250}
Attnbutable 1o unitholders of HPH Trust 348,921 (11,818,701}
Mate:

Items shown within olher comprehensive loss have no tax effect

184/485
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AMMUAL REFORT 2018 95

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2019

X019 2018
Note HES 000 HES 000
ASSETS

Meon-curfent assets
Fined nssets 10 23,780,534 24,629,553
Projects urvder development 1 648,058 288,347
Leasehoid land and land wse rights 12 37,046,989 38371309
Radway usapge rghls 13 10,813 11,618
Customar ralabonships 14(a) 5501, 1M1 5.8354978
Goodwill 14(b) 11,270,044 11,270,044
Associgled companias 13 852,533 845,342
Joint veniuras 18 2 656, 680 2683777
Other nan-current assets. 17 560,682 560,900
Defarred tax assels 18 24,997 18,528

B2 462101 85325456

Current assets

Cash and bank balances 10 T.040, 166 6,566 254
Trade and other recevablas 20 3,056,031 3.060.0915
Irventories 102,354 103,137

10,198,551 8,730 408

Current linbilithes

Trade and olher paysbles 21 5783133 5028321
Bank and other debis 2 4,087,271 2.517 508
Current tax lnbildes 473 874 358 238
10,354 278 B.B03 955
Net current (llabilities)/iassets (155, T27) 826,451
Tolal assets less current liabilities 82,306,174 86,251 047
Non-current Nabilithes
Bank and othar debis Frd 28,450 077 FRATE 7T
Pansion chigations 23 41,747 5E 601
Deferrad tax Nabdliles 18 9,916,159 10,280,856
Other nof-current liabilities 24 324,008 282210
36,743,051 30,583,788
Net assets 45,563,223 46,668,150
EQUITY
Unils i issua 25 68,553,839 €8 553 530
Resares (42,702921)  (41,786.104)
Hel assels atiribulable to unithelders of HPH Trust 25,850,018 26,787,735
Mon-contraling inlerasta 19,712 405 19,000424
Tolal equity 45,563,323 46 668150
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96 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
HNote HK$'000 HKS'000
ASSETS
Non-current asset
Irvestment in a subsxliary company 25 25 08B B3 28,380,258
Current assets
Cash and bank balances il 2 530 4,525
Trade and other recevablas 20 1,061 33T
4491 4 882
Current liability
Trade and olhar payables 21 16,836 20,555
Mot current liabilities (12,345} (15,883)
Total assets less current liabilitics 25076 548 28 374 585
EQLITY
Linfls i issue 23 B8 553 839 B4.55% 839
Resanes 3477 293)  (42.170,274)
Total equity 25076548 28 374,565
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AMMUAL REPORT 2018 97

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the year eanded 31 December 2019

20119 2018
Hote HES 00 HHES 00
Oparating activities
Cash generated Trom operabons Z7{n} G, 369 406 6,055,269
imerest and other inance cosls paid (899 4E8) (984, 652)
Tau peid (T35,243) (B25,547)
Net cash from operating activities 4 634 665 4,245,070
Investing activitios
Loan 1o an assocaled company (133.200) (40,050)
Purchase of ficed assets and projects under develapment (581,382) (T43,560)
Procesds on disposal of oed asssts 15,733 22,074
Dividends receivad Trom investmants 25,748 48,648
[Dwvidends receved from associaled companies and joint venlures 102 472 18 453
Imermal received 147 819 G0 8
Repayment of loans by joint vanlunes 1,800 181,700
Met eash used in investing activities (421, 180) (352 558)
Financing activities
Mew bormowings 8,210,000 5,040, TS0
Repaymen! ol bomrowngs {7,219.040) 18,077,000
Upfront debt trensachon costs and facilibes fees of bormowings (40,834) (B,775)
Principal elements of lease paymants (4.370) -
Distributions ta unitholders of HPH Trust (1,281 36N {1,700, 118)
Dividends to non-controling inlerests {1,424 044 {1,340,089)
Net cash used in financing activities {3,730.884) {4,084 242)
Nal changes in cash and cash equivalants 473812 (207, 78y
Cash and cash equivatents at beginning of the year 6,524 354 8,726,082
Cash and cash aquivalents al end of The yoar 18 6,808,186 6,524,354
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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212301
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il
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- = - - - - (M55LXM) (15503M) 105268 (0248051}
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- - T D) i = - - (BT Das) - {7 044}
- - - 855 - - - {85,523 - (B5.520}
= - . - [1EM) - . 105N = 10,524
- {5158) - - - . - {14,158 e (23148)
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100 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF
HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

Far the year ended 31 December 2019

Units Accumulated Attributable to

in lssue losses unitholders
HES 000 HHS 00D HKS'00D
Trust
At 1 January 2019 68,553,838 (42,179 274) 26,374 565
Loss and tolal comprehensive loss for the year - {36.652) {35 652)
Transactons with owners
Dustribulions = (1,261 387) (1,461.367)
Al 31 December 2018 B8.553.838 (43,477 283) 25,078 546
AL January 2018 BB, 553 B30 (16,228 331) 52 325 50B
Lass and tofal comprehensive loss for the yoar - (24,241 B25) (24,241 E25)
Transachions with ownsrs
Distributions - (1,708 118) {1,708 118)
Al 31 December 2018 68,553 838 (42, 179.274) 26,374 565
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AMMUAL pErorT zO0e 101

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Hulchisan Por Holdings Trus! (Trust” or “HPH Trust’) i 8 busmess trusl consbluted by 8 deed of frust daled 25
February 2011 (gs amended) (the “Trust Deed”) and registered with the Monstary Authority of Sogaporea HPH
Trus! is principally reguialad by the Business Trusts Act, Chapter 31A of Singapore and Securities and Fulures Act,
Chapler 280 of Singapom. Lindes the Trust Deed, Hulchison Porl Holdings Managemant Pta. Limded (the “Trusbes-
Manager’), has declanad that it will hold all is assets (includeng businesses) acquened on best for the enitholders
a8 tha Trustee-Manager of HPH Trust The registared addeess of the Trugiee.-Manager is at 50 Raffes Place, §32-
01 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623 HPH Tust was lisled on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Lim#ed (the *5GX-5T") on 18 March 2011,

HFH Trust i established wilh the prncipal investment mandate of invesling in, developing, operating and managing
deep-waler container poris in the Guangdong Province of the China, Hong Kong and Macau, HFH Trust may alsa
invest in obher fypes of port assels including river porls, which are complementary fo the deep-water container poris
owned by HPH Trust, as well as underake certain port ancillary services including, bul nof limded to, trucking.
feedering, freight-lorwarding, supply chain management, warehousing and distribution services.

Basis of preparation and significant accounting pelicles

The fnancial statements have been prepared in accordance wilh Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standands
("HKFRS") saued by ihe Hong Kong Institvle of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™). The flinancal stalements
have been prepared under the historicel cosl convention except for investments and derivative financial instruments
which are staled al fair value, as explained m the significant accounting polcies sel out in note 2.

There |s mo malerial diference in preparing the financial slalements using HKFRS and Intemational Financial
Reponing Standards (“IFRS®) Mo materal adjusiments are requred o restale the financal stalemenis prepased
under HEKFRS to comply with IFRS.

At 31 December 2019, Hutchison Port Holdings Trusl and its subsidianes (the “Group”) recorded nel cumrent
ligbiliies of HKS155.7 million, mainly resulling from guaranesd notes of USS0.5 billon [approximalely to HKS3.9
hillon), which will mature in March 2020 Management is confident o complete the refinancing arrangament
before the expiry of these existing loans. Based on the Group's hislory in obtaining external financng, its operating
performance and its expecied future working capital requirements. management bebevaes that there are sulficient
financ:al resources available to the Group lo meat fs llabidilies as and when thay fall due. Accordingly, these
oonsalidated Snancial slalements kive besn prepaed on a going conosm basis

The pregaration of financal statements in conbormity wilh HEFRS requires managemant to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the acoounling policaes of the Group. I alse requires the use of cardain critical accountng
estimales and assumplions, The areas involving a higher degree of judgements or complexity, or areas where
assumpiions and estimates are significant 1o the fnancial statements, are disclosed in Nole 3,

The Group has adopled all of the naw and revised slandards, amendments and interprelations issued by he
HHICPA [hal are relevant fo the Group's operabons and mandatery for annual period beginning 1 January 2018,
The changes in accounting polickes and the effects of changes in accounting policies are summarised bolow.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 specifies how an enlity will recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. The new slandard
provides @ single, on balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. I will resuft in almost all leases being
recognised by the lessea an (he balance sheel, as the distinchon between operaling and finance leases is
removed, Under HKFRS 18, an assel (Bhe nghl o use he ledsed iem) and a finencial lability 1o pay rentals obe
recognised, The only excaplions are sho-tenm and kow-vales lsases

Lessors contmue 1o classily leases as operating or finance leases with HKFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting
which s subslantially unchanged from its predecessor HKAS 17
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102 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Adepton ol standads And AMENHMEnts to exising standards (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continwed)
()  Changes in accouning polices
Lease

An arrangamant, comprising o transachon of a sefies of transachons, s of conlaing a leasa  the Group
delermings thil the arrangemen conveys 8 righl 10 conlmy the use of an idenlified asset for a period of
time in exchange for considerabion, Such determinabon i made on an evaluation of the substance of [he
arrangemenl, regardlass of whether the amangemeants lake the legal form of a leasa

[} Assals nased 1o the Group

Leases are |nitially recognieed as a nght-of-use asset within the coresponding line tems and
correspondng liability at the date of which the leased asse! = available for use by the Group. Each
ieasa payment is allocated between the liability and finance cosl The finance cost is charged o
the income slatement over the lease penod 50 as o produce a consfant penodic rale of inferes! on
thia remaining balance al the lablity for sach period. The right-of-use assal & depvecialed over [he
shorter of the assets useful life and the lease term on a straight-ine basis

Assels leased to the Group and the cormesponding Eabilities are initially measured on a present value
basis. Lease liabilities include the nel present value of ihe follewing lease payments

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), lese any lease incantives recalvable;

- vanable lease payments that are based on an index or a rake; and

- paymanis of penales for lerminating the lease, f the lease term reflects the Group, as a
lessee, exercising an aptian to larminals the lease,

The lease paymenis are discounted using the mleres! rale impdicié in the lesse,  thal rate can be
detarmined, or tho incromental borrowing rate of tho respective onfibes. Right-of-use assols ang
maasured al cosl comprising the fallcwing

- Ihe amount of the initial measuremant of lease lability,

- any lease paymonts made at or before the commencemeant date, less any lease inconive
recaived,

- any initisl deect costs. and

- restoraton costs

Payments associaled with short-tarm leases and leases of low-value asseis are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an aupense in e income statemenl. Shork-lorm leases am leases with a lease
lerm of 12 monlhs of less. Low-vabue assels comprise equipment and small ilems of ofice furnilure,

(i}  Assels leased oul by the Group

A lvase is classifed as a finance leass i i§ ranslers substanlially ol the msks and rewards moidental
1o gwnership of an underlymg nasel. A lease is classiied a3 an operating lease i it does nol tranafer
substantially all the nisks and rewards incidental to ewnership of an underdying assel Incomse
recaived under opemating keases net of any incentives provided to the leasing company are credited
o the income stalement on a siraighl-line basis over the lease penods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continwed)

(b

Effect of changes in accounting policies

fards (Continued)

The Group has electad the modified retrospective approach for ransibon to the new standard of leases. in
accordance with tha transition provsions in HKFRS 16, the new rules have been adopted retrospactvaly
willy the cumulaine offect of initiafly applying B new standard recognised on 1 January 2018, Comparatives
for the 2076 financial year have nol been restaled

The Group applied the folowing practical expedients on transilion to HKFRS 16 for those leases which wene
previously classified as operaling leasas under HIKAS 17

L] applying the recognilion exemplion for shorl-lerm lease

The Group has also elected nod fo resssess whether a contract is or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Inslead. for conbracts enlered inlo before the fransition date_ the Group relad on is assessmant
made previously when applying HKAS 17 and Inlevprefation 4 Delerminang whelher an Arrangement

canlaing a Lease

The adophon of HKFRS 16 has not resulted in any matenal impact to the carmying valus of balance sheel as

al 1 January 2018

The amount by which each financial statement lne item (& affected by the application of HKFRS 16 as
comparad to HKAS 17 (previously in effect) s a8 follows:

Statement of comprehensive income [extract)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Before Effects of
adoplion of  adoption of
HKFRS 16 HKFRS 168  As reporied

HKS 000 HHE 100 HK3$'000
Depreciation and amoisation 3,073,818 5856 3,079,672
Other operating eXpenses 543,514 (G427 537,087
Interest and other finance costs 1,074,259 i) 1,075,228
Tan 480,012 [24) 479,988
Prafit for the year 1822127 (AT4) 14821753
Profit attributabbe o unitholders of HPH Trust 528,375 [184) 528,211
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104 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Adopton of standards and amendments to existing standards (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continwed)
b Efiect of changes in accounting polices {Conbnued)

Staternent of financial position fextract)

At M Decomber 2019
Before Effects of
adoption of adoption of
HKFRS 18 HKFRS 16  As reported

HHS 000 HES D00 HES 00D
Heon-currant assets
Fined assols 23,756,358 33176 23,789,534
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 775.T88 T.345 5783133
Current tax liablites 473,808 (24) 473874
Hon-current liabilities
Oher non-curment labilities 297 838 26,229 324 OGE
Equity
Resarves 432 TO3.0BES (184} 42 702,821
Hon-controfling interests 18712615 [210) 18,712 405

Staterment of Cash Flows [extract)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
Before Effects of

adeption of  adoption of
HKFRS 16 HHFRS 16  As reporied

HEK$'000 HEKS'000 HK$'000
Operating aclivities
Cash generated from operations 6,364,058 5,348 6,360 406
Inlerest and olher inence costs paid (@BE 520) {963} (B00 408}
Financing activities
Principal ghements of lease paymaents - (4,379 (4,379)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

At the dabe of suthorsabon of the financial statements, the following standands and amendments were in issue and
ralavant fo the Group but not yel effective and have not been early adopled by the Group:

Amandments io HKFRES 3 (Revised)™ Businass Combinations

Amendments 10 HEAS 1 (Revised) and HKAS 8™ Definition of Materiality

Amendmants o HKAS 38, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS &7 Interest Rale Benchmark Refam

Amandmants o HKFRS 10 and HKAS 287 Sale ot Confribution of Assats betwaen an Invastor

and iis Assocsale or Joint Venlure

(1)  Efecirve jor anrual pencds beginning 1 January 2020
(2]  HNew sfoctve Sale o b datermined

Tha Group s assesaing the full impact of these new or revieed HKFRS. Cerain of them may give rise o change n
prasentabon, dsckosure and measurements of cerfain tems. in the financial statements. They are nol expected to
have malerial impagt (o the Group

{a} Basis of consalidation

The conscfidated financial siatemants of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 include all s direct and
indirect subsidiary companies and also incorporale the misres! in associaled companies, jpend operabons and joint
ventures on the basis set oul in Notes 2(c) and 2d) balow. Resulls of subsidiary companies, associated companies
and joint venlures acquired or disposed of dunng he year are incheded as from thedr efective dates of aoguisibon
Iz 31 December 2018 or up 1o the dales of disposal as the case may be. The acquisiton of subsidiary companies is
accounted for using the acguisibon method

{b] Subsidiary companies

A subsidiary company is an endity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an enlity when the
Group is axposed bo, or has rights to, vamabla returns from ks involvemenl with the entity and has the abilty to
afect those rebums through its power aver he entily.  Subscdiary companses am hilly consolidated from the dabe
an which conirol = transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the dale thel conlsel ceases. In the
unconsolidated financial statements of the holding company, investments i subsidiary companies are carried at
cost less provision for impairment in valus

The acquisiion method of accounling s used lo accounl for business combinalions by the Group, The
conaideraton transferred for the acquisition of subsidiary eompanies are the fak values of the sasets fransierred,
the Fabidities incurred and the aquity inferesis ssued by the Group. The consideration transfered also includes
i fair walue of any assel of kabiily resuiling from a conbinpent consideralson arrangement. Acquisilion.felaled
cosls are expensed as incuited, ldenbifiable assels acqueed and Habilibes and conbingen! abdilies assumed n
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquesition date. On the acqueaition by
acguisition basis, the Group recognises a non-controfing inlerest in the acquiree either at fair value or al non-
controlling smeres!'s proportionale shane of the acquirea’s net assels.

The excess of the considerabon iranaferred, the amount of eny non-contralling interest in the scquiree and the
acquisibon-date fair value of any previous equity inberest in the scqueee over the fair value of the identifiatle net
assats scquired s recorded as goodwill. If this is bess than the fair value of the net assels of the subsidiary acguined
in the case of a bargain purchasa, the diference is recognised direclly in i income stabement,
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106 HUTCHISON PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles (Continued)
{c}  Assoclaled companies

An associated company = an entity, other than a subsidary company or a joinl venture, in which the Group has
a long-lorm equity inleresi and over which the Group s In a position fo exerciss significant influence over s
management, which ncludes participation in the financial and operatg policy decisions

The results and assets and liabilities of sssociatled companies ere incaxporated in these financiel statements using
the equily method of accounting, except when the invesimenl is classified as held for sala, in which case i is
accounied for under HEFRS 5, "Non-current assels held for sale and discontmued operabons™. The lolal carmying
amount of such nvesimenis s reduced lo recognise any identified impairment loss in the valee of indwvidual
imvestments,

{d}  Joint arrangements

A poenl arrangement @ en arrangemeant of which bvo or more paries have poind contral and over which none of the
parficipaling parties has unilateral control

Investments in joint arrangements are classified either as joinl operations or joint veniures, depending on the
contraciual ights and cbiigations each mvesior has. Joinl operalions arsse where the investors have rights lo the
aesals and cbligations for the labillbes of an arangemenl A joinl operater seecunls for ils share of the assats,
liabilies, revenue and expenses. Joinl ventures anss where the investors have rights to the net asseis of the
arrangemsant.

The results and ret assets of joinl venhees are incomporaled in these financial siatements using the equily method
ol accounting, except whan the investment is classified as held for eabe, in which case i1 & sccountad for under
HKFRS 5 WNon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. The total carrying amount of such
inwestments is reduced o recognise any identified impaimment koss in the value of individual iInvestments

(L] Fixed assels

Foed assats are slated at cost less deprecigton and any imparment loss. Propertss comprsa buldings and civil
works. Buildings and civil works are degrecialed on the basis of an axpecied life of 50 ywears, of the remainder
thereol, of over the remanng pafiod of the lease of the underlying leasehold land and land use rights, whichever is
lagaer, The period of the lease ncludes the penod for which @ nght of renawal is sltached. Other asssls comprise
modor vehicies, compufer equipment and other ficed assats.

Dwpreciation of foed assels olbas than properies s provided al rates calcutaled to write off their costs to lheir
ressdual values over ther esimated uselul lives on a siraight ine basis as foliows

Cantainer handling equipment 10 - 30 years
Barges 15 yadars
Mador vehicles 5§ yaars
Camputer equipmen 5 years
Othes fxed assels 5. 25 yoors

The gain o [o%s on disgesal or reirement of a fixed asset i Me dMerence between the net sales procesds and the
carrying amount ef the relevan assel, and is recognised in the income siatement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
in Projects under development

Projects under development are carried al cost and inciude project development expenditure and capitalised
interest on relalad loans incurmed up fo the date of complation. On completion, projecis under development am
ransformed to fived assats

(@) Leasehold land and land use rights

The acquisiton cosls and uplont payments made for leasehold land and land use Aghls ane presanied on the
statement of financal position as leasehold land and tand use righls, The prepaid lease payments ane rght-of-use
assels The balance are expensed in the ncome slatement on a siraghl-ine basis over the period of the leasel
rights.

{h) Customer relationships

Custamar relationships, which are acquired in 8 business comblnaben, are recognized at fair value al the
acquisition date. Cusiomer relationships are carried al cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
caleulated wsing the siraighl-line method over the expacted life of the customer relationships, ranging from
approxmately 23 1o 33 years

il Goodwill

Goodwill i mitially measured al cos! being excess of the aggregate of the consideration transfermed, the amount
recognised for non-conlrofling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equily nlereats in (he
acqures over the fair value of the nat identifiable assets acquered and liabilities assumed. Goodwll on scqusiion of
a foreign operabon is freated as an asset of the foreign operation.

Goodwill is subject 1o mpairment les! annually and when here are mdicabons that the carrying value may nol be
recoverabla. If the east of acquisilion s kess than (he fair value of 1he Group's share of the nel identifiable assets of
Ihe acquired comgany, the diference is recognesed directly in the income siatament

For the purpese of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated lo each of the Group's cash-genarating-unils
(FOGU") expacied o banef from synengies arising from the business combination

An impairment loss is recognised when the carmying amount of 8 CGU, including the goodwill, exceeds the
recoverable amount of the CGU. The recoverable amount of @ CGU is the higher of the CGU's fair value less cost
bex ol and valse-in-usa

The total imparmant lss of 8 CGU |s akocated first 1o reduce the camying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGLU
and then to the ather assels of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the camying amoun! of 2ach assat in the CGU.

An impairmant loss on goodwill 15 recognised as an expansa and is nol reversed in a subsequent penod

The prolil o loss on disposal s calculated by reference 1o the nel assets 8t ihe date of disposal including he
attributaisle amount of goodwil but does not include any sttribulable goodwill previously aliminated against resarves.

iy  Railway usage rights

Railway usage nghls are carried ot cost oss accumulated amorbisalion. Amortisation iz calculated using the
siraight-ine basis over the penod of cperation of approamately 45 years

(k)  Cumrent and deferred tax
The tax expense for the year compnses curent and defemed tax. Tax is recognsed in the ncome siatement,

excepl 1o the exfent that it relates to ilems recognised in other comprehensive income or direclly in equity In this
casa, thir lax is also recognised in othed comprehansive incame or dinectly in equily, respectively,
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108 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles (Continued)
(k)  Current and deferred tax (Continued)

The curment tax charge is calkculated on the basis of the tax laws enacled or substantively enacted at tha end of the
maporing perod in the countres where the group companies oparale and generabe taxable income. Management
periodically evaluales positions laken in tax refurns with respect 1o situaliona in which applicable tax regulatron is
subyject 1o (memprelabon and establishes provisions where appropriate on tha bass ol amounts expecied ts be pad
I the tax authomies

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the labdites methad, on temporary dfferenices anising between the fax bases
of assels and Kabddies and their carrying amounts in the financial slatements. Deferred tax assels are recognised
I3 the extent that il 18 probable that fulwe taxable profit will be avalable against whech the temporary differences
can be ublsed.

Deferred tax assels and labilities are offsel when there is o legally enforceabie righl to offsel cuiment lax assels
apgainst eurrant tax llabilibes and when the delerred lax assels and liabilibes relals lo income laxes lavied by the
same taxation authonty on elther the taxahie enhty or different taxable entities where there s an infention o sefte
the balances on a net basis,

U] Investments

invesiments (other than investmants in subsidary companies, associaled COMPENIES OF |0 veniures) ane mom-
derivative equity financial invesiments which are measured al fair value. Managemenl is eligible to make an
irrevocable elaclion, on an instrumeni-by-instrumeni basis, on equity investments ofther than those held for
rading, |9 present changes in fair value through profit or loss of fair value Brough ofher comprehensive noome
(*FVOCK) The Growp has elecied o measure as FVOCI, to which any fair value gaing or Insses accumutaled n
Ihe revaluation reserve account will no longer be reclassified to prof or loss foliowing the derecognition of such
investment, Dividends from investmenis continued to be recognised as other operating income in the income
statement when the right 1o receive paymant is established. Impaimaent losses (ond reversal of impairment losses)
ars nol reported separalely from afhier changes in fair value,

{m} Financial assets at amorised cosl
Finangial assats at amorised cost are debl instrumaents that are held for collection of contractual cash flows whone
Ihose cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest They are indially recognised at fair value
plus ransaction cosis that dre drectly attnbulable to the acguisition of the financial assels al amorlised cost and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impaimment. Appropriste alowances for estmated imecoverabbe
amounls ane mecognised in the income statemon? based on expoecied credit less (ECLT) model. Interest meome
using the effective nieres! method ks recognised in the income stalement

{n]  Trade and other receivables
Trade and cther receivables are initially recognised al fair value and subsequently measured al amorbeed
eok! using the eMective interest method, less pravision for impasmant. Appropriate allvwances lor estimaled
irecaverable amounts are recognised in the meome slatement based on Metme ECL.

(o}  Inventories

v entones consisl munly of raplacemant pars and are atated af the lower of cest and net realisable value. Cost 1S
cahculated on the walghled average basis.

{p]  Cash and cash equivaionis

Cash and cash equrvalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposils with matunly less than three months, and
bank overdraits, exciuding secured bank balances. if any
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles (Continued)
(q) Borowings and borrewing costs

The bormmowings are initially measured at fair value. net of transaction costs, and are subseguently carmed at
amodised cosl. Any difference bebween thie prooseds (nel of bansaction costs) and the seflemen or redemption of
borrowings is recognised aver the pariod of the borowings using the effective inferest method

Borrowing cosis directy abributeble io fhe acquistion, consiruction or production of gualitying assets, which ane
assats thal necessarily lake a substantial period of time to gel ready for their iMended use of sale, are added 1o the
cost of those assels, untl such ime as the assels are subslantially ready for their intended use of sale. All ofher
borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement i the perkod in which they am incumed

ir} Trade and other payables

Trade and olher payables ame inifially recognised at Tair value and subsequenlly measured al amorsed oosl using
e aflactive interest mathad

(1] Provisions

Provigsons are recognised when it i probable thal an outliow of econamic benefls will be mequired to seltle a
prasent oblgation as a resull of past events and & relabie asliimale can be made of tha amount of the obligatsn,

ity Asset impairment
Impairment of inancial assels

The Group applies the ECL model to assess impairment of financial assels clagsified at amortised cost and dabt
instruments measured at FVOCL The impairment methodology 10 be applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase n oredil risk

For trade recervables, the Group apples the simplfied approach permitied by HEFRS 9, which requires liletime
expected losses for amounts due from customers 1o be recognised from initial recogniton of the trade receévables.

As deld instruments ol amanised cost arg considared te have kw crodit risk, the impairment provigion applicd is to
recognise 12-month ECL

Impairmenl of ofter assets

Assols that have an indefinile useful life are lesied for smpalrment annually and when there s indicabion that they
may be impaired. Assets that are subject 1o depreciation and amonisation are eviewed for impaiment to determene
whather there is any indication that the camying values of these assels may not be recoverable and have suffered
an impairment loss. Il any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset s esbmated n onder to
determing the extenl of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's far value
Imss cosls 1o sell and valve-n-usa. Such impairment loss is recopniged in income stalemenl axcepl where The assel
is carried &t valuation and he impaiment loss does i exceed the revaluation surplus loe that asset, in which caze
il iz treated as a revaluation decrease and is recognised in other compeehansive income

{u]  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Crerivative financial instrumenis are utlised by the Group in the management of &= forelgn curmency and interest
rate exposures. The Group's policy 5 nol to ullise denvative fnancial instruments for rading or speculative
purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are
fomaasured 1o fas value al subséquent reporing dales. Changes n tair value are recognibed based of whalhod
eeriain qualitying eritenia under HKFRS O are satafied in orders 1o apply hedge acoounting. and f 8o, the nature af
e (tems beng hedged.

The Group decuments at the mooplion of the hedging transaction the econcmic relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged tems including whother the hedging nstrument is expecied fo offss! changes in cash Rows
of hedged tems, The group documents its risk management objeclive and siralegy lor undertaking various hedpe
transactions at the irception of each hedge relationship,
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110 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
{u)  Derivative Minancial instruments and hedging activitles ({Conlinued]

Deivatives designatad as hedging instruments to hadge the fair valee of recognised assets or liabilities may qualify
as fair valua hedges The Group mainly enlers inlo inlerest rale swap conlracls o swap certan fixed interest ke
barrowings into fioating interest rate borowings. Changes in ihe fair value of ihese derivative contracts, togetier
wilh the changes in the far vaiuee of the hedged assets of ligbilites atinbutable 1o the hedged nsk are recognised
in the income statement. At the same fime, the camying amount of the hedged assat or liability n the siatemeant of
financial position s sdjusted for the changss in fair value.

Derivatives designated as hedging Insruments to hadge against the crsh Fows atinbutable 1o recognised asseis
of labdiies may gualify as cash Now hedges. The Group mainly enters mio () cross cumency inbersst mie swep
coniracis to swap certain fixed indaresi rate United Stales dollar debis 1o fixed interest rale Hong Kong dollar debts;
{ii} cross cumenay interest rate swap contracts to swap certain floating interest rate United Siates dollar debls to
fixiad inlorest rate Hong Kong dollar debls, and (i) interest rale svap conlracts 1o swap cortain Moating imeres! rabe
Unied Slates daollar debis io fxed inlerest rale United States dollar debis 1o hedge apainst he fareign curmency and
interest rabe risk The Group excludes foregn cwmency bases spread of these cross currency sweps in the hedge
designation. The change in fair value of the foreign currency basis spread (1o the extant it elates o the hedged
item} is mcognised in othar comprehensva incomae and is accurmidated in a soparate costs of hadging resarve
under equily, Changes in the fair value relating to the efective parten of denvalive contracls designated as hedgng
Instrumenis qualdying 85 cash ow hedges are recognised in olher comprehensive meome and accusmulabed under
the heading of hadging reserve. The gain or joss relating o the ineMeclive portion is recognised in the incoms
slaterment Amounts accumulated are removed from hedging reserve and costs of hedging resene and recognised
in the income staloment in the periods when the hedged denvabive confract matures.

Denvatves that do not qualify for hadge accounting under HKFRS 8 will be accounted far with the changes in feir
valua being recognised in the income statement

v} Pension plans
Pensaon plans are classified into defined benafit and defined contnbution plans

Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using the projecied unil credit method. Under this method,
the cosl of providing pensions s charged o income stabemant so as fo sproad the regular cost over the fulune
service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the acluarias who carry oul & valuation of the plans.
The pension obigation s measured &s tha present value of the estmated fubure cash outfiows using interest rates
determined by reference to market yelds at the end of the reparting period based on high quality corporate bonds
with currency and term similar to the estimated term of benafit obligations.

Remeasurements ansing from defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive mcome in the year m
which they occur and reflacted mmediately in pension reserve. Remeasiremenis comprisa achuanal gains and
lossas, the refurmn on plan agsets (excluding amounts included in net inlerast on the net defined benefit liability/
azsel) and any change in the effect of the asset coiling (excluding amounts inchaded in net mierest on the net
defined banefil liabilltylasse),

The coniributions to the defined contribution plans are eharged fo the income statement in the year inciemed
Pension costs ame charged against the income statement wilhin stafl costs. The pension plans are generaBy fmded
by the refevant Group companies taking infa account the recommendations of independent qualifed actuaries and
by paymants from employees for coninbutory plans.

iw}  Foreign exchange

The consolidated financial stalemanis are presenied in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the funclional
currency of HPH Trusl

TransacHons in foreign cumencles ane converted al the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dales. Monetary
assels and Eabdlies are ranslalad al the rales of exchange ruling al the end of Ihe reporling period
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
{w)  Foreign exchange (Continued)

The financial statementz of foreign operations (i.e. subsidiary companies, assoceated companies, joint ventures
or branches whosa achwbes are based or conducied in @ country of currancy other than those of the Trust) ame
ransiated into Hong Kong dollars using the year end rales of exchange for the stalement of Snancial positon
lterms and the average rates of exchange fof the year for the incomse stateman) fems. Exchange diferences ane
recognsed in olher comprehensive inceme and accumulaled under the heading of exchange reserve. Exchangs
differencas arising from foreign currancy borrowings and other cumency instruments designated as hedges of such
ovafseas investments, are fecognised in ather comprahensive income and accumulated undar the heading of
enchange reserne,

Exchange differences ariging from translstion of inler-company loan balances between Group entilies are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulaled under the heading of exchange reserve when such
Ioans form part of the Group's net investment in a Breign antity, On the disposal of a foreign oparation (e, a
disposal of the Gioup's enlire inteiest in a loeign eperation, or a disposal involving loss of conlrol over a subsidiary
thai includes a forelgn operation, a disposal mvalving koss of jeind control over a joint venture that incluces a fanepn
operation, or 8 disposal invelving loss of significant influence over an associaled company that includes a foresgn
oparalion), all of the exchange gains or losses accumulated in exchange reserve in respect of thal operation
aliribulaive (o he owners of the Company are anslered oul of e exchange eserve and e recognsed in [he
imsorme atalaemen

In adddion, in relabon fo 8 parbal dispasal of a subssdiary that does not result i the Group losing control over
hir subrsideary, the proportienate shame of accumultaled exchange diferences is me-altribuled to non-contralling
interests and s not recognaed in the income slatement. For all olher partial disposals (l.e. partial disposals of
associaled companes or joint ventures that do not eesult in the Group losing significant influence or joint conirol),
Ihe proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences & transierred out of the exchange resarve and s
recognised i the income stalement.

All alher exchange diferences ane racegnesad in the ineame stalament
{x})  Distributions to the Trust's unitholders.

Dastrisutions to the Trusts unilholders are recorded n aquity in the parod in which they are approved for paymant
v}  Leases

An arrangemant, comprising a transaction or @ seros of ransactions, is or conlaing a lease if the Group detemines
Ihad the arrangsment conveys a nghl 1o contral the use of an dentifed assel for a perod of lime in exchange for
conslderation, Such defermination s made on an evaluation of the subslance of the arangement, regardlass of
whether the arangements take the legal fom of a lease

{1 Assots leased o the Group

Leases are inibally recognised as a right-of-uze sssel and comespanding lisbility al Se date of wikch [he
leased asset is avoiable for use by the Group. Each lease payment is ellocated between the lisbility and
finance cosl. The finance cost is charged to the mcome slatement over the lease penod so as lo produce
a constanl penodic rale of imonst on the remaining balance of the liabilty for sach penod. The right-of-use
assel i depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful ife and the lease term on & straghi-line basis,

Aszsets leased to the Group and the corresponding liabilikes are initially measured on a present value basis.
Leaze Babdrties include the nel present value of the followmng lease paymenis

- fined payments (including in-subsiance fixed payments), less any lsase ncenlives receivable;

- variable lease payments that are basad on an index or a rate; snd

- payments of penallies for termmating the leasa, f the lease term reflects the Group, as a lesses,
exarcising an option to eminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

{y} Leases (Continued)

1z

(i} Aszsets leased fo the Group (Conbinued)

The |lease paymenls areé discounled using the inleres! rale implicil m the |ease, if thal rale can be
datermined, of the ineremental barrawing rale of the respactive anblies. Rghl-ol-use assels are maasured at
cost comprising the following:

- i amount of the inital measumment of lease kabdty,

- any leass payments made at of before the commencement dale, less any leass incenlive received,
- &ny tniteal direct costs; and

- restoration costs.

Payments associaled with shortderm kases and leases of low-valuo assals am recognised on a siraighl-Endg
basis as an expense In ihe Income siatemant. Shori-derm leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
of less, Low-value assets comprisa equipmen and small ilems of ofice fumadure.

[ Assats leased out by the Group

A lease = classified as a finance lease I || iransfers substaniaBy all the faks and rewards ncidental bo
ownarship of an underying assel A lease iz classified as an operating lease f it does not iransfer
substanhally adl the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying assel. Income received under
oparating leases nel of any incenbves provided 1o the leasing company are cradibed 1o the income slatemant
on 8 sbraighl-ine basss over the lease perods,

Laases (Prior to 1 January 2019)

A lpase 15 classilied as a finance lease il @ ransfors substantaly all the risks and rewands incidental 1o ocwnershp
al an wndelying mssel A lease is classiied &8 an operaling lease il il does nol Bramsler substanlially all the risks
and rewarnds incidental to ownership of an underlying assel income received under operating leasea net of any
incentives provided o the leasing company are credited io the income stetement on 8 strasght-ling basis over the
laasa panods

Revenue and olher income recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the good or service @ transferred to the customer. Depending
on tha {erms of the contract and the laws that apply fo the confract, control of fhe good ar service may be
ransfesred over time or at a paint in lme

Control of the good or service is transterred over time if the Group's performance provides afl of the benefils
recaived and consumed simullaneousty by the customar.

IF control of the assel ranslers over lime, revense is recognised over Ing penod of the contract by nelerence o [he
progress towards complets sabisfacton of that pedormance obligation, Ciherwise, revenue = recognised &t a paint
in tirme when the customer obtains control of the asset

The progress lowards complale satisfaction of the performance obligation |s measufed based on difect
measurements of the value transfered by the Group 1o the customer

Traneackon price of a conlract shall ke allocated to ndevidual performance obligation (or distinct good or servica).
The objective when allocaling the lransaclion price is for an entity lo allocate the lransaction price fo each
perfarmance cbligation m an amount that depscts the amount of consideration 1o which the enality expecis 10 be
enlled in exchange for ranaferming he promesed goods of services 1o the customer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles (Continued)
Revenue and other income recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised over tima:

(i for porta and relofed services, transportation and logmtica solubons along with the progress when service is
randanad. and

(i) for management and service fee income, and system developmen! and support lees along with the progress
when service s nendered

Imerest mcome is recognsed over lime on a ime proporion bagsis uaing the effeclive interast mathod.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

MNote 2 includes a summary aof the significant accounting polices wusad in the preparation of the finencial statemeants
The pregaration of financial statements ofien reguires the use of judgements to select specific accounling methods
and poficies from several acceplable altematives. Furbermam, significant esbmates and assumptions concoming
the fulure may be required in selecting and applying those methods and polices in the financial slatemaonta. The
Group bases ie estimates and judgements an historical experience and various olher gesumpbions that il believes
are reasonable under the crcumstances, Actusl resulls may differ from these estimates and judgements under
different assumplions of conditions.

The following is a review of the more significant assumptions and estmates as well as the accounting pelicies and
methods used in the preparation of the finencial stalements

Long lived assets

The Group has moade substantial investments @ tangible leng-lived assets in its conlaines terminal operating
business, Changes in technology of the infended use of these sssels may cause the estimated period of use or
value of these assets o change.

The Group congadors its assats impasment atcounling policy to be a policy thal requirss ono of the most extensive
applications af pidgemants and estmates by management

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed to detarmine whether there is any indication that the camymng
value of these assels may not be recoverabie and have sufferod an impament fcss. IFf any such indication sixists,
e recoverable amounts of the assels are estimated in orded 1o debermine the extent of the Impaiiment less, il any
The recoverabla amount s the higher of an assets fair value |ess costs 1o sell and value-in-use, Sush impasment
loss is recognized in the income stalement except where the esset 8 carried al valuation and the impairment loss
does nol exceed the revaluation surplus for that asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease and is
recognised in ather comprehonsive neoma.

Manspement’s judgements are required in the area of assel impairmen). particulary In assessing: (1) whether
an evenl has occurred that may indicale (hat the related asset values may nol be recoverable, (2) whether the
camying valua of an assel can be supporied by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs
> soll or nel prasen! value of future cash Mows which are estimated based upon the confinued use of the assat
in the Group; and [3) the appropriste key assumplions to be applied in prepanng cash fow projections nchisdng
whether these cash Now projections &re discounted using an approprigle rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management lo determine the level, it any. of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, coukd materially affect the net presant value used in the impairmant best
and as a resull altect the Group's financal condition and resulls of operalions. If there s a significant adverse
change in the projecled performance and resulting future cash flow projections, | may be nacessary to ake an
impasment charge o the income stalemen.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(b  Goodwil

For the purposes of impairment tests, the recoverable amount of goodwill iz determined based on vakse-in-use
calculations, Tha value-in-use calculatons primarily wse cash flow projechons based on financial projections
approved by management Thare are a number of assumplions and estimales involved for the preparabon of cash
fow projections. The key assumplions adopted in the vale-in-use calculalons ae based on managemeants best
estimates and past exparience. Changes io key assumplbons can affect significantly the resufis of the impairment
bests.

Key assumplions are made with respect to (he expecled growih in revenues and cost of services rendered,
bming of fulure capitel expendilures, lerminal growth rabes and selsclion of discount rate, which approxmalely
reftect the risks involvad. The growth in revenues will be affecied by the growth in both the volume of conlainers
handled and tanff The volume of containers handled wil be impacied by economic and global markel condibions,
struciural changies within e shipping line indusiry and influenced by the perfomancd and growih of regional and
international trading economees, I key export markels far local exporiers experience an economic downlum or
recession, export volumes may decrease. The growih of tarff depende on the Group’s overad compebtiveness,
which is determined by a number of tsciors, such as geagraphical reach and connectivity, cperating efficsency, barth
avalabilty, mega vessel handiing capabiily, lechnology oferings, fransportation and logistics network and ancillary
services and facidies.

A significant portion of cost of services rendered ia labour cost which will ke impacted by labour supply and
inflation. In addition. the infroduction of ever larger vessals by shipping lines will reguire upgrading of egquipment
and new work practices fo incroase produchvity so as to remain compeditive.

{e}  Customer relationships

Customar relationships acquired in a busziness combination are recognised al fair value at the acquisition date.
Customer relationships are camed al cost less accumulated amortisation. Amorisation is calculated using The
stralght-bne method aver he expected bfe of e custamer relabonships,

The Group considers its impairmeant accounting policy bo be 8 podicy that requines cne of the most extensive
applications of judgomonis and estimates by managament. Intangible assels with dofinite useful lives that ane
subiect to amorisalion are edewed to determine whathes there = any indscabion thal the carmying value of these
assels may nol be recoverable and have suffered an impatrmant loss, IT any such mdication exisis, e recoverabie
amounts of the intangible assels are eslimabed in order lo defermine the extenl of the impairment loss, f any.
The recoversble amound is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs lo sell and value-in-use. Such impasrment
loss s mcognised in the incoma slatement. Managament's judgements are required in the area of intangible
assel impairment, parbicularly in assessing. (1) whether an event has occurred that may indicale thal the related
assel values may not be recoverable, and (2) whather Ihe carrying vabee of an asset can be supported by the
mecoversble amount, beng the higher of fair value lesa coata to sall or net present valua of future cash fows which
are estimated based upon the contimeed use of the asset in the Group

{d}  Depreciation
Depreciation of operating assets conslitules a subsianbal operating cost for the Group. The cost of fixed assels
Is charged as depreciation expense ovar the eslimated useful lives of the respactive assets using the siraight-Ene
matthod. The Group penodically reveews changes n lechnology and industry conditions, assel refinemen] activty
and residual values 1o defermine adjuatments bo estimeted remaming useful lives end deprecialon rales

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful ives Penodic reviews could resull m a change n
depreciable Ives and tharefore depreciation expense in futune perods.
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E Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(e}  Accrual af net revenue

Revenue is accrued at period end with reference lo the throughput handled and the terms ol agreemanis for
container handling service. Consequently, recognition of revenue is based on the volume of services rendered
s wall as he Inlesl Wl agreed wih customers of bosl eatimaled by management. This estimalo is Dased on
e latest tanft and ather indusity considerabons as appropaata. I the actual revenus dilers fram the esbmaled
accrual, this will have an impact on revenue in fulure periods.

{f Pension cosis

The Group operates several cefined benefit plans. Pansion costs for defined benefil plans ane assessed using the
projected unit credit method in accordance with HKAS 18 (2011), Employes Benefits. Uinder this melhod, the cost
of providing pensions s charged te consolidated income statemeni 50 a6 to sproad tho regular cost over Bho fubune
service lives of employess in accordance with the advice of the acluaries who carry out a valuation of the plans
The pension oblgalion is messured al the presend value of the estimated fulure cash oulfiows usng inlerest rales
determined by reference to maidkel yelds at the end af the reporting penod based on high quality corporate bonds
with currency and term similar to the estimated term of benafit obligations.

Rameasuremenis ansing from defned benell plans am recognised n alher comprahensive meoma in the year @
which they aecur and reflecled immediately in pension reserve. Remeasurements comprse actuarial gains and
Iosses, tha refurn on plan assets (excluding amounts incleded in nef inlerast on the net defined benefit lability!
asgel) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excleding amounts incheded in net mterast on the net
defined banalfl liabilityfassal).

Manegemen| appoanied actuanes lo carry oul a full valuation of these pension plans 1o delermine the penson
obligatons that are required to be disclosed and accounted for in the financial stalamenis in accordance with the
HKFRE requiraments.

The actesries use assumplions and eslimales n determining the Talr value of the defined benell plans and
svaluate and update these sssumpbons on an annual basis. Judgemeants are required 1o determine the principal
actuarial assumplions to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and service costs. Changes to
tha pemncipal acluanal assumplions can sgnificanily affect the prasent vakie of plan obligabons and service costs n
fiure periods.

{g]  Tox

Tha Group is subject to income laxes in different jurisdictions. Significan! judgaments are requred in determining
the provision for income laxes. There are many transacbons and calculaliona lor which The ullimale tax
dieterminaton 18 uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recogniscs liabilibes for anbcipated
tax audil issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes wil be due. Where the final 1ax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were previously recorded, such diferences will impact the income tax and
delormed kax provisions in the period in which such detemminalion is made.

Deferred lax s provided m full, using the kabdly method, on lemparary diffarences arising betwesn the tax hases
of assats and liabilities and thew carmying values in the financial stalemanis Deferred tax assels are recognised
for unwsad tax losses camed forward o the extent it is probable that future taxable profils will be avadable against
which the unused lax losses can be utilised, based on all avaidable evidence. Recognidion primarily involves
judgemente regarding the future financial performance of the paricular legal enlily or lax groug in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised A vaniety of othar factors are also evaluated in considenng whether there (s
convincing evidence that it is probabée that some portion aor all of the deferred tax assets wil ufimately be reaksed,
such as the exisience of laxable lemporary differences, group relief, tax planning strategies and the periods in
which estimaled tax logses can be uliised. The camying amounl of deferred tax assols and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed al the end of the repoting penod and 1o the exten that there (s insufficlent eonvincng
evidence that sufficient taxable profils will be svailable within the ublissbon penods to aliow uliisation of the cary
forward tax kosses, the assel balance will be reduced and charged o the income stalement.
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4 Revenue and other Income and segment information

(a)  Revenue and olher income

2018 2018
HES'000 HK$ 000
Rovenue
Rendering of port and related services 10,748,188 11,134 666
Rendering of transportalion and logistics solubons 178,805 187058
Management and servce fee income 35512 36,582
Systam developmant and supporl fees 12,232 13,374
Others . A .
10,978,024 11,374,132
Cther incomea
Interest nzome 143, BBB 104,420

11,120,922 11,482,562

{b)  Segment information

The chief operating decision maker has been defermined bo be the execulive committee of HPH Trust {the
“Executive Commites™) Tha Executive Commettes reviews the inbiernal repoding in order to assass performancs
and allpcate resources. Managemenl has delermined the operaling segments based on (hese repors,

HPH Trrst is principally engaged in imvesting in, developing, operating and managng deep-water container pors
and porl ancliary senviices and therelore managemen! considers that HPH Trust operales in one snge business
sagmienl

Revanue ia recognmed over me and deciosures by gecgraphacal location ane shiwn below

Revenue and other incomea Mon-current assels

2018 2018 2018 2018

HHKE'000 HKE'000 HKE'000 HKE 000

Hong Kong 3521848 3,883,780 23,085,225 24050 427
Maintand China T.500 074 7.508 782 59,306 8TE 61,275,075

11,120,822 11,482 582 B2 462 101 85 325 496
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Operating profit
Operaling profl is stated after crediing and charging the fallowing

2010 018
HHE'D0D HK$ 000
Credding
Diwidend income from River Ports Economic Benefits (Mote 17) 22610 46,480
MNel exchange gan - 9,494
Charging
Auditor's remunaration
- audil sanices 15,530 14,103
= naf-audil Sarvices 187 =51
Amartisation
- leasehold land and land usa rights 1,202 151 1,262,271
= raibvay usage rights 512 535
- cusiomer relationships 334 207 334,208
Depreciaton of fixved assets 1,446 B46 1,448,003
Daprociabon of righl-ol-use assels within fuod assels 5866 -
Mol loss on disposal of fixed assets and investimanis 3,206 17,065
Expense relating 1o shor-temm leases
- office premises and pon faciites B88.538 -
Cperahng lease ranials
- office premises and port faciliies - 36,442
Sta¥f costs (included amowuni charged within cosl of services rendered)
- Wages, salanes and other benefits 1,385,152 1,383, 400
- PENSION cosls 119,556 127,348
Mol axchange loss G827 ~
Intereat and other finance costs
2015 2018
HKS5'000 HKS DDD
Bank lgans and overdralta 741451 TOS5 848
Guarantesad notes 265 728 281 825
Loans from non-controlling inleresis 1140 3,186
Ineresd and finance charges paidipayable for lease labilibes BEa =
Other finance costs S8 840 50,742
Fair vaive {gan)oss on interest rale swaps (55472) #os
Less: fair value adjustmant 1o bank and ather debls under fair value hedge 56672 [B06]
1,075,228 1,021 801
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T Tax
08 2018
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Current lax 858 836 774,087
Dieferred (ax (Mota 18) {378.648) {339, 718)
479 0B8 434 368

The tax charge on the Group's profilf{loss) belone tnx dffers from the thearatical amoln] thal would arise waing the
weaighied average tax rate of the Group as follows:

2019 2018
HES000 HES'000

Profil before tax exchsdng share of profils |ess losses afler tax of joint venlures

and associated companies and impaiment of goodwill and investment in a

jounit vanlure 2,355 600 2,520 041
Tax calculaled ol wesghled average lax rale of 28.4% (@018, 27 3%) 6G3.415 @85 BEa
Tax examplion in the China {299.431) (485 B08)
Inzome not subject to tax (5,206) {3,751)
Expanses nol deduclitle for lax purposes 101,602 93248
Withholding tax on unremitted eamings 118,285 121,253
Recognition of previously unrecognised lax losses - (B}
Wilisaton of provously unrocogmsed thx losses (3,148) {1.645)
{Cverfunder provision in pror year (7,008) 13,578
Tax losses not racopnised 4,108 1475
Qthees g2 208
Total lax 475 968 434,368

MNaola:

Mon-cash goodwill impairment loss of HKS11.4 billion and impaimment loss of Investment in & joint ventwre of
HKS0.8 billion were necognised in 2018

a8 Distributions

2019 2018
HES§ 000 HK$'000
Faor the penod fram 1 July 2017 to 31 Decamber 2017
Distributson of 11.10 HK cents per unit - o686 832
Far the perad fam 1 January 2018 be 30 Jure 2018
Distributean of 8 .52 HK cente par unit - Ta2 1886
Far the perod fram 1 July 2018 bo 31 Decamber 2018
Distributen of 8§ 48 HK cente per unit 733 1T -
Far the pefod from 1 January 2019 te 30 June 2019
Distribution of §.00 HK cents par unit 532,666 -
1,261 367 1,709,118

On 10 February 2020, the Board of Directors of the Trusiee-Manager recommended (he distnbution of 5.00
HK cenls per unil lor the Rnancal resull from 1 July 2018 lo 31 December 2019 (2018. 848 HK cenls per unil)
amounting o HKE355 million (2018 HKET73A.T million) and payable on 27 March 2020. Thes distribution is not
reflected in these financial statemants and will be recognised (n aquity in the financlal year ending 31 December
2020
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Earnings/{less) per unit

The calculaton of earningsfloss) per unil is based on proft afinibulable lo uniholders of HPH Trust of
HES328.211.000 for the year ended 31 Decomber 2018 (2018: loss of HKS11,551, 320 0000 and on &717,101,022
units in iesue (2018; B,711,101,022 wnils in issue), which i the weighted average number of units for the year
ended 31 Decembar 2019

Diuted sarnings/{loss) por urel s the same as the basic eamings/(loss) par unit for the yoars ended 31 Decombor
2018 and 2018

Fixed assots
Container Other
handling fixed
riies  equipment Barges assets Tatal

Group HES 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HES'000
2018
Opening ned book armounl 16,530, 486 7.568.985 36,025 493077 24620553
Addibons £a.881 50,253 511 3,160 113,814
Transfer from projects under

development (Nate 11) 112,285 374,890 - 106,986 503,881
Depreciaton (14,384) (736, 348) {7,255) {84,707T)  (1.452,802)
Daposals 2171 {1,010) (15,575) (182) (18,.938)
Currency translation differences (58.833) (13,962} = 13,158} {76,054}
Clasing met book amaount 16037154 7243590 13,006 S057B4 23 7RO 534
AL 31 December 2018
Cost 20,393 618 13145013 227 1019068 35180818
Accumulated depreciation (4 66 465) (5802 223) (8,311} (513, 285) (11,3081 284)
Met book amount 16027 154 7243580 13 0§ 505784 23 TBHSIL
2018
COpening nel book amount 16,382 757 7.674 807 45243 523 58T 24 626394
Additions 13,07 @8,730 2,857 B42 BE,348
Transier from propects under

development (Nata 11) 876,840 G186 422 - 55458 1,548,720
Depreciaton {607 875) (749 709} (9,102} (B2317) (1,448 003)
Disposals (9.064) (26, 7TE) (2.973) (320) (38,133)
Currency translabion diflersnces {125.289) {13,509} - (3.973] (142771
Closing net book amount 16,530 488 7.560.865 36,025 483077 24620 553
At 31 December 2018
Cost 20,808,362 12,744,708 66,130 830613 34650814
Accumulated depreciation (4 3THATE) (5174 744} (30,105} (437 536} (10.029,381)
Med book amount 16,530,466 7,560 965 36,025 433077 34 628553
At 1 January 2018
Cost 20,182 423 12.087 400 T804 BYT 2T 33225254
Accumelated depreciation 3,794 BEE 4 382 583 32 861 373,740 A 508 880
Net Gook amaount 18382757 7674807 45283 S235B7 24626394
Naote

The Group abtaing right 1o contrel the use of certain assels unded properies, container handling eguipment and
omer fixed sssets for a perod of ime through lease amangements, Lease amangements ae negotiated on an
individual bass snd contein a wide range of difierent terms &nd conditions ncluding lease payments and lease
terms ranging from 2 to B years. HK536.155,000. HK38 458 000 and HK$B62 000 leased assels ane fecognised
during thie year ended 37 December 2019 and included in the addition 1o the properies, container handling
equipment and olher fixed assels. respectively, Depreciabon of these assets amounted to HKS3, 720,000,
HK$1.851,000 and HKS285 000, respectively. Az at 31 December 2019, leased assets with the carmying amount
of HKS32 450 000, HKS54, 182,000 and HKSS576 000 are included in the calegory of properties, container handing
sguipment and other assels under fived assels, respectivaly.
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11 Projects under development
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Group 2019 2018
i A PRI,
At beginning of the year i, 397 1,870,168
Addibons 245,795 563,002
Transfer 2 fived assels (Nobe 10} {593,961) {1,548,720)
Camrency translation differences (173} 10,058
Atend of the year _ G48056 098307

Projecis under development mainly represani the cost of construction of port facilties in Hong Kong and China
incumed by subsidiary companies

12 Leasehold land and land use rights

Group 2019 2018
HES'000 HES 000

Net baok value
At beginning of the year 38,373,320 30,724,150
Amodtisation (1,282,151) {1,282 271}
Cumancy translation dallsrances (34,188 (58,550)
At end ol the year 37,046, 088 38,373,378
Cost 48 200, B8S 48,250,704
Accumulated amortisation {11,162 878) {8,877 485)
37,046, 08D 38,373,318

Included within the bakance of feaseheid land and land use rights”, HKET 760,578,000 are accounied for as right-
of-use assel as at 31 December 2019, Amodtisation of such right-of-use assol duning the year s HKS283 042,000

13 Rallway usage rights

Group 2019 2018
HES 000 HES 000

Het book value
Al beginning ol the year 11818 12,667
Amadtisation 1512) {535)
Cusrency translation differences (204) (513)
At ond of the yoar 10,813 11,618
Cost 14,738 15,343
Accumuiated amortisation (3.927) (3,724)
10.813 11,618
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14  Intanglble assets

{a)  Customer relationships

Group 2014 2018
HK$'000 HH$'000
Het book value
At baginning of the year 548315978 6,170,184
Amadtisation {334,207) {334, 206)
Al wnd of th year 5501771 5.835.978
Pl 8,440,000 B,440,000
Accumuiatiod amartisation [2.838,228) (2,604,022)
At end of the year 5,501,711 5,835,878
{b)  Goodwill

Goodwill ls allocated fo ihe Group's CGU idenlfied according o geographical localions as the Gioup has one
business segment onky. The goodwill is sllocated as follows:

Group 2019 2018

HES'000 HKS'000
Hong Kaong - -
Manfand China 11,270,044 11,270 044

11,270,044 11.270,044

Group 2018 2018
HKS'000 HKS'000
Al beginning of the year 11,270,044 22 629,044
Impairmant of goodwill (aceumulated: HKS30.4 billion) = (11,359,000}
At end of the year 11,270,044 11,270,044

The Group recopnised non-cash impairment losses of HKS0.7 billlon and HKE1.7 billlan against goodwill alocated
I the Mainland China CGU and Hong Kong CGLU respectively in 2018

As in prior year, managemesnt parformead an impairment assessment based on value-in-use calculations wsing
cash flow projectons based on Bnancial budgels approved by management covering @ 5-year peried and a further
oulisolk fer 5 yeans, which is considered aporopdale in wow of the lang-lerm nolure of the concession agmemants
Management determined that no funher impalrment of goodwil is required In 2019, The Impaiment methadalogy
gasumed terminal values and discounl rales of 2%-3% (2018; 2%-3%) and 8%-10% (2018 8%-10%) per amnum,
respectively. Terminal values are detarmined by considering both infernal and external faclors ralating to the port
operaton and discount rates reflect specific risks relating fo the melavant business.

The assumplions regarding the growth rates in revenuee and cost of senices rendered used In 1he Current years
assessment of the Mainland China CGU were comparable 1o last year For Bustration purposes, a hypothetical
0.5% decrease in the revenue growth rate, 8 0.5% mncrease in costs of sendces rendered and 8 0.5% increase m
I diseounl rale, with all other variables and assumptions held constant, would decrease the mooverable amount
al thié Hong Kang CGU by HKS1 8 bilion, HKS0 8 bllan and HKS1 3 billion respactively and of the Mainland Chena
CGU, by HKSZ.0 bilion, HKS0,T billion Bnd HKS2 7 bilion, respectivedy,

Actual results in tha future may differ materially from the senstivity analysis due to dovelopments in the global
madkals and changes in economic conditions which may couse Mucluations in grawih and market inleres] rales to
vary and thereforz it i imiporiand bo nole That the hypothelical amounts so generaled do nol réprasent a progeniion
of likely future events and profits or losses
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15 Associated companies

Group 018 018
HKS'000 HKS'000
Share of net assats 488,333 803,342
Loan to an associated company 466,200 342,000
952,533 845,342

A S-year loan of RMB420,000.000 (approximate lo HKI466.200.000) provided lo an associaled company s
umsscured, inkerest bearing al a fwed rate of 4.0% per annuem and repayable in 4 years, The canying amount of
tha [oan ta an essocaled company approdmates ils fair value.

Dtails of the principal assocsated companies al 31 December 2018 and 2018 are as follows

Place af Effective
Name establishment Principal activities Imterast held
Shenzhen Yantian Tughbost China Provision af wgbost 23.84%
Company Lid sevices in the Ching
Huizhou Internstional Container China Development and operation 41.31%
Terminals Limited ' of a container ferminal

i1 Audited by PricewalerhouseCoopers nebwodk firms

These (8 N0 associaled company as at 31 December 2008, which in he opinion of the directors of he Trosbee-
Manager, is ndsidually matenal to the Group

Thare are no material conlingeni Eabditiss refating lo the Group's interests in the assodcialed companies.

Set oufl below are the agpgregale amount of the Group's share of the follewing items of associaled companies

2010 2018

HHS'000 HK% 000

Profits less losses aflor lax {92.286) (106904
Cther comprehensve loss [11,345) {23.148)
Tolal cormprehensive loss {103 641) 1130,052)

16  Joint ventures

Group 2018 2018
HKS'000 HKE 000

Share of net assets 3460730 3466 227
Loans lo joint veniures (nobe a) 125,850 127 550
Less accurmulated imparmaent (nofe by (530,000} (830, 000)

2 656,680 2,683,777

Maota

(&) A loan of HES120,000,000 (2018: HKS120 000,000) provided 1o a joinf venbure |8 interest baaring at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR®) plus 2.1% per annum (2018 HIBOR plus 2.1% per annum).
Another loan provided to a jond venlure of HKKSS 850,000 (2018; HKST 550,000} is interest free.  Baoth of
thee loans provided 1o joinl venbunes ane unsacured and nol expecied o be repayable within one year. The
carrying amgunt of he loans 1o joinl vendures approcimales s fair valoe
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Joint ventures (Continued)
MNode: (Conlinued)
{b) An impaimment loss on investment in & it venture of HK$930 million were recognised in 2018.

Delails of pemcipal jonl ventures al 31 December 2019 and 2018 e as lollows.

Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Hama astablishmaont Principal activities interast hald
COSCO-HIT Tarminals (Hong Kong)  Hong Hong Drevelopment and operation 50.00%
Limmited™ of a conkanar kerminal
Agia Conlainer Terminals Limided™ Hong Kang Dovelopmant and operation 40.00%
of a conlanad lerminal
Beijing Leading Edge Conlainer China Provision of logistic services 50 .00%
Saraces Co., Limied™
Mercury Sky Group Limibed™ Batish Virgin |slands  Investment holding 50.00%
Shonzhan Leading Edge Port China Provision of port agancy 40.00%
Sarvices Co., Limied™ services
‘fantian Porl Infernalional Information  China Provision of alecironic pod 28.21%
Company Limited community syatem

(1) Audded by PricewsterhouseCoopers netwosk firns.
(2] et requerad to be audited under the laws. of the country of incorparation

There i no point venfure as atl 31 Decemer 2018, which in the opinion of the directors of the Trustee-Manager, is
individually masenal 1o the Group.

Thara are no material conlngent liabiilies refaling 1o the Group's interests in the joint vemlures,

Set out below are the epgregale amowni of the Group's shere of the following ilems of pinl ventures

2018 2018

HKS 000 HKS 000

Profits less losses afler tax 38,338 54278
Qther compreheansive loss [810) (585)
Total comprehensive income 7428 53,684
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17  Other non-current assets

Group 2019 2018
HKS 000 HES"000
Investmenis
Listed equity security 38813 39,150
Rivar Ports Econamic Banefils (Nale) 338 600 474 600
Prapayment for fived assats 67.515 2,188
QOther receivables and prepayments 85,004 91,020
Cash flow hedges
Cross currency interest rate swaps 30,750 -
560,682 560,020
MNaote:

The Rivar Pords Economic Benefits nepresant the economic intares] and banefits of the river ports in Nanhal and
Jangmen, China (logether the “River Pods”), including all dividends and any olher disiributions ar alher monjes
payabis to a related ocompany o any of ds subsidiary companées in fs capacity a8 a shareholdder of the relevant
holding company of the Rwver Pors ansing from the profits atfributable to the business of the River Ports and all
sale o disposal proceeds derived from such bussvesses, assels, righis andor labiities constiiuting any par of the
business of the River Ports as agreed wih a related company end any of its subsidiary companes.  The movement
is dua to ehange n inir valus

18 Deferred tax

Group 2019 2018

HES 000 HEKS 000
Defarred tax assels {24,007) {18,528)
Drefarred tax labdties 9,818,158 10,260,856
Ml deferrad Lax Labidithes 9,893,162 10,272,228

The movemnents in deferred tax (asscts)liatillies during the year afe as follows:

Falr value Withholding

Unused Accelerated adjustmonts tax on
tax  depreciation arising from  unremitted
losses allowances acquisitions earnings Others Total
HHES 000 HKE000 HHS'DOD HKS'000  HKS'000 HKE 000
2019
Al 1 January 2018 {23,702) 608,718 9,372 986 321,186 (6,852) 10272328
Tax (craditedjicharged 1o
Income slatement {3,B40) (28,808) (360, 306) 16,222 (18)  (373.848)
Othes emporary diffarances 206 1 — {351} 4) (318)
At 31 Decembar 2019 (29.616) 570921 8,012 62 337,057 (6,872 0603162
2018
At 1 January 2018 {29,065) 615,593 o734 188 288202 (6.522) 10612306
Tax charged Neredited) o
Income statemant 5,363 (6.850) 1361, 128) 23,314 {3rT) (33T
Ot lemparary diflerances - 15 [61) {350} AT [343)
At 31 Decembar 2018 (23,702) 608,718 9,372 588 321,168 (B,852) 10272328
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Deferred tax [Continued)

Noles

(a) The deferred tax assats and liabilibes are offsat whan there is a legally enforceabde nght to sat off and when
the deferred taxes relate fo the same fiscal authonty,

(8] Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carmed forwedrd fo the extent thal reaksation of the
related tax benefit through the fulure taxable profil s probable, The Group has unrecognised tax losses
of HKS125,621,000 at 31 December 2019 to camy forward against fulure laxable income. Of these,
HKEE5,137 000 can be camed forward indofinitely.  The rormasming HKS30, 494 000 expires in the fallowing

years
2018 ot}
HHKE D00 HKS 000
In tha first year - -
In the second year - -
In the third year - TA92
In the fourth year - -
In the fifih yoar 30 404 6324
30,494 14,218

g} Deferred tax liabildies are caloulated in full on lemporary differences under the kabilities method using
the lax rale of the counlries n which the Group operated. The temporary differences are for sccelerabed
depreciston aliowances, fair value adjustments ansing from acquisiions and withholding taxes arising from

unremitied eamings.

(d] Delermed lax assels and liabilibes ane expacted 1o be recovered or seified mosily after mone than bwalve

mioniths

Cash and bank balances

Group 2019 2018
HEE 000 HES 000

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 451,449 B17,733
Shor-tenm bank deposds 6,546 T1T 5,708,621
6,998 166 € 524,354
Realncted deposil (Mota) 42 000 42,000
Cash and bank balances 7,040,166 6,560,354
Trust 2018 018
HHKS'000 HK$° 000

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 2,530 4,525
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18 Cash and bank balances (Continued)

Mole:
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At 31 December 2018, & deposid of HKS42.000.000 (31 Decembar 2018 HKS42000,000) was placed by a
subsidiary company of the Group as a collateral for tha secured bank loan entared in 2016,

Cash nnd bank balances are denaminated in the Teboning eurmancEn.

Group 2019 2018
Pefcenlage Percenlage

Haong Kong dallar 0% 43%
Ranminbi 12% 21%
Unned Siates dollar A8% 36%
100% 100%

Trust 2019 2018
Percantage  Percantags

Hang Kong dollar 26% 23%
United States dollar 15% 20%
Singapore dollar 50% 4T %
1001 % 100%:

Tha carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximale their fair values. The maximum exposute 1o credit

riak ia the: cafrying amounts of the cash and bank balances

20 Trade and other recelvables

Group 2018 Z01E
HKS 000 HKS'000
Trade receivables (Note a) 2.585 212 2.518.572
Less | provision for impakment of receivables {51,261) {51,255)
2,533,951 2467 317
Other receivables and prepayments 332,208 355 Ta2
Diwwidend recaivable from jaint veniures 30,001
Amound due from a related company (Mote b) 20 20
Amounts due from asscoiated companies (Note b) 21,708 12,138
Amounts dud fnom point veniuras (Mole b) 168,147 185,556
3,056,031 3,080,915
Trust 2019 2018
HKS'D00  HKS'00D
Qiher receivables and prepayments 250 335
Amaounts dus from subsidiary companies (Mols a) 1.7 2
1861 337

216/485




EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

AMMUAL REPORT 2019 127

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade and olher recelvables are denominated o the following currencies

Group 2019 2018
Percentage Percentage

Hiong Kong dallar A7T% 5%
Ranminbi % 3%
Unsied States dollar 2% 8%
100% 100%

Trust 2019 2018

Poroentage Percentage

Singapore dollar 100 100%

The carnying amounis of trade and other receivables of the Group and of the Trest approximaite their Tair values.

MNofes

(&) Al 1 January 2018, trade receivables of the Group amoanting lo HKS2 617 .272,000.

(b) The amounts due from a related company, associated companies and joint veniures of the Group; and
armounls dee from subskliary campanies of the Trust are unsecured, Inberest free and have no fiked tama of
repaymant.

el A3 Decembes 2019, rade recelvables of the Group amounling fo HKEST 261 000 (2018! HKS51,265.000)
were impaired and provided for.  The impared recelvables are balances mainly related to a customer that
was in financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movermnents of provisions for impairment of trade recefvables of the Group afe as follows:

2018 2016

HES DDO HES HHn

At baginning of tho yoar 51,2585 50,838
Prowishan for impairmant 5 220
Wile back of provision for impairmignt - {5.B03)
Currency transiation differences 1 -
Al end of the year 51,261 51,255

The crealion and release of provisions for impairmeni of receivabbes have been included in the income
slatemant. Amounis charged to the provision for impairment of recenables are gonerally writion off when
there i no expaclation of recovering additional cash

The oiher classes within rede and other receivables do nel conlain impaired assels

The maximum espasure to cradit risk al the reporfing date is the camying value of each class of moeivables
mentangd above

217/485



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

128 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21  Trade and other payables

Group 2019 20ME
HKS'000 HES'000
Trade payables, other payables and accruals 5,441,035 5,511,212
Loans frem non-controlling interests (Mobe a) 155,302 157, 142
Lease labilibes 11,705 -
Drevivative financial mstrements
Intefeat rate swap under for value hedge (Mole 24) 3,647 -
Amounts due o related companies (Note b) 91,059 100,846
Amounts due 1o associated companies (Mote b) 3,859 5,482
Amounts due lo jaint vertues (Nobe b) 16,336 152,838
5,783,133 5,828,221
Trust 2019 2018
HES"000 HES 000
Trade payables, other payables and eccruals 4,021 4 535
Amounits due o
- a related company (Noie b) 12,610 12405
- subsidiary companies (MNote b) 5 38515
16,838 20,555

Trade and othar payables are denominated in the following curmencies:

Group 2018 018
Percentage Percentage
Hang Kang dollar BE% 5%
Ranminbi 34% 25%
100%: 100%
Trust 2018 2018
Percentage Percentage
Hang Kang dollar - 18%
Unéied Slates dollar TE% E0%
Singapore dollar 24 22%
100% 100%
At 31 Decambar 2019, the camying amouwnts of trade and other payables of the Group and of the Trust approximate
thair Fair values.
Moles,

{a)  The loans from non-contredling intarests of the Group aro unsecurad, interest free except for the amount
of HKS30,380.000 (2018; HKS30.380,000) and RMETVD.000.000, approximate fo HKST7.T00.000 (2018
RMBT0,000,000, approximate 1o HEKSTS 800,000) which bear inerast al Hong Kong Dofar Prime Rabe
{2018; Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate) and fxed rate of 2.00% per annum (2018: 2.00% per annumj,
respectively, and have no fixed lerms of repayment and repayable in one year, respectively.

[1=4] Amounts due 1o related companies, associaled companies and joint venlures al e Group, and amowunis

due 1o a related company and subsidiany companies of the Trust are unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed leims of repayment.
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Bank and other debts

Current Hon-current

Group partion partian Total
HES 000 HES 000 HES 000
Linsecured bank loans 192000 18,731,350 18 823350
Secured bank foan 10,545 44 855 55 500
Guaranteed notes 3,900.000 7,800,000 1,700,000
Total principal amount of bank and other debis 4,102 545 26,570,205 30,678,850
Unamortised loan faciities fees and discounts related 1o debts {1627 (117.228] (118.855)
Uniesaised loss on bank and obther debis pursaan! b inlemsl
rale swap contracts {3.64T) - {3647
At 31 Decambar 2015 4,087 271 26,458.077 30,558 348
Unsecuned bank loans 2,510,000 21,313,350 23,823,350
Secured bank loan B.120 57000 86,120
Guaranteed naofes - 7,800,000 7,800,000
Total principal amouni of bank and other debis 2519720 28,170,350 31680470
Unamortrsed loan facities fees and dscounls refaled 1o debls 11.614) 1135.910) (137 .524)
Unreaksed loas on bank and other debis pursuant to inferest
rale swap conlbracls - (B80.318) {B0.318)
At 31 December 2018 2.517.508 28,874,121 31,481,627

The carrying amounis of bank koans of the Group approximale thesr fair values as the bank loans bear foating
interest rales and are repriced within one month at the prevailing markel mierest rales. The loans will b fully
repayable fram March 2020 1o June 2024 (2018; repayable fram Manch 2010 to June 2024).

In March 20156, the Group ssued a S-year USS500 maon 2 B75'% guaranieed nobte dus 2020 Interests rate swaps
are ulissed by the Group in the managemeni of il% inleresi rale exposures. The Group's policy is not o utilise
derivative linancaal instruments. for trading of speculative purposes. The Group has entered info interest rate swap
agreaments with banks 1o swap the fixed interes! rate guaranteed noles o floabng interest rate.

In Seplember 2017, the Group issued a 5-year USS500 milion 2.75% guaranieed nole due 2022, Cross currency
interesl rabe swaps are ubllsed by the Group in the management of its fofeign cumency exposures. The Group's
poliey = Aal to ullme denvative financal iRstrumenta for Fading of speculative pulposes, The Group has anbefed
inlo eross cumency nterest rale swap agreements with banks 1o awap the fixed inlerest rate Unded Siates dodiar
puaranteed notes to fixed interest rate Hong Kong doflar debts

In Movember 2019, the Group issued a 5-year US3500 milion 2.875% guaranteed nole due 2024,

The effective interest rale of the Group's bank and other debis at 31 Decembar 2018 s 2 8% per annum (2018-
3.2% per annumj

Bark and olher debls are denominated in the following currencias,

Greup 2019 2018
Percenlage Percentage

Hong Kong dollar 1% 2%
United States dollar B T
1005 T00%

At 31 December 2010, leasehold land and land use nghts of the Group loteling HK$193,894 000 (2016:
HK$200,770,000) were pledged as securily for a bank loan,
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23  Pansion cbligations
Group 2019 2018
HES'000 HES'000
Defined benefit plans
Pension abbgalions 41,747 56,601
The Group operates a number of defined benefil and defined confribution plans, the assels of which are haid
independently of the Group's assets in truslee admensstened funds.
{a})  Defined benefit plans

The Group’s defined benefit plans in Hong Kong are a contribarory fingl salary pension plan and a non-contrisutory

guaraniesd refurn defied contribution plan

The Group's plans were valued by Towers Walson Hong Kong

Limited, quakfied acluaries a1 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018 using the projeciod unit credit method to

aecounl for the pension accounling costs in scoordance with HKAS 19 (2011] “Employes Benefits®

The principal acluanal assumphbons used for accountng purposes are as foliows

2018 2018
Percentage Percentage

Cescount rate 1.50 2.30-2.40
Fulure salary merpases 400 400
Imterest credited on plan accounts 5, 00-6.00 5 00-8.00
The ameinls ecognised in he consolidated statemen! of fnancial posibion aie delmined s follows.

2019 2018

HE$' 000 HEKS 000

Prasent valua of dafined banafil obligaticns 1,447 445 1,370,653
Fair value of plan assels (1,405 608) {1.314,052)
et defined banalil habililies 41,747 58,601
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23  Pension obligations [Continued)
{a)  Defined benefil plans (Continued)
Tha movements in the present value of the defined banefil liabilities and Hs components are as follows:

Dafined Fair value Het defined

benefits of plan benofit
abligations assels labilities
HKS" 000 HHKS 000 HKS 000
2018
Al January 1.370.853 {1.314,082) 56.801
Mot charge/{credit) to the income statement
Current service cosl 48,138 1,023 50,181
Intaves! costiincome] 30, il (30,187 Toh
B0, 134 (29,174} 50, e
Net charge/|credit) to other comprehensive Income
Remeasuremanis loss/{gan):
Asluatial lsealgain) adsing from
Experiance adjustrment {11,431) - (11,431}
Financial assumptions TTa47 - TTa47
Demagraphic agsumpion 114 114
Felurn on plan sssels sxcluding interest income - (97 248) (87 248)
66,130 (97 248) [31,118)
Other
Contributions paid by the employer - (34, B08) (3 Bl
Caoniributions paid by the employes v (r.707) -
Banalits pad [B3, 7940 H3 7o -
Met transfer 6,550 (6,550} =
AL 31 Decombar 1447445 (1,405 688} 41747
Defined Fair valua Net defined
benefits of plan benefit
obligations assets liabilities
HKS" 000 HHKE 000 HES 000
2018
AL 1 January 1413478 1,332,627} BO.552
Mot charge/{credit) to the income statemant
Current service cosl 52,33 B25 53,151
Intarest costiincomea] 27177 (21,803} 74
75,103 (20,978} 54 125
Met {creditfcharge to other comprehensive Incame
Remeasuremants loss/{gan)
Astuadial lossNgain) atting fram
Experience adjusiment 4,892 - 4,802
Finandal assumplions |65.581) - (65.581)
Demoagraphis assumplion 48 - 48
Relum on plan assels excluding intenest income - 18,728 19.726
(60,541} 18,728 (#0.815)
Qther
Coninbutions paid by the employer - (37,261} {37 261)
Cenirbutions paid by the employes B.200 (B, 20 -
Benalits maid {E4,005) B4, 005 -
Het transler {1,683) 1,663 -
Al 31 Decombor 1.370.653 {1.314.052) 5E.601
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23  Pension obligations [Continued)
{a)  Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Fair value of the plan assels is analysed as follows:

018 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity instrumants 1.018,387 939,337
Dbt instruments 40408 33513
Cash and cthers 45813 .00z
At 31 Decembar 1,405 698 1,314,052
2018 208

Porcentage Porcentage

Equity Instruments

Conglomerates and manufaciuring 2% A%
Conslruclion and mabenaks 1% 1%
Consumer markels 2% 2%
Enengy and wilibes 1% 3%
Financial inslitulions and units trust EE% A%
Health and care 2% A%
Insurance 1% 15
Real estake 1% 1%
Inffmation lechnology 5% 8%
rhers 2% 1%
T3% T1%

D instruments
Gaovarnmand (alhar than US) E% T
Financsad inshtulions T 5%
US Treasury 2% A%
CHhers b% 1%
24% 26%
Cash and others % %
100% 100%

Tha debt instruments ae anaiysed by Bsuar's cadil raling as follows!

2019 0B

Percentage Percentage

ABEIAAA 2% 24%
Aaliaae 18% 17%
Aaziis A% A%
LERIET T %
AA+ 1% 1%
AZIA 1% 1%
AJIA. 6% 6%
Baa1/888+ ™ ™
Baa2/BBB I% A%
Cither lower grade A% A%
Na imvestment grade B% Hoe
100%: 100%:
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23  Pension obligations [Continued)
{a)  Defined benefit plans [Continued)
The fair valua of the above equity instrumenis and debt instruments are delermined based on quoted marke! pricas.

Thare 15 no immediate requirament for the Group 1o fund the defict between the far value of defined benoft plan
agsets and e present value of the defined benefl plan obligabions disclosed &t 31 Decamber 2018 and 2018
Contribulions io fund the obbgations are based upon the recommendations of independent qualified actuaries for
each of the pension plans of the Group fo fully fund the relevant schemes on an cngeing basis. The realisation of
thar daficel is confingant upon the realisation of the acluanal assumphbons made which & dependent upon @ number
of feclars including the maks! perflormance of plan aseslz Funding requirements of (he majer defined benadit
plans of the Group are detailed below

The Group cperates two principal plang in Hong Kong, ©ne plan, which has been closed to new entramts since
1894, provides pension benefils based on the greater of the aggregate of the amployee and amployer vesied
contribullens plus a mindimum Interest therson of 6% per annum, and pension benefils derved by & formula based
on the final salary and years of service. An ndependent acluanal valuation, undertaken for funding purpeses under
tha prosision of Hong Kong's Cecupational Retiremant Schemes Ordinance ("ORS0"), at 30 June 2019 reported
a tunding level of 134% ol the accrued actuarial labililies on an ongoing basis. The valuaton used the attasned
age valuation method and the main assumptions in e valuabon ane an nvestment relurn of 5% per annum, salary
increases of 4% per annuen and interest crediled 1o balances of 6% per annum,  The valualion was prepased by
Tian Keat Aun, a Feliow of The institule of Actuaries, of Towers Walson Hong Kong Limited. The second plan
provides benefits equal lo the employer vesied contnbutions plus 8 minimum inberest thereon of 5% per annum
As al 31 December 2019, vested benefits under this plan are fully funded n accordance with the DRSO funding
requiremnents. During the yeas ended 31 December 2018, forfeded conbibulions lotaling HKS1,026,000 (2018
HK$963.000) were used to reduce the leved of contribulions af the year ended 31 December 2019 and no forfalted
contribution was available at 31 Decamber 2019 (2018: Mil] 1o reducs fulure year's coniributions.

The sensitivity of the defined benelil obbgation 1o changes i the significant pancipal assumMpiions is

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Discount rae 0.25% Decraase by 1.7% Increase by 1 7%
Salary incroase D.25% Increase by 0.3% Decreasa by 0.3%

The above sensdivity anslyses are based on a change in an sssumption while holing all olher gssumplions
constanl. In practce, this is unikely to oceur, and changes in some of the sssumplions may be cormelaled  WWhen
caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuanal assumptions, the same mathod
(presani value of the defined benefil obligation calculaled with the projected unit credd mathod al the end of the
reporting pefiod) hos been applied as when calculating ihe pension Eaniity recognised within the statemani of
financial posdion. The melhads and types of assumplions used in preparing the sensitivily analyss did nol change
compared to previows year.

The Group expects 10 make conlribubions of HKS15 609000 (2018: HKS28 055,000) to the defined banefil plans
during the nexd year,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.8 years as at 31 December 2019
(2018: 7.0 years),

{b)  Defined contribution plans

The Group's cost in respect of defined contrbution plans for the year amounted o HKSGS8 596,000
(2018 HEST3,221 000).
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24  Other non-current liabilities

Group 2019 2018
HKS 000 HH S 000

Drevivative financial nstremants:
Fair value hedges

Inberast rale swaps 3647 60,318

Cesh flow hedges
Cross currency inlarest rale swaps 120,033 80,725
Interesi rale swaps 51,871 18,535
Less; current partion of interest rate swaps under fair value hedges [3.847) -
Non-curmant portion of dernvatne financal instrurments 171,904 157 579
Leass labilites 28047 -
Cithess 123,147 104 631
324 068 262,210

25  Units in issue

Group and Trust Numbar
of units HKL'000
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 31 Decombor 2019 B,711,101,022 GE, 553 B39

All issued units are fully paid and rank parn passu in all respects

26  Investment in a subsidiary company

Trust 2019 2018
HR5'000 HK#000
Investment cost 10,000 10,000
Capital contribetion 40290842 50,562,300
Less: accumulated impaiment (Mote) (24.212.051)  (24,312,051)

25,088,801 26,394,258

Pursuani to an invesiment agreement entered betveen the HPH This! and a whaolli-owned subsidiary, HPHT
Limited, dated 4 Auguat 2011, HFH Trust made capital coninbufkons of HKSET 280,000,000 to HPHT Limited
(*Capital Contributson”) throwgh capitelising the amounts due from the subsidiary. HPH Trust has no right bo reguine
HPHT Limited to relum any Capial Contribution. HPHT Limited may return to HPH Trust any Capial Contribution
al any time in whole or in part. Accordingly, the capital contribution is accounied for as invesiment in a subsidiary
COMmpany.

Details of subssdeary companies of the Group are disciosed in Note 31
Maote

A provsion for impairment of the investment in HPHT Limisted amounting 1o HK324 2 bdlion was recogaised in 2018,
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Hotes to consolidated statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations are as follows:

2019 018
HHS'D0D HK%° 000
Qperaling profi 3430927 3,551,742
Doprociation and amaortisation 3079672 3,078,015
Met loss on disposal of Axed assets and invesimeanis 3,205 17,060
Dividiend incoma {25, 748) 149, 788)
Interest mcome {142 BAE) {108 428)
Oparating profif before werking capital changas 6,345,157 6,486 508
Decreass in imseniores T61 BATT
(Incraasaldecrease in rade and other recaivables 138,544 148158
Movemant m balances with associaled companies and jonl vanlures (60,264 27182
Increase{decrease) in trade &nd other payables 98,038 (631,020)
Ineraase in penskon obligations 23,378 16,864
Cash genemaled from operations 0,369 406 6,055 268
Reconciliation of liabilities ariging from financing activities are as follows:
Cross currensy
interast rate
sWaps contract
and interest rate
swap contracts
Bank held to hedge
Dividend lpans Bank against foreign
payable  ropayable laans currency risks and
o non- not  repayable fair value risks of
controlling  exceeding more than Guaranteed Guaranieed noles Lease
intarests 1 ywar 4 yoar noles and Bank loans  liabllities Tatal
HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HES'000  HK$'000 HKS'000
ALY January 2019 = 2517506 21268658 7.705463 157.5r49 = ¥ B43.HE
Cash fiows (Mote) (1424.044) 25100400 (2288775)  3ESTM1 - (43700  [2.478.287)
Fereign exchanpe
adustmants [B.114) (B0 11,5000 - - - (10,684)
Fair valug
adjustmants - - - 56872 - - 55872
Transfor bobwoan
calagories - 7545 (302 545) - - - ¥
Diresdends o nan-
conlradling inledesls 1433158 - - - - = 1433158
Increasa in lease
liabdilins - - - - - 44,132 44132
Cther non-cash
movements - 1814 Lriey 150058 [12.778) DED AT BB
AL 31 December
18 — 2545 18708050 1184513 1dd 801 40,722 30741871

Mot The talal cash oulfiow for the leases in 2019 was HKST4, 791,000,
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136 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27  HNotes to consolidated statement of cash flows (Continued)

()

{a)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows, (Continued)

Cross currency
interest rate
swaps confract
and interest rate

SWAp CONIracts

Bank held to hedge
Dividend loans Bank against foreign
payable  repayable loans currency rigks and
1o nof- nat  repayable fair value risks of
controlling exceeding more than Guaranteed Guaranieed notes
interests 1 year 1 year notes and Bank loans Total
HHE3" 000 HES"000 HKS'00Q HR3 00D HES 000 HES 000
At 1 January 201E - M7 140 20662168 11590772 BOBZT 32,550,708
Cazh fiows [1,340,088) (347070 3201975  (3.900,000) = (2,385.124)
Foreign exchange
adjustments 10811 (1300 [2,900) - - 7881
Fait walus
adjustments - - = (B06) - 1906)
Transler bebwesn
categores - 2517508 (2.517 506) - - -
Devidends b nod-
controling intesests 1,329 178 - - - - 1,328.178
Othat non-cash
movemenis = = 34 520 15,587 BE. 552 147 468
AL 31 Decambar
2010 = 3517506 21,268,658 7705463 157,579  31,848.306
Commitments

The Group’s capilal commiments for fixed assets and projects under development are as follows:

2018 20186

HKS'000  HKS'000

Caontracied bat not provided for 106,275 32,230
Authonsed bul not contracied for (Mole) 881478 724415
a7, 754 758,645

Mofa:

The capilal commamaents wane budgaled amounts estimaled for futune capilal expendiures of the Group. Thess
eglintaies are subpdl Lo a rigorous authorisalion process belorg Bw expendilune is commilied,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Commitments (Continuod)

The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint veniures are as follows:

Contracted bui not provided for
Authersed bul not contracied for

2018 2018
HES D00 HES'0D00
- 17,860
S, ..
79,746 102,352

The Group leases vanous offices premises and port taclities under non-cancellable leases (2018; operabing leases)
expinng within ona manth to ten monlhs. The leases have varying lerms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

On renewal, the larms of the leases are renegotated,

The future minimum lease paymanis under lease not recognisad in the financial statements are as follows

Within cne ysar
Baltween o 1o five years

2018 2018
HK3'000 HES'000
602 7,501

- 178

02 T 768

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregale minimaem loase recakable under non-cancallable operaling

leases for afice premises and por facilles as follows:

Within cme year

Between one and two years
Between two and thres years
Batwman thraa io four years
Between four o five years

227/485

2018 2018
HK$"000 HKS'000
38,532 37,631
25,354 32,023
8,587 19,745
16,528 11,985
8,525 9,040
105,536 110,424
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138 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29  Related parties transactions
Significant transactions between the Group and related parties dunng the year thal are carried outl In the normal
course of business are dsclosed below. Oufsianding balances with associated companies, pent venbures and
Group companies are disclosed in Notes 15, 16, 20 and 21.

(i Incoemi from and expenses 10 relalod paries

2019 2018
HES A HES D
Income
Container handling fees recaived from joint venlures, an associated
company and refated companies [Nale a) 38,772 41553
Management, service and support fea recenved from refated companies

{Nate b) 48, 500 50,189
Transporation management services fee incame from a joint venture and

relaled companies (Mole c) 38,215 A5 7TE
Intares! income from a join? venture and an associated company (Note d) 18,068 20,040
Exponses:

Container handling charges paid to joinl ventures, associated companies

and refaled companies (Nole ) 23,148 28,531
Lease rendals on premises and port facilities paid 1o a joint venture, an

associated company and elated companies (Note ] 35419 6308
Trustee-Manager managament fees (Note f)

- Baso Toe 24818 23 088
Global suppon senvices fees to a related company (Note g) 147,708 141,787
Infarmelion technology {"1T") suppor and maintenance saivice fees paid

1o 8 joint veniure and relaled companies (Mola h) 46,973 40,154
Telecommunicalon chamges pald 1o related companies (Mol () 1,339 1527
Securnly guards servite lees paid 1o a relaled compaiy (Male |) 4 B3 9517
Maoles:

{a})  Contamer handiing fees recerved from joint ventwes, an associated company and refated companies
wam charged at terms pursuant fo the relevant agreements

{b)  Management, service and support fee recevad from related companies were charged al lerms
mubealy agresd.

{a) Ravenue from a poind wenlure and relaled companies for the provision of transportabon managemant
services was charged 81 pnces and terms mutually agheed

(d} A loan of HKS120,000,000 (2018: HKS120,000,000) provided to a joint veniuwre & interest
bearing at HIBOR plus 2.1% par annum (2018: HIBOR plus 2.1% per annum}. Anoihar lean of
RMB4Z0,000,000, approximate 1o HKS4E6 200,000 (2018 RMB200.000,000, approximate ho
HK5342,000,000) provided 1o an #ssocialed company is unsecuied, interes! beanng 3t @ ixed rate of
4.0% per annwm (2018; fived rats of 4.0% per annum)

(g}  Comamer handling charges and lease rentals paid 1o peint venlures, associated companies and
melaled companies wene charged a1 terms pursasant ko relevan sgresmenis
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25  Related parties transactions (Continued)

i

(i)

{iify

fivh

Incame from and expenses lo relaled partes (Contnued)
in The Trusiee-Manager's management fees were changed in accordance with the Trust Dead.

The base fes was charged al a fxed fes of USS2 500,000 (equivalent to HKS19 500,000) per annum
which iz subjec! lo increase ssch year from 2012 by auch percentage representing the percentags
increase in the Hong Hong Composite Consumer Price Index. The bage fee for the year ended 31
December 2019 s payable i cash. As lhe December 2019 fgure for the Hong Kong Composite
Consumer Prica Index & wel to be published as at the date of preparalion of these financial
slalements, the adjusiment 1o the base fee, il required, will be accounted for in the subseguent
financial ysar

{a) Global suppon! services fees in respect of administration senvices, and licence for carfain intelachsal
propeny rights wene charged 8 prices and lerms mutually agreed,

{h}  IT support and manienance services fees in respect of the support and maintenance of IT systems
paid fo a8 joint venture and related companies ware charged at prices and terme mutually agread

1] Telecommunicalion charges paid to relaled companies wane charged at pnces and lerms mulually
agreed,

{l Security guards service fees pad to 8 related company were charged st prices and terme mutually
agprand.

Other ransactions wilh relaled parties

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group scld and acgured fixed assats to/from an asscociated
company and related companies which wera charged at prices and ferms mulually agreed as bolow!

19 2018
HHKS'000 HKE'000
Sales of fixed assels to an assoclalad company and a related
company - 15. 399
Purchases of fixed assels from an associated company and
relaled companies T.082 28.049

Joinl Operabng Alllance of the Kwal Teng conlainar lerminals

Pursuant 1o the Hong Kong Seaport Joint Operating Alliance Agreement entered into by Hongsong
International Terminals Limited, COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Hong) Limited, Asia Container Terminals
Limiled and Medem Terminals Limiled, with effect from 1 April 2019, thay collaborate with each other for the
efficienl managemen! and aparabon of the 23 berths across Termanals 1. 2, 4.5, 8, T, 8 and 9 (together the
“Combined Terminal FacMies™) m Kwai Tsmng. The revenue end costs from the managemeant and oparabon
of the facilities of the Combined Terminal Facilities are shared among the parties al a pre-agreed rabio,

Hey managemeni compensation
Key manegement of the Group includes managing directors and key management of the deep-water

container ports of the Group. The compensation paid or payabla o key management for employes services
is shown below,

2019 2018
HES 000 HKS000
Salaries and employes banafits 27 800 30.158
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30  Financial risk and copital managemeont
fa)  Cash management and funding

Tha majp financial nstrumants of the Group include liquid funds, investments, trade and other receivables. trade
and othed payables and bormowings. Detalls of these financial instruments are disclosed in the espactive notes o
e financial stalemants.  The risk management programme of the Group i designed to minimise the financial raks
ol the Group. These riaxs inclode eredit sk, nlerest rate riak, foreign currency risk and liquidity rak

The Group generally oblains kag-term financng o meat funding requirements. Management of the Group regularly
and closely monilors its overall nel deblt position and reviews its lunding costs and malurity profile bo facilitate
refingnging.

{b}  Caplial management

The Group's siralegy invelves adopling and maintaining an appropriate mix of debt and equity bo ensume oplirmal
returns |o unitholders, while maintaining sulficient Nlexisldy to implamen] growth siralegles

The Group may consider divessilying ils sources of debt financing by accessing the debl capital markeis through
tfvr issuance of bonds fo optimise the deb? maturity profde and fo make adjustmaents fo e capital struciure in light
of changes in econamic condilions

The Group has complizd with all extemally imposed capital requirements which include leverage ralio.

At 31 December 2019, 1otal equity amsunied to HKS45,563,323,000 (2018; HKEAE 888,150,000, and consolidated
net gebt, which represeénts cash (ess bank and other debis, of the Group was HKSZ23,638684 000 (2018
HK525,123,116,000)

{c)  Credit exposure

The Group's holdings of cash and cash equivalents, cross currency inleres] rale swaps confract and inberesl rate
swaps contract with financial institutions expose the Group to counterparty credit sk, The Group conlrals iis eredit
risk {0 non-performance by s counterparties through regular review end monitonng of their credit atings.

The receivables from custemers and other counterparies also expose the Group fo credit risk, The Group
conirols fe credit risk by bssessing the credit quakly of the customer, taking into account A8 financial posftion, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limils are =&t based on inlemal or external ratings n accordance with
limits 52t by the managemeni. The ubEsaton of credit imits s regularly maniored.

The ECL on rade receivables are calculaled using a provision malnx whers a provision rabe appliss based on is
historical observed default rates. On that basis. no material additional ECL was recognised as at 31 Decemiber
2018 and 2018,

{d]  Interest rate exposure
The Group’s main inlerest nsk exposures relate o cash and cash equivalents, loans from non-contralling Interests,
bank amnd other debis. The Oqoup manages its interest rale sxposure with a focus on reducing the Group's overadl
cost of dabl and exposure o changes in inlerest rates.

The impact af a hypothetical 5 basis points increase in markel inferest rate at the end of the reporting penod wousd
reduce fhe Group's profit and unitholdars' equity by HKS9 661,000 (2018: HIKS11, 344 000).

The Group has enterad into cross curmency mleres rate swap contracts and inlarest rale swap contracts o achieve
an approphiale mix of fixed and Noalng rate exposure consislent wills e Group's polcy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

Interest rate exposure (Continued)

The sifects of tha interest rale swap contracts and cross currency inferesl rale swap confracts on the Group's
financial position and performance are as follows

2019 2018
HHS' D00 HKS'000
Cammying amount (kabiies) {175,551) (146 496)
Motianal amaunt 1.700,000 11700000
Wity divle March 2020 to March 2020 1o
March 2023 March 2023
Hedge ratio I8 M
Changs in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since 1 January BT 424 (T4.620)
Changs in value of hedged item used to delermine hadge effectivenass (67 424) 74,620

Foreign currency exposure

The Group has entered NS0 cross clumency interest rate swap contracts to hedge it foreign cumency exposure n
respact of Bank bormowings denaminated in Linited Slates dollars.

The effecis of the cross currency inferas] rate swap contracts on the Group's inancial position and performance ane
a6 lolows:

2019 2018
= _HKF 000 __HKF000
Carrying amaunt (Rabdlies) (B8, 283} (BO,723)
Maotional amount 7.B00,000 7,800,000
Maturity dale September 2022  September 2022

fo March 2023 o March 2023
Hedge ratio i 5s | 11
Changs in fair valee of culzianding hedging instruments since 1 January 48,136 (26, 418)
Change in value of hedged item used to delarming hedge efeclivenass (48, 136) 26416

For overseas subsidianies, associated companios and posnl venlures, which consist of non-Hong Kong dollar assets.
the Group generally moniors the development of the Group’s cash fows and debl markel and, when approphiale,
would expect o relinance these businesses with loeal cummency barrawings.

Camrency risk as defined by HKFRS T arises on financial instruments denominaled in a curmancy that is not the
functional currency and being of a monetary nature. Diferences resulting from the tanslation of financial
slalements of overseas subsidiaries inlo the Group's presentation currency are therefore not taken nlo
censideration for the punposa of the sensilivity analysis lor curency risk,

The enpact of a8 hypolhebcal 5% weakening of the HK dollar against all exchange reles at the end ol the reporiing
period. with all other vamables held consiant. on the Group's profit for the year = sal out as below.

Hypothetical increase/
{decreasa) in profit

2019 2018

HHS 000 HKS'000

Renminbi (25,378) 26,059
United States dollar {1,052 553 (1,108 387
Singapore dollar (28} (103}
Qihars -] 3

(,078.051)  (1.082428]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financiol risk and copital managoement (Continued)
Ligquidity exposure
Tha following tables datad the remaining coniraclual maturites al the end of the reporting period of the Group's and

Fur Trust's financal kabidias, which ame based on contraciual undiscountad prncipal cash flows and e eardest
date on which the Group snd the Trust can be requined 1o pay

Group Contractual maturities
Tatal Within
Carrying undiscounted Within 2105 Aler
Amaounis cash flows 1 year years 5 years
HKS 000 HKS" 000 HEKS 000 HES'000 HKS 000
2018
Trade and othar payables 5,783,133 5,783,133 5,783,133 - -
Bank and olher debts 30,556 348 30,678,850 4,102 545 26,576,305 -
Qithat non-curment liabilities 200,621 128,657 57 875 70,782 -

36,540 402 35,500,840 0.043.553 26 647,087 -

2018

Trade and oiher payables 5,028 231 5,928 221 5.828.231 - -
Bank and other debts 31401 827 31.680.470 25168120 29,162 510 6,840
Qthar non-currend liabilitas 262.210 {8,019) 38,807 {46.926) -

37 BA2 058 3T 608,672 8486148 20,116,884 6,840

The lable for the Group above excludes inferes! accruing and payable on ¢artain of these liabillies which ane
eslimated to be HKS1,127 440,000 (2018. HKE843, 504, 000) In “within 1 year" malusily band, HK34 778,607,000
(2018: HKS1,731,732,000) in “within 2 lo 5 years® maturity band, nil (2018: HKS152.000) in “afer 5 years”™ maturity
band, and after assuming the effect of intarest rates with respect to variable rate financial liabiities remaining
constanl and no change in aggregale principal amount of financial abilites other than repayment al scheduled
maturity as reflecied in the tabie

Trust Contractual maturities.
Tatal Within
Carrying undiscounted Within 2105
amaunis cash flows 1 yoar yaars
HEE 00 HEE000 HES 000 HES 000
2018
Trade and othar payablas 16,834 16,836 16,834 -
2018
Trade and oihar payablas 20.555 20 555 20,555 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk and capital management |(Continued)

Financial instruments by calegory

The following table shows the classificalion category and carmyng amount as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2018 under HKFRS 8 for the Group’s financial assats and financzal liabibties:

2019 2018
Note __Classification HKSO00  HKS000
Financial assets
Listed equity security 17 Fwaci 38,813 38,150
River Porls Economis Benefits 17 FVoIC] 338,800 428,500
Cross cumency mnierest rele swaps 17 Fair value-hedges 30,750 -
Cash end cash equivalents 19 Amortised cosl 7,040,188 6,568,354
Trade and oiher recoivables 20 Amaortised cost 3056037 3060815
10,504 360 10,085,018
019 2018
HNote Classification HEKS 000 HES 000
Finaneial liabilities
Bank and other debts 22 Amaortzsed cost 30,556,348 JA 62T
Trade and oiher payables 21 Amortised cost 5,7OT. 781 5,828 21
Lease |labilities 21.24 Amuortised cost 40,722 -
Cross curmency inferest mle swaps 24 Fair value-hedges 120,053 80,725
Inferest rale swaps 24 Fair value-hedges 55518 76,854
35,540,403 7577427
Reproganing
Financial assets measured at
FQCH 3Irr4a13 487,750
Amodtised cost 10,096,187 b.g2r 269
Fair value-hedges 0,750 -
Financial liabilitles meazured at
Amodtised cost 36,304 831 IrA10.B48
Fair vaiue-hedges 175551 157,578
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30  Financial risk and capital management (Continued)

{h]  Fair value estimation

The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets/[liabifikes). These fair value
marasuraments are categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to vaksation
technigues used, The difefent levels are defined a8 Tolows

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) m actvve markets for identical assets or liabilibes;

Level 2: Inparts other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thal are observable for the assets or liabiites,
withar direclly {i.0. as prices) or indireclly (0. derived frem prces), and

Lewvel 3 [npute for the assels o lmbilibes thal are nel based on cbeervable marked data (| ¢, uncbeerable inpuls),

Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Naote HKE 000 HES000 HHEE"000 HEE 00D
AL 31 December 2019
Listed equity security 17 38,813 - - 3asi3
River Ports Economic Benefits 17 - - 338,600 338 600
Cash flow haedges
Cross currency intarest rate swaps 17 - 30,750 - 30,750
Faii value hedges
Intasas! rate swaps 4 - (3.847T) - (3.84T)
Cash flow hedges
Cross currancy inlecast rabe swaps 24 - (120,033 - {120,033)
Interest rate swaps 24 - (51.871) - (51.871)
38,813 {14 801) 338,600 232812
Lavel 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Tatal
Naote HES" 000 HES 000 HKS 000 HES000
At 31 December 2018
Listed equily securily Lh) 39,150 - - 39030
River Ports Economic Benefits 7 - - 428 600 428 600
Falr value hadges
Interast rate swaps 4 - (B0.319) - (B0.319)
Cash flow hedges
Cross currency intereslt rate swagps 24 - (B0, 725) - (B0.725)
Interesl rate swaps P ] - (18.933) - (18.333)
39,150 {157 570 A28 800 30,471

Tha fair value of the cioss currency mleres! rale swaps and inleres) rale svaps included n level 2 calegory above
are estimalbed using the preseni value of the estimaled future cash flows based on observable yeld curves, The
far value of financal insiruments that are not traded in active mamket (level 3) is delermined by discounted cash
fiv analyss with reference bo inputs such as dividend stream.

Changing unobservable inpuls used in Level 3 valualion 1o reasonable allernative assumplions would not have
significant impact on the Group's profil of lose

During the years ended 31 Deacember 2018 and 2018, there wete no transfers betwsen the Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measuremenls.

At 31 Decembes 2019, the fair vaiue of bank and other debls (Note 227) was HKS30 641.0 mlion (31 Decamber

2018 HKS31.403.9 milen), The carryng amounts of the remalning financia! assels and financial liabilities
approxmate their fair values
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g

fa)

List of subsidinry companies of the Group

Details of prncipal subsciary companies of the Group al 31 Decamber 2018 and 218 are as loliows

Particulars of )
Place of issued share Effective
incorporation capitaliregisiered interest held

Hame establishment Principal activities capital 2019 2018

HPHT Limited!"! Hong Kong tmvestmunt holding HES10,0:0,000 100% 100%

Giantfield Resources Britesh Virgn Bslands  Investment holding 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%

Limited of U331 each
HIT invesimeants British Vingn kslands  Investment holding 20 ordinary "A" 100% 100%
Limited™ shares of U551
each
B non-waling
preferred B
shares of U531
each

Pearl Smnt Limited™! Brbsh Vogn lslands Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100 % 100%

of U551
Hongkong Intermational  Haong Kong Development and HKS20 100% 100%
Terminals Limited™ operation of container
lermnaks

‘Yantian Intemational China Development and HKS2 400,000,000 S5641% S641%
Container Terminals operalion of container
Limitad™ fermmals

‘Yantian Intemational China Development and HKS6,056,060,000 5184% 51.64%
Container Terminals operation of container
{Phase |Il} Limided" fermmnats

Shenzhen Pingyan Chana Provison of vanous RMB 150, 000,000 5184% 5164%
Multimodal Cormpany transporiaton services
Limibed "

Shenzhen Yantian China Development and RMB2 343 300000 S5164% 51.64%
Viest Porl Torminals operation of container
Limitad " lermruiis
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 List of subsidiary companies of the Group (Continued)

{a) Details of prncipal subsaiary companies of the Group at 31 December 2018 and 2018 are as loliows: [Contnusd)

Particulars of ]
Place of issued share Effective
imcorporation capitaliregisiered inferest held
Name establishment Principal activities capltal 2018 2018
Huichsson Pors Hong Kong Investment holding HKS10,000,000 T0.45% 79.45%
Yandian Limied™
Watlrus Limited'" Briksh Virgen Islands  Investment holding 32 A shates B4 H3% B4 BE%
of U351 each
580 "B" shanes
of U551 each

Sigma Enterprises

Brilish Vingn Islands

Investment holding

2005 “A7 ahares

T9.43% T9.45%

Lirmited " of USS1 each
8,424 “B* shares
of LI551 each
Hufchison Pors British Virgn lslands  Investment holding 200 ordinary 100%  100%
Yanlian Investmants shares of US31
Limnited = each
Birrong Limited British Virgn kslands  investment holding 10,000 ordnary 00%  100%
sharas of U551
each
Hufchison Shenzhen British Virgn islands  Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%  100%

East nvesiments
Limibed=

43} Audibed by ProswabemouseCoopsns netwark frms

2] Mot required 1o be audted Lnder 1he Eas of he country of incorporation

Appoiniment of audiors

of U551

The Trust has complied with Rules 712 and T15 of he Lsling Mamal of the SGX-5T in relaton 1o its aedilos.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31  List of subsidiary companies of the Group (Continued)

(b}  Material non-controllng nlerests
‘Yantian Intemational Container Terminals Limited, Yantian International Container Terminals (Phase 11} Limited,
Shenzhen Yanban Wesl Porll Terminals Limded, Wallrus Limiled and Sigma Enterprises Limited are the subsidiary
companies wilh non-controlling inleresls thal are malenal (o the Group

Sel out bebow are the surmmarised financial information for these subsidany companies:

Summarisad slatomont of financial positon

2019 2018
HHES'000 HKS$"000
Mon-curment assats 63, 729 101 65,581 163
Canment assels 6,850,540 6,597 197
Tolal assels 70,579 641 72178 360
Nan-current liabilities B,353.015 B 401 628
Current babuldies 3,858,242 4 908 408
Tofal liabikbes 12,208 257 13,310,234
Summarised income slatement
2018 2018
HES'000 HEKS'000
Revenue and ather income 7,359 662 T.403.373
Mef profit for the year 2903 67E 2,957 562
Summarigad siatement of cash flows
2019 2018
HKS"000 HHKS'000
Met change In cash and cash equivalenis 213,827 242 3BT
Dividends paid be non-controlling inlarests 1,424 044 1,340,088

Tha inlormaton above is the amount bafone inker-company eliminations.
32 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements sel oul on pages 93 1o 147 were approved by the Board of Direclors of the Trusbes-
Wanage: for issue an 10 February 2020
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2018 12 31
2018 12 31
2018 2017

4 11,482,562 159,263 11,550,957 160,212
(4,143,451) (57,470)  (4,131,564) (57,305)
(286,534) (3,974)  (288,020) (3,995)
(3,076,015) (42,664) (3,003,337) (41,656)

129,122 1,791 25,400 352
(553,942) (7,683)  (551,983) (7,656)
(7,930,820)  (110,000) (7,949,504)  (110,260)

5 3,551,742 49,263 3,601,453 49,952

6 (1,021,801) (14,172)  (856,887) (11,885)

(106,904) (1,483)  (116,405) (1,615)

54,279 753 76,375 1,059

14(b)  (11,359,000)  (157,549) - -

16 (930, 000) (12,899) - -

(9,811,684)  (136,088) 2,704,536 37,512

7 (434,368) (6,025)  (487,063) (6,756)

(10,246,052)  (142,113) 2,217,473 30,756

(1,305, 268) (18,104) (1,273,292) (17,661)

HPH
9 (11,551,320)  (160,217) 944,181 13,096
HPH . (132.60) (18.39) 10.84 1.50
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2018 2017
(10,246,052)  (142,113) 2,217,473 30,756
40,815 566 220,539 3,059
(85,522) (1,186) (1,214) an
(10,524) (146) - -
(23,148) (321) 31,913 443
(595) () - -
(97,044) (1,346) (8.458) 117)
(193,381) (2,682) 268,441 3,723
(369,399) (5,124) 511,221 7,001
(10,615,451)  (147,236) 2,728,694 37,847
(1,201,250) (16,661)  (1,410,492) (19,564)
(11,816,701)  (163,898) 1,318,202 18,283
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2018 12 31

2018 2017
10 24,629,553 341,612 24,626,394 341,568
11 996,397 13,820 1,970,166 27,326
12 38,373,329 532,238 39,724,150 550,974
13 11,619 161 12,667 176
14(a) 5,835,978 80,945 6,170,184 85,580
14(b) 11,270,044 156,316 22,629,044 313,865
15 945,342 13,112 754,247 10,461
16 2,683,777 37,224 3,835,883 53,204
17 560,929 7,780 739,326 10,254
18 18,528 257 22,712 315
85,325,496 1,183,465 100,484,773 1,393,724
19 6,566,354 91,075 6,768,082 93,873
20 3,060,915 42,455 3,446,205 47,799
103,137 1,431 109, 655 1,521
9,730,406 134,961 10,323,942 143,193
21 5,928,221 82,224 6,741,629 93,506
22 2,517,506 34,918 4,241,186 58,825
358,228 4,969 409,568 5,681
8,803,955 122,111 11,392,383 158,012
926,451 12,850  (1,068,441) (14,819)
86,251,947 1,196,315 99,416,332 1,378,905
22 28,974,121 401,871 28,248,895 391,812
23 56,601 785 80,552 1,117
18 10,290,856 142,734 10,635,108 147,509
24 262,210 3,637 129,871 1,801
39,583,788 549,027 39,094,426 542,240
46,668,159 647,287 60,321,906 836,665
25 68,553,839 950,842 68,553,839 950,842
(41,786,104)  (579,573) (28,260,285)  (391,970)
HPH 26,767,735 371,268 40,293,554 558,872
19,900, 424 276,019 20,028,352 277,793
46,668,159 647,287 60,321,906 836,665
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26

19
20

21

25

2018 2017
26,390,258 366,033 52,351,427 726,114
4,525 63 2,954 4

337 5 1,439 20

4,862 67 4,393 61
20,555 285 30,312 420
(15,693) (218) (25,919) (359)
26,374,565 365,815 52,325,508 725,755
68,553,839 950,842 68,553,839 950,842
(42,179,274)  (585,027) (16,228,331)  (225,087)
26,374,565 365,815 52,325,508 725,755
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2018 12 31
2018 2017
27 6,055,269 83,987 7,143,141 99,075
(984,652) (13,657)  (757,873) (10,512)
(825,547) (11,450)  (645,482) (8,953)
4,245,070 58,879 5,739,786 79,611
- - (672,789) (9,332)
(40,050) (555)  (315,350) (4,374)
(743,559) (10,313)  (841,350) (11,670)
22,074 306 2,194 30
48,848 678 21,645 300
78,452 1,088 130,766 1,814
99,979 1,387 64,457 894
181,700 2,520 1,600 22
(352,556) (4,890) (1,608,827) (22,314)
5,040,750 69,915 11,736,814 162,790
(6,077,010) (84,288) (12,746,650)  (176,796)
(8,775) 122) (29,250) (406)
HPH
(1,709,118) (23,705)  (2,273,597) (31,535)
(1,340,089) (18,587)  (1,050,073) (14,565)
(4,094,242) (56,787)  (4,362,756) (60,511)
(201,728) (2,798)  (231,797) (3,215)
6,726,082 93,291 6,957,879 96,506
19 6,524,354 90,493 6,726,082 93,291
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2018 12 31

2017 12 31 68,553,839 (19,474)  (55,471) (1,214) - 141,174 (28,325,300) 40,293,554 20,028,352 60,321,906

HKFRS - - - 19,578 (19,578) - - - - -

2018 68,553,839 (19,474)  (55,471) 18,364 (19,578) 141,174 (28,325,300) 40,293,554 20,028,352 60,321,906
- - - - - - (11,551,320) (11,551,320) 1,305,268 (10,246,052)
- - - - - 40,815 - 40,815 - 40,815
- - - (85,522) - - - (85,522) - (85,522)
- - - - (10,524) - - (10,524) - (10,524)
- (15,198) - - - - - (15,198) (7,950)  (23,148)
- (1,595) 1,000 - - - - (595) - (595)
- - (97,044) - - - - (97,044) - (97,044)
- (97,313) - - - - - (97,313)  (96,068)  (193,381)
- (114,108)  (96,044)  (85,522)  (10,524) 40,815 - (265,381) (104,018)  (369,399)
- (114,106)  (96,044)  (85,522)  (10,524) 40,815 (11,551,320) (11,816,701) 1,201,250 (10,615,451)
- 35 - - - - (35) - - -
- - - - - - (1,709,118) (1,709,118) - (1,709,118)
- - - - - - - - (1,329,178) (1,329,178)

2018 12 31 68,553,839  (133,545)  (151,515)  (67,158)  (30,102) 181,989 (41,585,773) 26,767,735 19,900,424 46,668,159
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2017 68,553,839  (182,919)  (47,013) - (79,365) (26,995,843) 41,248,699 19,433,172 60,681,871
- - - - - 944,181 944,181 1,273,292 2,217,473
- - - - 220,539 - 220,539 - 220,539
- - - (1,214) - - (1,214) - (1,214)
- 16,479 - - - - 16,479 15,434 31,913
- - (8,458) - - - (8,458) - (8,458)
- 146,675 - - - - 146,675 121,766 268,441
- 163,154 (8,458) (1,214) 220,539 - 374,021 137,200 511,221
- 163,154 (8,458) (1,214) 220,539 944,181 1,318,202 1,410,492 2,728,694
- 291 - - - (41) 250 (250) -
- - - - - (2,273,597) (2,273,597) - (2,2713,597)
- - - - - - - (815,062)  (815,062)
2017 12 31 68,553,839 (19,474)  (55,471) (1,214) 141,174 (28,325,300) 40,293,554 20,028,352 60,321,906
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2017 12 31 950,842 (270) (769) an - 1,958  (392,872) 558,872 277,793 836,665
HKFRS - - - 272 72) - - - - -
2018 950,842 (270) (769) 255 @72) 1,958  (392,872) 558,872 277,793 836,665
- - - - - - (160,217)  (160,217) 18,104 (142,113)
- - - - - 566 - 566 - 566
- - - (1,186) - - - (1,186) - (1,186)
- - = - (146) - - (146) = (146)
- (211) - - - - - (211) (110) (321)|
- (22) 14 - - - - ®) - (©))
- - (1,346) - - - - (1,346) - (1,346)|
- (1,350) - - - - - (1,350) (1,332) (2,682)|
- (1,583) (1,332) (1,186) (146) 566 - (3,681) (1,443) (5,124)
- (1,583) (1,332) (1,186) (146) 566  (160,217)  (163,898) 16,661  (147,236)
- 0 - - - - ©) - - -
- - - - - - (23,705)  (23,705) - (23,705)
- - - - - - - - (18,436) (18,436)
2018 12 31 950,842 (1,852) (2,102) (931) (418) 2,524 (576,795) 371,268 276,019 647,287
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2017 950,842 (2,537) (652) - (1,101)  (374,432) 572,119 269,538 841,658
- - - - - 13,096 13,096 17,661 30,756
- - - - 3,059 - 3,059 - 3,059
- - - an - - Qan - @)
- 229 - - - - 229 214 443
- - 17) - - - @17) - Q1)
- 2,034 - - - - 2,034 1,689 3,723
- 2,263 @17) an 3,059 - 5,188 1,903 7,001
- 2,263 17) an 3,059 13,096 18,283 19,564 37,847
- 4 - - - &) 3 ©) -
- - - - - (31,535)  (31,535) - (31,535)
- - - - - - - (11,305)  (11,305)

2017 12 31 950,842 (270) (769) @an 1,958  (392,872) 558,872 277,793 836,665
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68,553,839 (16,228,331) 52,325,508
- (24,241,825) (24,241,825)

- (1,709,118) (1,709,118)
68,553,839 (42,179,274) 26,374,565
68,553,839 (13,924,826) 54,629,013
- (29,908) (29,908)

- (2,273,597) (2,273,597)
68,553,839 (16,228,331) 52,325,508
950,842 (225,087) 725,755

- (336,234) (336,234)

- (23,705) (23,705)

950,842 (585,027) 365,815
950,842 (193,137) 757,704

- (415) (415)

- (31,535) (31,535)

950,842 (225,087) 725,755
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289
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2011 18
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HKFRS
HKFRS
)
FvOCI
FVOCI
HKFRS HKAS 39
( ECL )
FVOCI HKFRS 15
HKFRS
12 ECL
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HKFRS
2018
)
2017 12 31
ECL HKFRS
2018
HKFRS
HKFRS

2018
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2017 12 31 HKAS 39
(1,214) -
HKFRS
19,578 (19,578)
2018 18,364 (19,578)
HKFRS 2018 12 31
HKFRS HKFRS HKFRS
(96,046) 10,524 (85,522)
- (10,524) (10,524)
HKFRS
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 ( )
() () () ()
)
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)

2018 HKFRS 15

HKFRS @

HKAS 28 @

HKFRS 2015- 2017 @ HKFRS
HkFRS 16 P

HK  IFRIC 23 ®

HKAS 19 @

2
HKFRS @

2
HKAS HKAS @

HKERS 10 HKAS 28 ®

@
@
®

2019

2020
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HKFRS 16
HKFRS 16 HKFRS 16
2019
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 16 HKAS 17
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 16
@
2018 12 31
© (D
2018 12 31

®)
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@
4
@
2018 2017
11,134,666 11,224,487
187,958 203,705
36,962 36,876
13,374 14,513
1,173 1,209
11,374,133 11,480,790
108,429 70,167
11,482,562 11,550,957
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V)
HPH
HPH
HPH
2018 2017 2018 2017
3,883,780 4,138,146 24,050,421 27,823,603
7,598,782 7,412,811 61,275,075 72,661,170
11,482,562 11,550,957 85,325,496 100,484,773
5
2018 2017

17 46,490 -
9,499 6,828
. 14,103 15,009
- 991 1,392
- 1,292,271 1,285,796
- 535 523
- 334,206 334,206
1,449,003 1,382,812
17,069 5,591
- 36,442 41,998
- 1,393,400 1,369,538
- 127,346 128,349

265/485



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 2017
705,948 568,578
261,925 227,492

3,186 3,061
50,742 57,756
906 15,656

(906) (15,656)
1,021,801 856,887
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2018 2017
774,087 794,593
(339,719) (307,530)
434,368 487,063
2018 2017
2,529,941 2,744,566
695,888 732,804
(485,808) (429,104)
(3,751) (3,920)
93,248 82,428
121,253 115,617
(80) (10,162)
(1,645) (2,661)
13,579 860
1,475 1,261
209 (60)
434,368 487,063

114
16
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2018
2016 2016 12 31
16.60 -
2017 2017 30
9.50 -
2017 2017 12 31
11.10 966,932
2018 2018 30
8.52 742,186
1,709,118
2019 12 2018
8.48 2017
738.7 2017 966.9 2019
2019 12 31
2018 12 31
11,551,320,000 2017 944,181,000
2018 12 31
8,711,101,022

2018 2017 12 31
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2017

1,446,043

827,554

2,273,597

2018 12 31
11.10
29

HPH

8,711,101,022 2017
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2018

11

2018 12 31

2017

11

2017 12 31

2017
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16,382,757 7,674,807 45,243 523,587 24,626,394
13,117 68,730 2,857 642 85,346
876,840 616,422 - 55,458 1,548,720
(607,875) (749,709) (9,102) (82,317)  (1,449,003)
(9,064) (26,776) (2,973) (320) (39,133)
(125, 289) (13,509) - (3,973) (142,771)
16,530,486 7,569,965 36,025 493,077 24,629,553
20,909,362 12,744,709 66,130 930,613 34,650,814
(4,378,876)  (5,174,744) (30, 105) (437,536) (10,021,261)
16,530,486 7,569,965 36,025 493,077 24,629,553
16,805,078 7,680,947 35,195 505,238 25,026,458
19,140 115,042 18,139 1,833 154,154
46,899 571,633 - 96,543 715,075
(578, 408) (710,537) (8,091) (85,776)  (1,382,812)
(4,696) (3,021) - (68) (7,785)
94,744 20,743 - 5,817 121,304
16,382,757 7,674,807 45,243 523,587 24,626,394
20,182,423 12,067,400 78,104 897,327 33,225,254
(3.799,666)  (4,392,593) (32,861) (373,740)  (8,598,860)
16,382,757 7,674,807 45,243 523,587 24,626,394
20,029,045 11,337,092 60,996 805,755 32,232,888
(3,223,967)  (3,656,145) (25,801) (300,517)  (7,206,430)
16,805,078 7,680,947 35,195 505,238 25,026,458
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2018

1,970,166
563,992
10 (1,548,720)
10,959

2017

1,846,912
776,734

(715,075)
61,595

996,397

1,970,166

2018

39,724,150
(1,292,271)
(58,550)

2017

40,925,107
(1,285,796)
84,839

38,373,329

39,724,150

48,250,794
(9,877,465)

48,319,008
(8,594,858)

38,373,329

39,724,150

2018

12,667
(535)
(513)

2017

12,428
(523)
762

11,619

12,667

15,343
(3,724)

16,357
(3,690)

11,619

12,667
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2018
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2018

6,170,184
(334,206)

2017

6,504,390
(334,206)

5,835,978

6,170,184

8,440,000
(2,604,022)

8,440,000
(2,269,816)

5,835,978

6,170,184

2018

11,270,044

cGuU

2017

1,666,002
20,963,042

11,270,044

22,629,044

2018

22,629,044
(11,359, 000)

2017

22,629,044

11,270,044

22,629,044
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15

300,000,000

2017 12 31
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@

)
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342,000,000
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10
97 17
0.5
CGU
CGU 20
2018 2017
603,342 754,247
342,000 -
945,342 754,247
4.0
20
23.84
41.31
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2018 2017
(106,904) (116,405)
(23,148) 31,913
(130,052) (84,492)
16
2018 2017
3,486,227 3,526,633
a 127,550 309,250
b (930,000) -
2,683,777 3,835,883
©) 120,000,000 2017 300,000,000
HIBOR 2.1 2017  HIBOR
5.0 7,550,000 2017 9,250,000
(b) 2018
14(b)
2018 12 31

930
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2018 2017 12 31
COSCO-HIT « ) 50.00
1
40.00
1
1 50.00
50.00
2
49.00
1
28.21
1
2
2018 12 31
2018 2017
54,279 76,375
(595) -
53,684 76,375
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2018 2017
39,150 45,225
428,600 518,600
2,159 71,719
91,020 103,782
560,929 739,326
2018 2017
(18,528) (22,712)
10,290,856 10,635,108
10,272,328 10,612,396
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2018
2018 (29,065) 615,593 9,734,188 298,202 (6,522) 10,612,396
5,363 (6,890)  (361,129) 23,314 (377)  (339,719)
- 15 (61) (350) 47 (349)
2018 12 31 (23,702) 608,718 9,372,998 321,166 (6,852) 10,272,328
2017
2017 (17,592) 612,230 10,094,965 237,116 (6,482) 10,920,237
(11,473) 3,363 (360,710) 61,086 204  (307,530)
- - (67) - (244) (311)
2017 12 31 (29,065) 615,593 9,734,188 298,202 (6,522) 10,612,396
@
(O]
2018 12 31 75,722,000
61,506,000
14,216,000
2018 2017
7,892 1,513
- 15,207
6,324 -
14,216 16,720
©
@ 12
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2018 2017
817,733 541,272
5,706,621 6,184,810
6,524,354 6,726,082
) 42,000 42,000
6,566,354 6,768,082
2018 2017
4,525 2,954
2018 12 31 2016 42,000,000
2017 12 31 42,000,000
2018 2017
43 53
21 16
36 31
100 100
2018 2017
33 19
20 24
47 57
100 100
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2018 2017
2,518,572 2,617,272
(51,255) (56,838)
2,467,317 2,560,434
355,792 374,022
30,091 -
20 9,260
12,139 1,701
a 195,556 185,438
b - 315,350
3,060,915 3,446,205
2018 2017
335 1,439
a 2 -
337 1,439
2018 2017
51 50
31 36
18 14
100 100
2018 2017
100 100

@
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2017 12 31
2.30

2018 12 31

2018 12 31
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265,000,000 315,350,000
2018 12 31
15
1,305,806,000 2017 1,135,446,000
2018 2017
983,560 708,775
138,274 137,070
183,972 289,601
1,305,806 1,135,446
51,255,000 2017 56,838,000
2018 2017
56,838 60,850
220 -
(5,803) (3,807)
- (205)
51,255 56,838
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2018 2017
5,511,212 6,366,404
24 - 4,084
a 157,742 161,242
100,846 99,226
5,482 3,716
b 152,939 106,957
5,928,221 6,741,629
2018 2017
4,535 11,378
b 12,405 12,165
b 3,615 6,769
20,555 30,312
2018 2017
75 78
25 22
100 100
2018 2017
18 22
60 39
22 39
100 100

2018 12 31
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@ 30,380,000 2017
30,380,000 2017
70,000,000 79,800,000 2017
70,000,000 79,100,000 2.00 2017 2.00
()
22
2,510,000 21,313,350 23,823,350
9,120 57,000 66,120
- 7,800,000 7,800,000
2,519,120 29,170,350 31,689,470
(1,614) (135,910) (137,524)
- (60,319) (60,319)
2018 12 31 2,517,506 28,974,121 31,491,627
340,000 20,583,350 20,923,350
7,140 69,020 76,160
3,900,000 7,800,000 11,700,000
4,247,140 28,452,370 32,699,510
(1,870) (148,146) (150,016)
(4,084) (55,329) (59,413)
2017 12 31 4,241,186 28,248,895 32,490,081
2019 2024
2017 2019 2024
2015 2020 2.875 500
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2017 2022 2.75 500
2018 12 31 3.2 2017
2.2
2018 2017
21 23
79 77
100 100
2018 12 31 200,770,000 2017 207,645,000
23
2018 2017
56,601 80,552
@
2018 12 31 2017 12 31

HKAS 19 2011
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2018 2017
-2.40 1.60 - 1.80
4.0 4.0
-6.00 5.00 - 6.00
2018 2017
1,370,653 1,413,479
(1,314,052) (1,332,927)
56,601 80,552
1,413,479 (1,332,927) 80,552
52,326 825 53,151
22,777 (21,803) 974
75,103 (20,978) 54,125
4,992 - 4,992
(65,581) - (65,581)
48 - 48
- 19,726 19,726
(60,541) 19,726 (40,815)
- (37,261) (37,261)
8,300 (8,300) -
(64,005) 64,005 -
(1,683) 1,683 -
1,370,653 (1,314,052) 56,601
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2017
1,464,270 (1,185,198) 279,072
55,586 736 56,322
13,085 (10,703) 2,382
68,671 (9,967) 58,704
7,856 - 7,856
(81,295) - (81,295)
27,310 - 27,310
- (174,410) (174,410)
(46,129) (174,410) (220,539)
- (36,685) (36,685)
8,630 (8,630) -
(81,580) 81,580 -
(383) 383 -
12 31 1,413,479 (1,332,927) 80,552
2018 2017

939,337 873,725

335,713 408,974

39,002 50,228

12 31 1,314,052 1,332,927

284/485




EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 2017

4 6

1 2

2 5

3 4

46 19

4 5

1 3

1

8 14

1 4

71 65

12

11 10

26 31

3 4

100 100

2018 2017

Aaa/AAA 24 23
Aal/AA+ 17 19
Aa2/AA 4 15
Aa3/AA- 3
Al/A+ 11 5
A2/A 11 8
A3/A- 6 7
Baal/BBB+ 7 5
Baa2/BBB 3 5
4 6
6 4
100 100
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2017
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2017 31
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963,000 2017
2017
2018 12 31
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2018 12 31
1994
125
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
1,596,000 2018 12 31
2018 12 31
0.25 1.7 1.8
0.25 0.4 0.4
38,055,000 (2017 39,036,000 )

7.0 2017 7.5

73,221,000 2017
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24
2018 2017
60,319 59,413
80,725 1,214
16,535 -
- (4,084)
157,579 56,543
104,631 73,328
262,210 129,871
25
2017 2017 12 31 2018 12 31 8,711,101,022 68,553,839
26
2018 2017
10,000 10,000
50,592,309 52,341,427
(24,212,051) -
26,390,258 52,351,427
HPH HPHT 2011
HPH HPHT 67,280,000,000
HPH HPHT

HPHT HPH
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31

HPHT
HPHT

2018

3,551,742
3,076,015
17,069
(49,799)
(108, 429)

242

2017

3,601,453

3,003,337

5,591
(3,206)
(70,167)

6,486,598

6,477
149,158
27,192

(631,020)
16,864

6,537,008

2,694
683,064
41,571

(143,215)
22,019

6,055,269

7,143,141
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2018 - 347,140 20,552,169 11,590,772 60,627 32,550,708
(1,340,089) (347,010) 3,201,975  (3,900,000) - (2,385,124)

10,911 (130) (2,900) - - 7,881
- - - (906) - (906)

- 2,517,506  (2,517,506) - - -

1,329,178 - - - - 1,329,178
- - 34,920 15,597 96,952 147,469
2018 12 31 - 2,517,506 21,268,658 7,705,463 157,579 31,649,206
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2017 12 31
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236,250 4,244,480 21,516,679 7,721,612 43,757 33,762,778
(1,050,073)  (4,244,650)  (661,250) 3,866,814 - (2,089,159)
(1,239) 170 4,480 - - 3,411
- - - (15,656) - (15,656)
- 347,140 (347,140) - _ N
815,062 - - - - 815,062
- - 39,400 18,002 16,870 74,272
- 347,140 20,552,169 11,590,772 60,627 32,550,708
2018 2017
32,230 28,525
724,415 938,363
756,645 966,888
2018 2017
48,738 16,506
94,022 83,215
142,760 99,721
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2018 2017
7,591 12,169
178 1,043
7,769 13,212

2018 2017
37,631 25,345
72,793 48,239
110,424 73,584
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15 16 20 21
)
2018 2017
41,553 40,340
a
A 50,189 52,071
35,778 39,246
C
d 20,040 19,484
28,531 39,431
e
6,306 6,128
e
f
23,988 23,317
g 141,787 141,416
I
) 40,154 45,568
i 1,527 6,188
j 9,517 10,149
@
()
©
©) 120,000,000 2017 :300,000,000 HIBOR
2.1 2017 : HIBOR 5.0 300,000,000
342,000,000 2017 :265,000,000 315,350,000 4.0

2017 : 2.3
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O
®
2,500,000 19,500,000
2012 2018 12 31
2018 12
@
Q) IT IT
Q)
a
()
2018 12 31
2018 2017

15,399 -

28,049 21,583
)

COSCO-HIT
2017
16
COSCO-HIT
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2018 2017
30,158 30,379
46,668,159,000 2017 60,321,906,000
25,123,116,000 2017 25,931,428,000
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2018 12 31 2018 1 1 HKFRS

2017 12,405,000

2018 2017

(146,496) (59,413)

11,700,000 7,800,000

2020 2018

2023 2020

11 11

(74,620) (15,657)

74,620 15,657
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2018 2017
(80,725) (1,214)
7,800,000 3,900,000
2022

2023 2022
11 11
(26,416) (1,214)
26,416 1,214

2018 2017
26,059 23,638
(1,108,387) (1,126,215)
(103) (426)
3 10
(1,082,428) (1,102,993)
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U)
2018
5,928,221 5,928,221 5,928,221 - -
31,753,837 31,681,451 2,557,927 29,116,684 6,840
37,682,058 37,609,672 8,486,148 29,116,684 6,840
2017
6,741,629 6,747,164 6,747,164 - -
32,619,952 32,708,069 4,261,298 28,425,351 21,420
39,361,581 39,455,233 11,008,462 28,425,351 21,420
943,504,000 2017 714,793,000
1,731,732,000 2017 1,549,349,000
152,000 2017 1,111,000
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2018
20,555 20,555 20,555 -
2017
30,312 30,312 30,312 -
()]
2018 12 31
17 39,150 - - 39,150
17 - - 428,600 428,600
24 - (60,319) - (60,319)
24 - (80,725) - (80,725)
24 - (16,535) - (16,535)
39,150 (157,579) 428,600 310,171
2017 12 31
17 45,225 - - 45,225
17 - - 518,600 518,600
24 - (59,413) - (59,413)
24 - (1,214) - (1,214)
45,225 (60,627) 518,600 503,198
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2018 2017 12 31

2018 12 31 22 31,403.9
2017 12 31 32,514.3
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31
@ 2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017
HPHT (€ 10,000,000 100 100
100 100
@
HIT “ o 200 100 100
@ « 800
100 100
@
20 100 100
)
2,400,000,000 56.41 56.41
)
6,056,960,000 51.64  51.64
)
150,000,000 51.64  51.64
)
2,343,300,000 51.64  51.64
[€))
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2018 2017
10,000,000 79.45 79.45
(€Y
@ o 32 94.88 94.88
593
2,005 79.45 79.45
(€)) o 8,424
200 100 100
@
@ 10,000 100 100
100 100
@
1
2
712 715

®)
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2018 2017
65,581,163 67,179,233
6,597,197 6,680,448
72,178,360 73,859,681
8,401,928 10,618,872
4,908,406 4,097,165
13,310,334 14,716,037
2018 2017
7,403,373 7,249,875
2,957,592 2,854,074
2018 2017
242,387 2,096,077
1,340,089 1,050,073
32
2019 COSCO-HIT
23
33
87 142 2019 12
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HUTCHISOMN PORT HOLDINGS TRUST 87
ANHUAL REPORT 2018

Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

018 2T
Mote HK S 000 HKS 000
Revenue and afher income 4 11,4832 562 11.550.957
Cost of senices rencered 14,143.451) 14,131,564)
Siaff costs (286 534) (288, 020)
Daprecation and amortisation (3,076,015) 13,003,33T)
Ciher operabng income 128,122 25,400
Cither operating expenses (553, 942) [551.983)
Toted operating expanses (7,930,820) {7,849,504)
Cperating profit § 3,551,742 3,001 453
Interest and obher finance costs g (1,021,801) (856, B8T)
Share of profits less loases after tax of associated companies (106, S04 § (118 405)
Shade of profits less losses alter lax of joanl vanlures 54 270 78,375
Irpaarmant of goodwill 14(0) {11,359,000) -
Impairment of invesiment in a oint venhure 16 (930,000 -
(Less)prat bafare bk {0811 684) 2,704 536
Tax 7 (@34, 08y (48T BE3)
(Loss)ipraf far the year {10,246 052) 2217473
Alpcated as. Profil atiributable fo non-controlling inberests {1,305 2085 {1,273 202
|Losa)iprafi atnbitable 1o uniholders of HFH Trest ] 111,551.330) B44 181
HK cants HK cems
(Loss)eamnings par unit aftnbutable 1o unitholdars of HPH Trust g 1132.80) 10.84
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88 STAYING FOCUSED

Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income
Far the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 20147
HKS'000 HKS000
{Lassjiprafi for e year {10, 246.062) 2217473

CHher comprehensive (lessiincame
Itam that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss:

Remeasuremant of defined benall plans 40 515 220,538
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Cash fow hedges arismg fnom crass curmency inferes! rale swap contracts
and nierest rale swap coniracts

Losses recognised direcily in reserves (85 523 [1,214)
Costs ol hadging
Changes in fair value of curency basis spread (10,524} -
Share of other comprefensive (loss)fincome of associated companses (23 148) 31,913
Share of other comprehensive 055 of joint venlures 1393} -
Invastments
Valuation losses taken fo resares (G7F 044) {B,458)
Currency fransiafion differences _ (eE3at) 268441
Tata! other comprehensive (loss)incoma (368,399} 11,221
Tatal comprahansive (loasVacame lor the year {10,615 451) 2,728,694
Allpcated as: Aftributable 1o non-controlling inlerests {1,201, 250} (1.410,482)
Afiributable fo unitholders of HPH Trust (11,816,701} 1,318,202
Mol

Tems shown within ciner compretensha (Iees)incoms have no i el
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HUTCHISOMN PORT HOLDIMNGS TRUST 89
ANHUAL REPORT 2018

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2008
018 2my
Hate HK S 000 HKS'000
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fred assats 10 24 30 553 24 626,304
Projacts under dévelopmant n BRE 397 1,970,168
Leasehold land and land wse nghis 12 38,373,329 39,724,160
Rallway usage righls 13 11,818 12 867
Custamar reélabonships 14(m) 5.B15 97H 8170184
Goadwill 14(b) 11270, 044 22.620,044
Aszpocisled companies 15 045, 342 754,247
Joinl venlures 18 2683777 3835883
Other non-currant assats v BED, 29 138,328
Defarred tax assels 18 18,524 22712

85225 498 100 484773

Current assets

Cash and bank balances 1 6 566 354 §.T68, 082
Trade and other recevablas 20 306005 3446205
Imventories 103,137 108,055

9,730,408 10,323,842

Current labilities

Trade and other payables 21 5,828 221 8,741,629
Bank and other debis 22 2.5617,508 4.241,1858
Cumrent tax labildes A58, 228 408 568

B B0, 855 11,382,383

Met current assels/{Habilithes) 026,451 {1.066.441)

Total assets less current llabilities BE.251, 047 99,416,332

Men-current liabilities

Bank and other debis i 28,974,121 28,248,895
Peansion cbigations 23 56,801 B0 552
Dafaried tas habiltbes 1a 10,220,858 10,635,108
Other non-current labilities 24 282,210 126,871
39 583,788 39,05 428
Net assets 46 B&E, 159 50.321.908
EQUITY
Unils in issua 23 68,553,839 63,553,839
Reserves _{#1.786,104) _ (28,260.285)
Hel assels altribulable to unithelders of HPH Trust 26,767,735 40,2083 554
Mon-contralling nteresta 18 800, 424 20,028,352
Total equity 46 658,158 650,321,908
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90  STAYING FOCUSED

Statement of Financial Position of
Hutchison Port Holdings Trust

At 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Nole HKS 000 HES" D00
ASSETS
Hen-current assot
Imvesiment in & subsidiary company 26 26,300,258 52,351,427
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 19 4525 2,054
Tradwe and othar receivables 0 a7 1438
4 B62 i 383
Current liability
Trade and othar payables il 20 555 30,312
Net current liabilities 115.683) [25.919)
Total assets less current liabilites 26,374 565 52 325,508
EQuimy
Unils n issue 25 68,553.830 68,553,830
Resorsen {42 1702744 (18,228,331)
Total equity 26,374 585 52,325,508
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Hate HK$'000 HK$'000
Operating activities
Cash generated from operatons 27 5,055,269 T.943 141
Irarasl and alhar france cosls pacd (B84,852) (757 BT3)
Tax paid _(B25547)  {645.482)
Het cash from operaling activities 4,245,070 5,739,768
Investing activities
Purchase of an associaled company - (672,79}
Loan o an associaled company (40,050) {315,350}
Purchase of fixed sssets, projects under development,
leasehold land and fand use rghts (T43,554) {841,350}
Frocesds on disposal of ixed assals 2074 2184
Dividends recehed fram Invesbmants 48 848 21,645
Dividends recaived from associated companies and joinl venlures 78,452 120,766
Inleras! recened & 879 64 457
Repayment of loans by joint veniures 181,700 1,600
Met cash used in investing activities (352 556) {1.008.827)
Financing activities
Menw borrowngs 5040, 750 1. 736814
Repayment of bomowings (6.077,010) [12 746 650)
Uplront deld ransaction cosls and facilibes fees of borowings {8,775} {£8.250)
Distributions io wnitholders of HPH Tust (1,708.118) (2273 587}
Dividends fo non-controlling mlerests {1.340,088) [1.050,073)
Net cash used in financing activities {4,084,242) (4.362,768)
MWet changes in cash and cash equivalents (201,728) {231,787)
Cash and cash equivalenis al baginnmg of tha year B.726,082 6,957 A79
Cash and cash equivalants at and af the year 18 B 524 354 8,726 082
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92  STAYING FOCUSED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Far the year ended 31 December 2018
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HUTCHIZOMN PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST
ANMUAL REPORT 2018

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2008
Exchanga Coorsls o Atmbutabie Mo
Urits and other Revaluation Hedging  hedging  Peadiea  Accumulsted i centraling
inhame  resenves reserve  feserve  Meserve (esanve losses  unitholders imierests Todal
] HEE'300  HKSDS0  HKE'0O0  HKS000 HE900 HEE'000 HKS'00 HES'800
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Froft ke the year - - - - - - S 161 Be183 LI ) LT T3
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04  STAYING FOCUSED

Statement of Changes in Equity of
Hutchison Port Holdings Trust

Far the year ended 31 December 2018

Units Accumulated Atiributable to

in issue losses unitholders
HES (0 HKS 000 HES 000
Trust
A1 1 January 2018 68,551,039 (18.228.331) 52325508
Loss and tolal comprehensive loss for the yeas - (24,241 B25) (24,241 825)
Transachan with ownars:

Distritutions - (1.708,118) {1.708,118)
A1 31 Dacembar 2018 68 553,838 {(42,170.274) 26,374 565
AL 1 January 2017 68,553,830 (13,824 8206) 54 629,013
Loss and tolal comprahansive loss lor the year - (29,9048} (29, 208
Transaction with owners:

Disiribubons ~ - (2,273,587} 12273307}
A 31 Dacember 2017 68,553,030 (16,228.331) 52 325,508
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Huichison Por Holdings Trust ("Trust® or *HPH Trust™) i 8 business trusl consbiuted by a deed of trus! daled 25
February 2011 {(as amended) (the “Trust Deed”) and regsstered with the Monetary Authonty of Singapore. HPH
Trusd is principally reguisied by the Business Trusts Acl, Chapter 31A of Singapore and Securibes and Fulures Acl,
Chaplar 280 of Singapara, Under the Trusl Deed, Hulchison Part Holdings Managemant PMa. Limited (B "Trrsloe-
Manager’), has deciared Mat it wil hold all 12 assets (incuding businesses) scquered on et ko the uniholders
as the Truslee-Manager of HPH Trust. The registered address of the Trustee-Manager is a1 50 Raffies Place,
#32-01 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048823, HPH Trust was listed on the Main Board of Singapore
Eughange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-5T7) on 18 March 2011,

HPH Trust is esiablished with the principal investment mandale of investing in, developing, operating and manageng
deep-waler confainer ports in the Guanpdong Province of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"), Hong Kong and
Macau. HPH Trusi may also invest in other lypes of port assels includng river ports. which are complemenlary to
lher dieep-waber contniner ports owned by HIPH Trusi, as well os undertake cerain porl anallary senvices ncluding,
but not Emited to, tuckng, feadenng, freighl-farwardng, supply chain managemenl, warehousing and disiributon
services.

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Slandards
["HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Insfitule of Certffied Public Accountanis ("HKICPA"). The financial stalements
have baan prepared undar the historical cost convention excep! for investmants and derivative financial instruments
which are slaled al fair value, as explained in the significant accounting polcies sel out in note 2

There is no matenal diference in preparing the financial slalemeants using HKFRS and Infernational Financial
Reparting Standards (IFRET).  No material adjustments are required 1o restabe the financial staboments prepaned
unger HEFRS 1o comply with IFRS

The megaration of financal statements in conformity with HEFRS requires managemant o exarcessa (ks judgements
in the process of applying the accounting peolicies of the Group. N also requires the use of cedam cribical
accounling estimates and sssumplions.  The ateas invalving a higher degree of judgements of compleaity, or areas
where assumplions and estimates are signdficant to the financal statements, are disclosed in Mole 3

The Group has adopled all of the new and revised slandards, amendments and interpretabions ssued by The
HHKICPA that are relevant to the Group's operations and mandatory for annual period beginring 1 January 2018
The changes in accounting polickes and the effects of changes in accounting policies are summarised balow.

HKFRS 8 Financial Instruments

HXFRS @ Financial instruments addresses the classhcabon, measurement and derecogniion of financial assats
and financial kabiigies, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new Empairment model for financial assats.

[k} Changes in accounling palicies
Invastments

Investmants (other than investiments m subsidiany companees, associaled companiss of joinl wenlures)
ore non-defivalive equily inancel nvesimenls which afe measured af fair value, Management is ehgible
1o make an irevocable election, on an instrumeni-by-ingirument basie, on equily investments other than
those held for trading, 1o present changes in fair value theough profit or lose or fair value theough olher
comprahansive incoeme [TFVOCI"). The Group has slected 1o measurd as FVOCI, 1o which any fair value
gains of losses accumuliled in fhe revalation reserve account will no longer be rectassified o profit or loss
following 1he derecognition of such investment. Dividends trom invesiments conlinued lo be recognised
as olher eperaling income in the income stalement whan the right to recaive payment 8 esiablished.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairmend losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair
valee
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06  STAYING FOCUSED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

A tﬂﬂﬂlil‘luﬂﬂ]

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. (Continued)

i

i)

Chanpes in Bcoounting policies |Continued)
Loans and receivablas

Loans and receivables are debl instruments thal are held for colleciion of confractual cash Rows whene
those cash Mows represent solely payments of principal and interesl. They are milially recogrnised at fair
value plus ransaction costs that are directly aftributable to the acquisiton of the loans and receivables and
are subsequently measured al amorlised cost less impairmenl.  Interest income using the effactive interest
mlhad is recognisad in the income stalamend

Impairment of financial aesats

HKFRS @ replaces ihe ‘mcumed loss’ impawrmenl medel in Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS™)
39 wilh @ forward-Jooking expacted credit less' ("ECLT) modal. The new impairment model will apply 1o
financial assels classiied al amortised cost, debt nstrements messured al FYOCI, contract assels under
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customess, lease receivables, ioan commitments and cedain

financial guaraniee contraclts (il applicable]. The impairment mathodolegy to be appled depends an
whalhor them has bean a significan] increase n credil risk

For trade receivables, the Group apples the simplifed approach permitted by HKFRS 8, which requires
Idetime esxpecied losses for amounts due from customars 1o be recognised from indial recognition of the
trade recoivables

As debt instumenis 8l amortised cosl are considered to have low credit risk, the impairment provision
applied is io recognise 12-month ECL.

Hedge accoutling

VWhen a financial instrument that involves exchanges of cash flows thal are denominalted in different
curmencies s used in a hodge transaction, the foreign currancy basis sproad of the instrument s separated
and exciuded from the designated hedging instrument  The change in Tair value of the Tfofeign curmancy
basis spraad portion (bo the extent i refales lo the hedged |lem) s recognised in olhar comprehansive
income and is accumutated in 8 separate costa of hedping reserve under equity

Eflacis of changes in accounting palicies

Thie Group has applied the modified relrospeclive approach, where the comparalive infgrmation for preor
periods wilh respect 1o classification and messurement (including impaiment) changes ks nol restated and
diffarences mn the camying amounts of finencial asseis and financiad liabilikes resuliing from the adoption of
HKFRS 8 will be recognised as an adjustmant 10 the opaning balance of equity al the date of adoplion, ie.
as al 1 January 2018

Classdfication of investments

The Group has elected to prasenl changes m the fair value of all ils equity invesiments (classified as
Invesimenis] in oiher comprehensive incomdé a8 they are long-lem sirasegic nvesiments. Invesiments as al
31 December 2017 will conlinue to be measured sl fe value after adoption of HKFRS 0
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of proparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

ERLOCHBCT) OF S Pl oD el TSI TRCN S B0 RIS DEQTREoN 0 ﬂﬂ-ﬂﬂhl‘luﬁd}

HKFRS 8 Financial Instruments. (Continued)

(i)

Effzcis of changes in ascounbng palcies (Centinued)
Clgssificaton of inans and mceivables

The Group's existing loans and receivables are debdl instruments thal ere held Tor collection of contraciual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solaly paymenls of principal and interest and therefare will
continue to be measured ot amorised cost.

Impairment of fnancial assets

The Group's significant fnancial agsets. such as tade recelvables end loans 1o an associaled company and
joint ventures, are subject to the new ECL modal.

Fof trade receivables, the Group apples the simplifed approach to provide lor ECL prescribed by HEFRS
G, which requires the use of the lifeime expecied (osses for all irade recewvables. The adoption of the
simplified expected less approach under HKFRS @ has nol resulted in any malenal impact o the carmying
value ol Irade receivables as at 1 January 2018,

For loans to an associaled company and joint venlures, management conaiders thal the credit nak has nat
Increasad significantly sinee inital recognition as both the associated company and (einl ventutes have low
credit risk of default and have sirong capacity to meet contraciual cash flows. As such, the impairment
provision is determined based on the 12-month ECL which ane clase 1o Zero

Hedpe accouniing

Ganerally, more hedge relationships maghl be abgible for hedge accountng under HKFRS 8. as the standand
infrodueed @ mors principle-based approach  Heowever, the Group has nol dentified any new hadge
refationships under HKFRS 8, The Group's existing hedge retatonships quaifies as contnuing hedgas upon
the adoglion of HKFRS 8.

Upon transition b HKFRS @, the Group has elecled the oplion 1o exclude foroign currency basis sproads
of financial instrumanis from the designation of hedging relabenships. This change in acesunling palicy
5 apphied with a modified refrospective apgroach, resulling in & reclassdication adjustment o the Group's
resenves al 1 January 2018

Cash flow hedge Costs of hedging

resene FOSEYE
HES'000 HES'000
At 31 December 2017, as previowsly reported under HIAS 30 1,214) -
EMects of asoplion of HKFRS 9
Reclassiication of costs of hedging
= Foreign currency bas:s apread 19,578 {19.578)
&b 1 January 2018 18,364 {18,578)

313/485



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

88  STAYING FOCUSED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Basis of proparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)

isting standards (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments {Continued)

() Eflacis of changes in aocounting pabicies (Centinued)

Hedge accounting (Continued)

The following lable shows e impacl on each individual ine ilem of (he consolidated slalemenl af
comprehansive income for the year anded 31 December 2018 folowing the adoplion of the HKFRS 8. Line
liems that were not affected by the changes are not included.

Before  Impact from Affter
adaption of  adoption of  adoption of
HKFRS 9 HKFRS & HEFRS 9
HKS 000 HEKS D00 HKS 000
Qther comprehensive (lossiincome
Itemns thal may be raciassified subsequently o
prafit of loss:
Cash Now hadges arising from cross cumency
inferesl rate swap contracts and interest rate
swap conlracts
Losses recognised directly m resenves (06, D48 10 524 (85 522)
Cosls of hedging
Changes in fair vaiue of currency basis spread — (10.524) (10.524)

The adaoplion of HKFRS © has no impact on the consolidated income siatement, statement of financial
posifion and consolidaled statement of cash flows

HKFRS 15 Revenue From Coniracts With Customers

HKFRS 15 Revenve from Contracts with Customers establishes a framewark lor determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognised.  Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognsed through a S-step approach: (i) identily
the contracis) with cuslomer. (i} ienbify separate parformance obligations n the contract, (i) determine 1he
ransaclion price, (ivi allocate the imnsaction price to ihe perffermance obligalions, and (v) recognise mvenuo when
a performance obligaion is salisfed

1] Changes in accounting policies
Revenuas am recognised whon of as the conirod of the good of service is ransfomid 10 tha cusiomer
Depending on the lerms of the conlract and the lws thal apply %o the contracl, confrol of the good or service
may be ranslerred over time ar al a paint in ime

Contral of the good or service s fransferned over time if the Group's performance provides all of the benefils
mcaived and consumed simultanaously by the cuslomer

If conirol of the good or service transfers over ime, révenue is recognised over the penod of the condract by
raference io the progress towards complole eatisfaction of that performance obligation.  Cthenwise, revenue
is recognised at a point n tima when the cusiomer obfains control of the goed or sarvica.

The progress lowards complete satisfaction of the performence obligation is measured based on direct
measurements of he value transiered by the Group (o the customer,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
a5 :Cﬂﬂ'l.ll'lu&ﬂ]

HKFRS 15 Revenue From Contracts With Customers (Continued)

n Changes in ecoounting policies [Continued)
Transaclion price of a contract shall be allocated to indwvidual perdformance obligation {or disinc good or
servige], The objective when allocating the lransaction price s for an entity 1o allacale the transaction price
to each perfermance obligation in an amount thal depicts the amoun! of consideration o which the entily
expects to ba enbtied in axchange for ransierning the promised goods ar sanvices lo the customer,
Revenue is recognised over ima:

1] for parts and related services, ransporation and loglatics solutions along with the progress when
service is rendered; and

i) for managemeni and service fee mcome, and sysiem development and support fees along with the
progress when senice is rendered

Interest income is recognsed over me on a time proport:on basis usang the etfective mierest method

{in) Effecis of changes in accouning polcies
The Group has alected the modified retrospective approach for ransition to the new revenue standard.
However, there is no significant impact on the Group's accounting with respect 1o the timing of revenue

racognition and aliocation of e transaclion price o performance obligahons denlified. Accordingly, Gpening
balanee of retainad profils al 1 Jansary 2018 & nol adjusted in respect o the adoplion of HKFRS 15,

Al e dale of authonisabion of the Bnancial slatemants, the fobowing standards, amendments and interpratations
WErE in [Saue and reievenl 1o he Grows bul ol yel efective and heve not bean early adopled by 1he Group;

Amendmenls 1o HKFRS 9" Prepayment Fealunes with Negalive Compengaton
Amendments 1o HKAS 281 Lang-term Inlerests in Associales and Joinl Venlures
Annual Improvements o HKFRSs 20152017 Cycla™ Improvements 1o HKFRSs

HKFRS 16" Leases

HEAIFRIC) Interpralabon 23 Uncartemnly over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments io HKAS 187 Empioyee Benaefits

Amimdments o HKFRS 3 (Revised)™ Business Combinations

Amandments 0 HEAS 1 (Revised) and HKAS 8= Dwlinigon of Maternality

Amamdments (o HEFRS 10 and HKAS 267 Sale or Conbritrtion of Assets between an Investor and

its Associahe of Jonl Venlure

i
2]
&3]

Effe-clive for annual pevigds beginning 1 January 2018
EfMective for annua pesicds Deginning 1 January 2020
Hew efeciive dale to be determined
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continuad)

vl et et I:CJ:H“H'IIJBI“

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 specifiss how an enlly will recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. HKFRS 16 & mandatory
for the Group's financial slatements on 1 January 2016

Tha new standard provides a single. on balance sheo! lease accounting madkel for lessees. It will result in almost
all leases being recognised by Ihe lessse on e balance shesl, as the distinclion belween aperatng and finance
|mases is removed. Under HKFRS 16, an asset (the right 1o use the leased item) and a financial liability 1o pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceplions are short-term and low-value leases.

Lessors conlinue o classdy leases as operaling or fnance wilh HKFRS 18's approach 1o lessor sccounling
substantially unchanged from ils predecessor HKAS 17, The Group B currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
16 and it is not expected that there would heve a matenal impact to the consolidated financial siatements on the
dale of adoption. However it = anticipated fhat the application of HKFRS 16 in the future may impact the Group's
fancial stalarments,

Other than the new slandards explained above there are no other standards or merpretations that are pot yet
eftective and that would be expecied to have a material impact to the Growp

(1] Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial slatemenis of the Group for the yvear endad 31 December 2018 include all its direct
and mdiect subsidiary companies and also incorporeta the inleres! in associaled companses, joint operations and
Haint veniures on the basis sel oul in Noles 2(c) and 2{d) below. Resulls of subsidiary companies, associaled
companies and joinl venlures aequired of disposed of during the year are included as from thelr efective dates of
acauisibon to 31 December 2018 or up fo the dates of depossl a3 the case may be. The scquisiion of subsidiary
cHmpanies is sccounted for using the acquisstion method

(b]  Subsidiary companies

A subsidiary company is an enlity over which the Sroup has control. The Group confrols an enfity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, vanable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those miums through its power over the enbly. Subsidiary companies are fully consolidaled from the date
on which condrol la kranslerred Bo the Group, They are deconsolidated fram the dabe that control ceases. In the
uncensalidated financial statements of the holding company, invesimenis in subsidiary companies are camed at
cost less provision for imparment in value,

The acquisition methed of accounting 13 used to account for business combinations by the Group The
consideraton transiemad for the acquislion of subsidiary companies are The fair values of the assals fransierred,
e iabilfies incumed and the equity inferesis issued by the Group, The consideration transferred aiso includes
the fair value of any asset or Eabdity resulling from a conbingent consideration arrengement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incummed. ldentifiable assets acquired and Habilises and conbngent liabdities assumed n
a business combination are measuned initially al their fair values a1 the acquisibon date, On the acgusition by
acqusifion basis, the Group recognises 8 non-conlroding intenest in the acquiree elther at lair value or &l nons
controlling interest's propartionale share of the acquiree’s net assels.

The excess of the consideration transfermed, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisiian-date fair value of any previous eqully inberest in the sequires over the Far value of the identifable net
assels pequired s recorded 8 poodwill, I thig i less than the fair value of the net azasts of the subsidiary sctguied
in the case of 8 bargain puschase, 1he difference s recognisad directly in the income stabemeant.
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
(e}  Associated companies

An associated company & an enlity, other than a subsidary company or a jaint venture, in which the Group has
a long-tarm equily inbéres! and aver which the Group 1S in & pasition o exercise signdficant influsnes over s
managemant, which meludes. participation in e financeal and operatng policy deci=ions

The results and assets and liabilities of assocated companies are incorporated in these financial stalements using
the equily method of accounting, except whan the invesiment is classified as held for sale, in which case i is
accounted for under HKFRS 5, “Non-current assels held for esle and decontinued operations”.  Tha tolal carmying
amount of such Investmenis is reduced o recognise any identified impaiment loss in the valve of indwvidual
Immestments.

{d)  Joint arrangements

A joint srrangement is an arangement af which bvo or more paries have joint contred and over which none of the
participaling parties has unilateral contol.

Invastmanis in joint arangemenls sre classified eifher as joinl operalions or joint veniures, depending on he
contraciual righls and obligstions each invesior has, Joinl operations arise whens the nwvestors have rights to the
assels and obligations for the liabdites of an armangement. A joint operator sccounts for ils share of the assets,
liabilities, revenee and expansas. Joini ventures arise where 1ha invesiors have rights to the nat assels of the
arrangamain

The results and net assats af jeint vanbures ame incorporated @ these finansial elatemants using the equily mathod
of accounting, except when the investment is classfied as held for sale, in which case it 8 sccounted for under
HKFRS 5, Non-curren] assels haeld for sale and discontinued operations. Tha tolal carmying amount of such
Invesiments = reducad to recognise any identified impairment loss 0 the value of iIndividual Investments

(e} Fixed assots

Fixed assels aré slabed al oosl less depreciabon and any imparmant loss. Proparties compress buldings and chal
works, Bulbsngs and civil works are depreciated on the basls of an expecled Iife of 50 years, or he remainder
thereol, or aver the remameng period of the lease of the undedying leasehold land and land use nghis, whichewver is
lesser. The penod of the lease includes the pered for which a right of renewal is attached. Other sssets comprise
madar vahicles, compuler equipment and othor fixed assals.

Depreclation of fied assets other than propenies B provided 8t rates calcu'ated to write off thelr costs o their
residual valees over their estimated useful lves on a siraight ine basis as follows:

Caontainar handling equipmant 10 - 3 years
Barges 15 years
Madar vehicles 5 yoars
Computer equipment 5 years
Other fiked assets 5 - 25 years

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asse? is the differance between the net sales proceeds and the
camying emount of the relevant assel. and is recognisad in the income statement.

1] Projects under development
Projects under development ara carried al eost and inciuda project development expenditure and eapitalised

interest on related loans incured up fo the date of completion On completion, projects under development are
transfermad to hixed assats
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles (Continued)
(gl Leasehold land and land use rights

Ther acquisiton cosls and uplrond payments made for leasehold land and land use rghls ane presenied on the
slatement of fnancial positon as leasehold land and land use nghls and expensed in tha meoms slatement on a
elraighl-line basis ovar the penad of the lessainghis,

(h}  Customer relaticnships

Cuslomar ralationships, which are scquiréd in a busineéss combinalin, are recognised ot fair value al lhe
acquisiton dale. Customer retationships are eamied al cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortsation is
calculated vsing the straight-line method over the expected life of the cusiomer relationships. ranging from
approdimately 23 to 33 years.

il Goadwil

Goodwil is initially measured at cost baing excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recegnisad for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's proviously hold egquily intorests in the
mecpunred avar the tuir value of the net idenbfiable assets acquired and Eabilties assumed. Goodwill on scgursiben
ol a fereign operation s ireated as an asset ol ine foreign operation

Goodwill ie subject o impaiment lost annually and when there are indications that the camying value may not be
recoverabile, W the cost of acquisition is kess than the fair vabue of the Group’s shate of the net idenfifable assets of
the: acquired company. the diference is recognised direclly in the income siatement,

Faor the purpose of impaimaeant lesfing of goodwill, goodw s aliocated 1o each of the Group's cash-genarating-unis
[*CGA) expected to banefil from synergies arising from the business combination.

An impairment loss (8 recognised when the camying amount of 8 CGU, including the goodwill, excesds the
recoverable amaunt of the GGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of the CGUs fair velue less cost
tex sl and valise-in-use

The tolal impasment loss ol a CGU s alfocated firsl 1o reduce Ihe camying amount of goodwill allocaled o the CGU
and than to the othar asseis of the CGU pro-rala on the bass of the camying amount of each asset in the CGU

fn impairment loss on goodwill is recognised &6 an expanse and is nol reversed in a subsequent pariod

The profit or loss on dieposal 8 calculated by referance fo the net assels at the dote of disposal including the
altributai¥e amoun! of goodwill but does not include any aliributable goodwill previously eliminaled against resenes.

il  Railway usage rights

Railway usage rights are cammied 8t cost less accumulated amortisation. Amaortisation is calcutated vsing the
siraight-line basis ovar the penod of operation of approamately 45 years.

(k)  Current and deferred tax

The tax expanse for the year compnses current and deferred tax. Tax (s recognised in the mncaome statement.
excepl o the extent that it relales o items recognised in olher comprehensive income or direclly in equity. In this
case, the lax s also recognised in afhwer comprehensive income or directly in equaty, respectively

The surrent tax charge I8 calculated on the bass of the tax lBws enacied or subslantively enacted al the end of the
reporting period in the countrigs where the group companies opamle and gensdale axable income. Management
pericdically evaluales positions laken in tax refurms with mesped 1o situabons in which apgplicable fax regulaton is
fibjpoct to interpratabon and establishes provisions where appropriabe on the basis of amounts expecied o be pad
Iy e L authorilies
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
(k]  Currentand deferred tax (Continued)

Defarred tax is provided in fll, using the [mbdities methad, on temporary dfferences ansing betwesn the lax bases
ol as501% and liabilibes and thair carying amounls in Me financial statéments. Defemed L assals ang recognised
Iy e exlent that it 8 probable that julure exabls proll will be avadable against wheth the lemporary differences
can be ublsed

Dofarred tax assels and labilities are offsel when there is a legally enforoeable righl o offssl cumon] tax asseis
apaingd current tax liabilies and when the ceferred tax assets and labliies redate (o income laxes levied by the
same laxalion authodlly cn either the laxalde enlity or different texable enlibes where thene s an intenlion o seitie
tve balances on & net basis,

1] Investments

Investments (other than imvestments in subsidiary compankes, associated companies of joind veniures) ate non-
derivative equity financial investments which are measured at fair value. Management is aligible to make an
irravacable election, on an instrumenl-by-mstrument bases, on equily investments other than those held for trading.
b presant ehanges in i value Sheough profl of ioss of FVOCT The Group hes alscied 1o meassure as FVOCH te
which any lair value gans or losses accumutaled i the revaiuation reserve account will no longer be reciaesified
to profit or loss following the derecognition of such investiment. Dividends from invesiments continued fo e
recognised as othor operating incoma in the income stalement whan the right lo recaive paymeont is estoblished.
Impairmant losses [and mversal of impairmen losses) are not reported separalaly from ather changes n tair value

{m} Loans and recelvables

Loans and recoivables are deb! instrumants that are held far collection of contraciual cash Aows whato those cash
fows represent solely payments of principal and interesl. They are initially recognised at fair value plus fransacton
costs that are directly aftnibutable to the acquisibon of the loans and recelvables and are subsequently measured
al emorlised cost kess impasment. Appropriate allowances for estmated imecoverable amounts are recognised n
the: income slatement based on ECL madel. Inferest income using the effective interest method is recognised in the
income siatemaen

in}  Trade and other receivables
Trade and olher receivables are initially recognised al fair value and subaequently measurod al amortised
cost using the effective interesl maethod, less prowsion lof impairment. Approphale allowances lor estimaled
Irecoverable amounts are recognised i the neome slatement based an lebme ECL

{a)  Inventories

Inventones constsl mainly of replacermen] parts and are staled al the lawer of cosl and nel realisable value, Coslis
calculated an tha weighled average basis.

{p}  Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with malunty less than thres months, and
bank owerdrafts, excluding secured bank balances, if any.

{q) Bomowings and borrowing costs

The borowings are initially measured at feir value, net of transaction cosls, and are subsequently camied at
amaortised cost Any diffierence bebween the procesds [ret of transachon costs) and the settliemant or redempbon of
borrowings is recognesed over the pariod of the bomowings using the effective inleresl method.

Borrawing cosls directly atiribulable 1o B acquisilion, construction of production of qualfying assets, which ane
assels thal necessarly lake a substanlial period af tima bo gel ready for their inlended use or sale, are added (o the
cost of those assets. unbl such bme as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the pesod in which they ame incumed.
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
ir Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables ano infially recognised at fair value and subsequenlly measured at amorsed oosl useng
ha aMachve nteresl mathad

{s}  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when it s probable thal an outlow of economic benofils will be required to soltic a
present abigation as a resull of pas) events and & relable sslimals can be made of the amount of The obligaton

th Asset impalrment
. 1 ;

The Group applies the ECL model to assess impairment of financial assels classified at amorised cost and debt
instruments measwred al FVOCL The impairment methodology (o be eppled depends on whether there has been
a significant increass in cradd nsk

For trade receivables, the Group apoles the simphified approach permitled by HKFRS 8, which requires lifetime
expected losses for amounts due from customerns o be recognised from inibial recognition of the trade receivables

As dedd instrumenis a1 amodised cost ane considered ko have low credid risk, the impairment provision applied s o
recognise 12.-month ECL

Impairment of other assats

Assals hal have an indelinile useful fe are lested for impairment annually and when [here is indication that
they may be impaired. Asseis thet are subject io depreciation and amortsation are reviewed for impaiment to
datermine whathar thare s any indicabion that the carmying values of these assets may nol be recoverabie and
have sulfered an impairmant loss. If any such Indication exists, tho recoverable amount of 1he assat s estimated m
order 1o determing the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverabile amount is the higher of an assel's fair
value |ess costs Lo sell and value-in-use. Such impairment loss s recognised in income alatemenl except wheme
the assel is camied &t valuation and the impaimnent loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that assel, m
‘wiich case if is trealed as 8 revaluation decreass and is recognisad in olher comprehensive Ncome

{u)  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Desivative financial instrumenis are utdised by the Group in the management of its foreign cummency and interest
rate exposures. Tha Group's policy is nol o uldise dervative financial metrumeants Tor trading or speculative
purpeses. Derivative financial instrurments are initially measuned al Tar value on the contract date. and ane
remeasured to fair value al subsequent reporling dales. Changes in fair value are recopnised based on whether
carain qualifying critena under HKFRS 8 ane satisfied in order 1o apply hedge accounting, and if so, the nature of
the ibems being hedged.

The Group documenls al the moeplion of the hedging irmnsacton the economic relationship between hedging
Imstruments and hedged items inciedng whether the hedgng instrument i3 expecied 1o offsel changes in cash Bows
of hedged itams. The group docurments its ek management objactive and strategy for undertaking varous hedgse
transactions at the inception of each hedge relatonship,

Derivlives designaled as hedging instuments 1o hedge the falr vadee of recognised assels or labdliies may queaily
as fair value hedges. The Group mainly enlers inle mierest rale swap confracls bo swap cerain fised inlenest rate
borrowings inlo foating interest rete borrowings. Changee in the fair value of thess derivative contracis, logether
with the changes in the fair vaue of the hedped assels of liabilibes attnbutable to the hedged nsk are recognised
In the mcome statement. Al the same lime, e carrying amount of the hedged asset of liability in the stafermant of
Tmancial position @ atqusbed for the changes in fair value
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities (Continued)

Dwnvalives designaled as hedging instruments o hedge against the cash Aows ailibutable 1o recognised assHs
of kabddles may qualily as cash flow hedges. The Group mainly enters inhe (i) eross currency nlerest rale awap
coniracis o swap certmin fixed mdereet rate United Stales dollar debis 1o fixed interest rafe Hong Kong dollar debts;
(i} cross cumency interest rale swap contracls o swap certain floaling interest rate United States dollar debls to
fixed interest rate Hong Hong dollar dabbs: and (in) interest rala wap coniracts o swap ceriain flnating inleresi rate
United Slates dallar debts to fioed interes! rate Uniled States dollar dabis (o hedge against the foreign cumency
and interest rale rsk, The Group excludes foresgn currency besis spread of these Cross curfency swaps in e
hedga designation. The change in fair values of the foreign currency basis spread (Lo the extent || relates lo the
hedged item) s recognised in other comprehensive income and s accumuleted in @ separate costs of hedgng
resarde undar equity. Changes in the fair value relating 1o Ihe effective portion of defivative conbracts designated
as hedging malrumanis qualilpng as cash flow hedges ame recogrised in other comprehensae income and
accumulated under ihe heading of hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion IS recognised
in the income atalement. Amounis accumulaled are removed from hedging reserve and costs of hedging reserve
and recognised in the incoma statement in the perods whan the hedged dervative contract matures

Denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 will be accounted for with the changes in fai
value belng recogresed in thie neome statement

Pension plans
Pangon plans ane classified into defined benefit and defined contribution plang

Pension costs for defined benefit plans are assessed using the projected unit credit method.  Under this method,
e cost of providing pensons is charged W0 inCome stalemenl $0 a5 o0 speedd he regular cost over the fulune
service lives of employees in accordance with lhe advice of he acluaries who camy oul & valuation of 1he plans
The pension obligation 18 measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outllows using interest rales
determined by reference to maskel yields &t the end of the reporting pericd based on high qually corporate bonds
with currency and larm similar to the estimated larm of banafit ohligabions

Remeasurements arsing from defned benell plans are recopmsed in othes comorehensive incame in he year m
which they occur and reflacted immediately in pension resarve. Remeasursmenis compnise actuarial pains and
logsas, the relumn on plan essats (excluding amounts included n nel intanost on the not defined benefi liability!
assol) and any change in the effect of the assel celling (excluding amounts included in nat mlerast on the net
dihined banedl labilityiasssl)

The coniributions o the defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the year incumed.
Pension coats are charged againsd the income stalément within stalf costs, The pension plans are generally funded

by tha refavant Group eompanies taking inta account the eeommendations of (ndependent qualifed aclusHes and
by payments from employees for contributony plans

Foreign exchange

The consalidated fnsncal statemenis are presenied in Hong Keng dollars, which is same as the funciional
currency of HPH Trust

Transachons in foreign curmencas are convarnad at the rates of exchange ruling al tha Insaction dales. Monetary
assels and abdlies are ranslated al the rales of exchange wing al the end of the réportng period
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Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (Continuad)
(w} Forelgn exchange (Continued)

The financial statemanis of foreign oparations (1.9, subsidary companms, assocaled compames, pint venhires
or branches whose aclivibes are based or conduciad in & counbly of curreéncy other than those of the Trusl) ane
ransialed into Hong Kong dellars using the year end rales of exchange for the stalement of financial positon
itams and the average reles of exchange for the year for the income stalerment fems. Exchange differences ane
recognised n other comprehensive income and accumulsled under the heading of exchange reserve. Exchange
diflarences ansing from loreign currepcy borrowings and ofther cummency instrumants designated as hedges of such
overseas investments, are frecognised in ather comprehensive income and accumulated under the headng of
EXchANDE resands.

Exchange diferences arising from Iranslation of inlercompany loan balances between Group enfilies are
recognised n olher comprehensive mcome and accumulaled under the heading of exchange reserve when such
loans form parl of the Group's nel investment in @ loreign enbily.  On the disposal of & foreign operation (ie. a
dispasal of the Group's enlire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over & subsidiary
that inciudes a foreign operation, & disposal fwvolving loss of jont control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operalion, of a dispasal involving loss of signilicant influence over an assocaled company thal includas a Efesgn
operation), all of the exchange gains of losses accumulated in exchange reserve in respect of thal aperation
atiributable (o he ownems of the Company ars ansfemed oul of the axchange reserve and ae recognsed i lhe
income atatement

In adddion, in felabon 1o @ parial dsposal of a subsidsary thal does nol resull in the Group losing confral aver
the subsidiary, the proporionate shase of accumulgled exchange diferences s re-aliribuled to nonscontrolling
interests and |8 nol recognised in the income statement. Far all ather panial disposals (1.8 parbal deposals of
associated companees of joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated axchange différences is fransfermed oul of the exchange resarve and is
recognised in the income stalemend,

All other exchange differences are recognised in the income statement.
(%)  Distributions 1o the Trust's unitholders
Destribdions to the Trusts unitholders are recorded in equity in the pariod in which they are approved for payment.
¥y}  Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the rsks and rewards of ownership of assets remaina with the leasing
company are accounted for ae operating leases. Payments madafincome received under operating beases net of
any incentives receved fmmiprovided to the leasing company are charged/credied o the mcome statement on a
sraighting basis over the kase periods
1z Revenue and other income recognition
Revenues are recagnised when or as the control of the good or service is fransferred 1o the cuslomer.  Dependeng
on the lerms of heé contracl and the laws thal apply 1o the conliract, control of ihe good or service may be
transferred aver time or at @ paint in teme,

Control of the good or sanvice is transferred over time i the Group's perdormance provides all of the benefis
received and consumed simullaneously by the cusiomer

I contral of the azsel ranalers over ims, revenos s recognisad over the panod of the contrael by reference o the

progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Oihersise, revenue is recognised al a point
in time whean the customer oblaing control of the asssl
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting pelicies (Continued)
{z) Revenus and ather income recagnition (Continued)

The progress lowards compleles salisfaction of the performance obligation s measured based on direct
mgasirements of the value lransleied by the Group 1o 1he cuslemer

Transacton price of 8 contract shall be allocated to ndividues! perfformance obligation (or distnct good of service).
The omective whan allocating the transachon price is for an enbity 1o allocate the transaction price lo each
performance cbligation i an amount thal depicts the amount of consideration 1o which the enlity expeécts to be
enliled n exchange for lranalerming the promsed goods of services 1o The cuslomer

Revenue is recognised over bme:

i for parts and mfaied services, iransporiation and logistics solubons along with (he progress when service is
rendered; and

i) for management and eervice fee income, and sysiem developmant and support fees along with the progress
when sarvice is renderad

IMBrest ncome & ecognised over lime on a me proporion bess using he afective interesl method

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Mote 2 includes a summary of the significant accounting policies usad in the preparabion of the financial statements.
The preparation of financial stetements ofien requires the use of judgements to saelect specific accounting methods
and policies from sevéral acceplable alernalives. Furthermore, sgnificant estmales and assumplions concermang
e fuliire may be required in selecting and applying those methods and poakcies in the financial slatements, The
Croup bases ds estimatea and judpements on historical experence and various other assempbions that it believes
are reasonable undar the circumstances. Actusl results may differ ffom thess estimales and judgements under
differant assumplions or condtions

The followsng s & review of the mode signifbcant sssumplions and estimates as well 83 the accounling policies and
mathods used in the preparation of the financial statemants.

{a}  Long lived assots

The Group has made substaniial investments in fangible long-lived assets in ita container terminel operating

business. Changes in technology or the inlended use of these assels may cause the esimated period of use o
value of these assats 1o change.

The Group congsders ils assels impasment aceeunting palicy bo be a pobey that requines one of the mosl extengive
applications of pdgements and eshmates by managemen

Assals thal are subjecl lo depreciation are reviewsd 1o delermine whelher there is any indication thal tha carmying
value of these asasets may nol be recoverable and have suffered an impairment kss. If any such indicalion exists,
I recoverable amounis of the assels are esiimated in onder (o debermine the extent of the impakment loss, I any.
The recoverabde amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less eosts 1o sall and valus-in-use. Such impaiment
Inss is recognsed in the mecome stalement axcepl where the asset is carmed at valuabon and the impairment loss
does nol excead the revaluation surplus for thal asset, in which case il is Ireated as a revaluation decraase and is
recognised in olher comprehensive ncome
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
{a}  Long lived assets (Continued)

Managemenl's judgements ane reguired in the area of assel impairment, parboulardly in assessing. (1) whether
an evenl has cccurred that may mdicate that the relaled assel values may nal be recoverable; [2) whelher (he
cammying value of Bn 85881 cen be suppoed by Ihe recoverable amount, Baing the higher of fair value |ess cosis
to eedl or net present valee of future cash fMows which are estimated based wpon the continued use of the assst
in the Group; and (3] the appropriate key assumplions to be applied in prepanng cash Bow projeclions indudng
whather these cash fow projeclions are discounted using an appropridle rate. Changing the assumpbions sclected
by management 1o determine the level, i any, of mpairment, including Ihe discounl rates of the growlh rabe
assumplions in the cash flow projections, could malenally affect the net presant value used in the impairment best
and as a resull afect the Group's financial condifion and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projecied perfermance and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary fo lake an
impairmant charge io the income staloment

b}  Goadwill

For the purposes of impasrment tests. ihe recoverable amound of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
calculalions. The walue-n-use calculalions primanly use cash Now projections based on financal projections
approved by management. There are a number of assumplions and estimates nvolved for the preparation of cash
fiow projections. The key assumptions adopied in the value-in-use calculabons afe based on management's best
eslimates and pasl sxperience. Changes lo key assumplions can affect signficantly the results of the impasrment
bests.

Kay assumplions are made with respact to the sxpected growlh in revanues and cost of services rendened,
timing of fulure capital expenditures, lerminal growth rates and seleclion of discount rate, which approximately
refiect he risks involved. The growth in revenues will be aflfected by the growth in bolh the volume of conlainers
handied and tarifl, The volume of contesners handied will be impacied by economis and global markel candibons,
structural changes withen the shipping line indusiry and influenced by the pedormance and growih of regional and
intemational trading economies I key export markels for local exporters experiance an economic downlum or
recession, axport volumes may decrease. The growth of tarff depends on the Group's overall compelitvenass,
which 12 determined by a number of faclors, such as geographical reach and conneclivily. operaling efficeency, berth
avadabdily, mega vessel handling capabdiy, lechnology offerings, Fanspartslion and logates network and ancillary
sarvices and facdities.

A significant portion of cost of services rendered is labour cost which will be impacted by tabour supply and
infiation, In addition, the introduction of ever larper vessels by shippng lines will require upgrading of equipment
and new work proctices o increase praductvily 80 as bo remain compelitive

{e}]  Customer relationships

Customer relalionships acquired in a business combinalion are recognised af fair value &l the sequisiion dale
Customas relalonships are camied al cost less accumulated amonisation. Amortisation ks caleulsted using the
siraight-ine method over the expecied life of the cusiomer relabionships.

The Group considers (is impairment accouniing policy bo be a policy thal réquings one of The mosl extensive
applications of judgements and eslimates by managament. Inlangible assets with definite useful lves that ane
subjact to amortisation are reviewad to datermine whathes there k= any indcation that tha camying velug of these
assels may nol be recoverable and have suffered an impairment loss. H any such Indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of the intangible assats are estmated m order 1o daterming the exient of the impaswment lkoss, if any The
recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's Tair value less costs 10 sell and value-in-use.  Such mpairment
lo=s |8 recognised in the income stalement, Managements judpements are required in the area of infangible
asset impaiment, particularly in sssessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may indicate thal the related
assel values may nol be recoverable, and () whather the carrying value of an assal can be supported by the
recoverable amount, beng the highar of fair value less cosls to sall of nel presant value of future cash lows which
are estimabed based upon the conbinved use of the aasel in the Group
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
{d)  Depreclation

Depraciabon of operating assets conslilutes a substantial operaling cosl for the Group, The cos! of fixed assels
i& charged as depreciation expense aver (he astimated useful ives of the respactive assels using the siralght-ne
mathod. The Group penodically réeviews changes in technology and indushry conditions, asset relirement aclivity
and residual values to delermine adjustments bo estimated remainng uselul lives and degreciabon rales.

Actual economic lives may difer from estimaled usehd lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change in
depreciable lives and Iherefore depreciabion expense in fulune penods

{e}  Accrual of net revenue

Revanue is acerued al pariod end with reference 1o the throughpul handled and the terms of agreemeonis for
comainer handling service, Consequently, recognibion of revence & based an the volume of services rendensd
as well 28 the atest 1anff agreed with customers or best estmated by management.  This estimale s based on
lha [atest tariff and obher indusiry considerations as apprograte. If the actual revenue differs from the estimated
accrual, this will have an impact on revenue n fulure periods.

in Pension costs

The Group operales several defined benefit plans. Pension costs for defined banefit plans are assessaed using the
prajecied unit credit method in accordance with HKKAS 10 (2011}, Employes Benefits. Linder this method, the cost
of providing penssens is charged to consalidotad income stolement so a% to spread the regular cost over the Tuture
sarvice lives of employees in accordance with the advice ol the acluaries whe carry out 8 valuation of the plans.
The pension chigaton s measured at the presant value of the estimated huture cash outfiows using nterest rales
delermined by relerence to mamkel yields al the end of the reperting period based on high qualily corporate bonds
willh eurtency and 1erm aimidar to the estimated lerm of benafil obligabons.

Remeasurements ansing from defined benefil plans ame reccgnesed in other comprehenswve income in the year in
whach they occur and reflactad immadialaly in pension reserva  Hemeasuremenis compnea acluanal gains and
losses, he relurn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in ned inlerest on the nel defined bensfil lability!
assel) Bnd any change in the effect of the assel celbng (excluding amounts incheded in net inferest on the net
defined benefil liability/assat).

Managamen] appoinled achsaries 1o carry oul a full valuation of Ihese pansion plans 10 delerming hoe penssan
obligatons that are requred to be discipsed and accounted for in Ihe financial stalemeants in accordance with the
HKFRS requiraments,

The actwaries use assumptions and estimates in defermining the fair value of the defined benefit plans and
ovaluale and updabe thasse assumptions on an annual basis. Judgamenls ame requined fo delermng the principal
aciuarial assumplions 10 delermne ihe present value of defined benefil obligabons and service cpsts, Changes to
the principal acluanal assumglions can significantly atfect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in
future penods.

(g} Tax

The Group i subgect to income laxes in different jurisdickona. Ssgnificant judgements are required in detammining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the uimale tax
determination is uncedain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises Habillies for anbcipated
L audil is5ues based on eslimates of whaether addilional laxes will be dus. Wheds Tha final e oulcome of these
maiters is different from the amounts that were previously recosded, such differences will impact the income 1ax and
defermed tax provisions in the period in which such determination = made.

325/485



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

110 STAYING FOCUSED

Notes to the Financial Statements

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
{g]  Tax (Comtinued)

Draffarrad ta is providad in full, using the Eabilly method, on lempodary diffarences arising between [he tax bases
ol assels and Eabdlies and their comyng values n the financial statements. Delerred lax adsels are récognised
fer unused {ax losses carred forward to the extent it (8 probable that future taxable profs will be availabie
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
invalves judgements régarding the future financial performance of the paricular legal enbiy or tax group in which
ther deferred tox assel has been recognised. A varety of olher Taclors are alio evaluated in considering whether
hede s convincing evidence that It & probable thal some portion of all of the deferred tax assets will uRimaloly
be realised, such as the exislence ol taxable temporary differences, group relief, tax planning strategies and the
periads in which estimaled tax losses can be utihsed. The camying amount of deferred tax assels and related
financial models and budgels are reviewed al the end of the reporting penod and 1o the exient thal there is
inaufficient convincing evidence thal sufficsent taxable profita will be avalable within the ulilisation periods lo allow
ulilesaten aof the carry forward Lax losses, the assel balance will be reduced and charged to the income slatemant

4 Revenue and other income and segment information

(a)  Revenue and other income

018 2017
HKS000 HES 000
Revenue

Rendering of port and relabed senices 11,124 858 11,224 487
Rendering of tranapaortation and logistics solutions 187 958 203,105
Management and sendce fae income 36,962 36,876
Systemn developmant and suppori feas 13374 14,513
Mhers 1,173 1.200
1,374,133 11,480,780

Ciher incoma
Interest income 108 4289 70,067

11,482 562 11,550,857

(b  Segment information

The chief operating decision maker has been defermined to ba the executive committee of HPH Trust {the
‘Executve Commities’], The Execulive Commitiee reviews ihe inlamal reporting in omder fo assess parformancs
and alipcale resources. Managemenl has delermaned the opedaling segmenls based on these reporta

HPH Trust s principally engaged in mwesting in, develeping, operating and managing deep-water confainer poris
and porl ancillary senvices and thenelore managemen considers thal HPH Trust operales in one ngee business
segmient

Revanua is recegnised ovar ma end disciosures by gecgraphacal location are ehown balow

Revenue and other income Hon-current assots

2018 2017 2018 2017

HKE'000 HHE000 HKS'000 HHKE 000

Hang Kong 3,883, TEQ 4,138,145 24,050 421 7 823603
Maintand China 7,598 TE2 7412811 81,275 075 72 BE1ATO

11,482, 562 11,560,957 85,325 4846 100 484,773
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Oparating profit
Oparating profit is stated after crediting and charging the following:

2018 T
HES 000 HKS" 000
Crediing
Devidend income from Rver Pors Economec Benefits (Note 17) A6 450 -
Mel exchange gain 0,498 B 528
Chargang
Auditor's remuneration
- B sanvices 14,103 15 009
- non-audit sarvicas LA 1,382
Amaostisation
- leasehold land and land use rights 1,282 311 1,285 786
- raitway usage rights 515 523
- customer relationships 334 208 334,208
Deprecialion of fxed assets 1,449,003 1,382,612
Ml loss on disposal of fived assets and nvestmants 17.088 5 581
Operating lease rentals
- office premises and pon facilites 36, 442 41 008
Staff costs (included amouwnt charged within cosl of services rmndered)
- Wages, salanes and other benefits 1,393,400 1,368,538
= Pension codls 127,346 128,349
Interest and other finance costs
2018 2T
HES 000 HK$ 000
Bank loans and overdrafts 705 Baf 566 578
Guaranteed nabes 261,925 227,482
Loans from non-controlling inlerests 3186 3,081
Oither finance costs 50,Taz 57,756
Falf valueg foss on interes! rake swaps G 16,656
Less- fair value adjustmant o bank and other debts under fair value hedpe (L] (15 856)
1,021,801 856, 887
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T Tax
2018 T
HKS 000 HKS 000
Current 1ax 774,087 To4 593
Doferred tax (Mote 18) {339,715 (307 530)
434, JE8 487 0653

Tha tax charge an the Group's (loss)iprofit before tax differs from the theoretical amownd thal would anse using the

wigaghled average tax e of the Group as follows

208 T
HKS 000 HKS000
(Loss)ipaofit before tax excluding share of profitg less losses after L of
|oint ventures and associaled compankes and impairmant of goodwill and
nwvestment in a joint ventune 2,520 041 2 Tad S50
Tax calculated at weighted average tax rate of 27 5% (2017 26.7%) 695 B8E 732 Bla
Tax exemphon in the PRC (485,808 (429,104)
Inzoma nol subject 1o tax (3,751} (3.020)
Expanses not deduchible for 1ax purposes 83,248 B2.428
Withholding lax an unremilled eamngs 121,253 1587
Recopgnitien of praviously unrecognised tax losses [80) (10.182)
Liilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (1,645) (2861)
Under provision in prior year 13,679 860
Tax lnsses not recognised 1,475 1261
Ol 209 (B0
Total fax 434 JEH 487 D63
Mot

MNon-cash goodvwill impalrment loss of HKE11.4 biflion and impasrmaen! loss of imvestment in a joint venluere of

HK30 8 bithon were recognised in 2018 (Node 14(b) and MNale 18)

8 Distributions

2018 07
HKS" 000 HKS000
Fos the period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016
Distrbution of 16,60 HK cents par unit - 1,448,043
For the persod from 1 January 2017 1o 30 June 2017
Distribution of 850 HK cents per unil - BT 554
Fof the penod from 1 July 2017 Lo 31 Docember 2017
Distribution of 11,10 HK cenls per unit BEE 832 -
Fof the paned from 1 January 2018 o 30 June 2018
Distrbulion of B 52 HK cants per uni 742, 188 -
1.708.118 2273597

Qn 12 Febiuary 2019, the Board of Direciors of he Tiusiee-Manager recommended the distibation of B.48 HK
cefils per unil for ke financial resull from 1 July 2018 Lo 31 December 2048 (2017 11.10 HK cents per wunil)
amaunting 1o HKSTIAT million (2017 HKS966.0 millon) end payable on 29 March 2019, This distrbution is not
reffected in these financial statemants and will be recognised in equity in the financial year ending 31 December

2018
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{Loss)learnings per unit

The caleulation of (losspearnings per unil & based on loss alfributable to unitholders of HPH Trust of
HK511,551,320,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017 profit of HKS044 181 000) and on 8,711,101 022
units in issue (2017: 871,101,022 unils in issue), which & lhe weighted avarage numbar of units Tor the year
ehded 31 Dacambar 2008

Celuted (loss)ieamimgs per uml = the same as the basic (lossyeamings per unit for the years ended 37 December

2018 and 2017
Fixed assets
Container Ohher
handling fixed
Praperiies equipment Barges assels Tatal

Group HHK5"000 HKS"000 HES'000 HK$'000 HES'000
2018
Cipening nel book amount 16,382,757 7874 BOT 45 243 523 587 24 626,394
Additions 13,117 Ga.730 2857 42 85 M0
Transfer fram projects under

developmani (Nabe 11) a7a.e40 616,422 - 55,438 1,548,720
Depreciation (BOT BTE) (749.708) {B,102) {B231T) {1,448 003)
Dsposals {9.064) (26.776) {2.873] 13200 (38,133)
Curraney translation differences (125, 288) {13,508) = (3,973} (142,771}
Closing met book armount 16,530, 486 7,569 855 35,025 483,077 24 628 553
AL 31 December 2018
Cosl 20,909,382 12,744,700 848,130 30613 34 650,814
hecumulated deprecaton [4,378.876)  (5,174.744) [30,105) (437 536)  (10.021,264)
Mel ook amount 16,530 480 7,509.965 38,025 483,077 24,020,553
2097
Cipening nel boak amount 16,805,078 7,680,847 35,185 505,238 25026 458
Additions 19,140 115.042 18,139 1,833 154,154
Transfer Trom projicts under

developmeant (Nate 11) 46,820 571,633 = 06,543 MsMs
Depreciabion (578.408) {T10,537) {8,091} (B, 778} {1,382.813)
Desposals (4 606) {3.021) = (58) (7,785}
Currency translation differances G4, 744 20,743 - 5817 121,304
Clgging mét book amduni 16,382,757 7674807 45,243 523,547 24 626,394
Al 31 Decembar 2017
Cost 20,182,423 12,067 400 78,104 BT 327 33,226,254
Accumulaled depreciation {3, 799.668) (4,392 583) (32,861) (373,740} {8, 508,960)
Mel book amount 18,382 757 T 674 607 45 243 523 547 24 626,394
Al 1 Januasy 2017
Cost 20,028,045 11,337,082 60,906 BD5755 32.232.888
Accumulated depreciation (3,223 BET) (3,858 145) (25,801) (300 51T) {7,206 430}
Met book amoun 16,805,078 7.680.847 35,185 505,238 25,026,458
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11 Projects under development

OooOooooOoooooooooboood

Group 2018 2017
HKS 000 HKS 000
Al beginning of i year 1,970,166 1846912
Additons 563 92 TT6. 734
Tranafer o fived assets (Nobe 10) (1.548.720) (715,075)
Cumency tranglabion differences 10,959 51,505
At end of the year 086 387 1,970, 168

Projecis under developmant mamly represant the cost of construction of port faciliies in Hong Kong and the PRC

incunied by subssdiary companies

12 Leasehold land and land use rights

Group 08 20T
HES 000 HES M
Met book value
At beginning of the year 39,724 150 40,825 107
Amartisation (1,282 2T1) {1,285 768)
Cawmency translation diffarences (58, 550) 84,839
Al end of the year 38,373,329 39,724,150
Cost 48,250,704 48,310,008
Accumulaied amortisabion |2,677 483) (B,594,858)
38373329 30,724,150
13 Rallway usage rights
Group 018 20T
HES T HES 0
Mot book value

Al baginning of the year 12.687 12,428
Amadtisation (535) {523)
Currency translabion differances =13 T62
Al wnd of the year 11819 12,067
sl 15343 16,357
Accumuiaied amortisalion (3.724) (3, 880)
11,619 12 667
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14  Intangible asseots
{a} Customer relatienships

Group 018 2017
HES 000 HICS 0
HNet book value
Al beginning af the yesr 6,170 184 6,504, 350
Amaatisation (334, 208) (334, 208)
At end of the year 5,835 478 6,170,184
sl B 440 00D B 440,000
Accumulated amortisation (2,604 022} {2,2608,816)
At mnd of the year 5,835 578 6,170,184
{b)  Goodwil

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGU kdonlified acconding to geographical locations as he Group has ond
business segment only. The goodwill s allocaled as follows

Group 2018 2017
HES D HES [

Hong Kong - 1,666,002
Mainland China 11,270 044 40,963,042

11,270,044 22,620,044

Group Ll 017

HKS'000 HKS" 000
At beginning of the year 2 A20 044 2620044
Irmpairmant of goodwil [accumulated: HIKS30.4 billion) [11.359.000) -
At end of the year 11,270,044 22,629,044

Iri the Tourth quarer of 2018, an impairment assessmenl was undanaken i respect of the Group's assals including
goodwill  Mansgemend reviewsd the lalest markel developmants and the business plan and considers the Hong
Kong and the Mainlend China operations to be sdversely impacted by the mounting global frade uncerainties, the
behavoural changes in multinatonal corporations caused by the cument trade {ensions. incledng accelerating the
divarsificatan of production bases outside of China and the affects stemming fram the struclural changes within the
shipping Ine industry. As @ resull, the changes in key assumplions adopled &% compared 1o last wear ane made as
Toillorars:

Hong Kong Mainland China

Revenue growth rate Decreased by Decreased by
15 - 4% 3% -T%

Aa in prior years, fthe impairment methodology azsumed terminal growth rales and discount rates of 2% - 3% and
B% - 10% peor annum, respectvely. Terminal growth rales are detarmined by considering both intemal and extemal
tactors relating to the porl operation and discount rates reflect specific risks relating to the relevant busness
Based on the assessment, the Group has recognised non-cash impaiment losses of HKEO,T billlon and HKS1.T
billion against the goodwill allocated 1o the Mainlznd China CGU and Hong Kong CGU respeclively.
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14  Intangible assots (Continuod)
(b}  Goodwill {Continued)

Fior illestration purposes, a hypolhebcal 0.5% decrease in the revenue growth rate, a (.5% increase in costas of
senncas rendefed and a 0.5% increase in the discount rate, with all other varables and assumplions held
constamt, would decresse the recoverable amounl of the Hong Kong CGLU, by HKS1.9 bilion, HKE1.0 billion and
Hi51 2 billion respectively and of the Mainland Ching CGU, by HK$2.0 billion, HKS0.7 billion and HK$2.1 bilton
respactvaly.

Acfual results i the future may difer materialy fram the sensilivity analysis due lo developments in the global
markets and changes in economic conditons which may cause fluctuations in growth and markel inlerest reles to
vary and therefofe it & iImporant to note that the hypothetica! amounts so generafed do nof represent 8 projectan
of likely fulure events and profits or losses

415 Associated companies

Group 2018 M7
HKE 000 HKS"000
Share of net assats 603,342 754247
Laan 1o an associaled company 342,000 =
045,242 754,247

& lean of RMB30D 000,000 (approximabe o HKS342 000,000) provided 19 an associaled company i unsecured,
interest bearing 81 & fixed rale of 4.0% per annum end repayable in 5 years. The camying amound of the lean o
an associsled company epproxmates s fair value. The loan was cumen! in nature al 31 Decamber 2017 and
disciosed in Mote 20.

Details of the principal assocsiled companies ol 31 Decembar 2018 and 2017 o as follows:

Place al Effective
MName establishment Principal activities interest held
Shenzhen Yantian Tugboal PRC Provision of tugboat TIB4%
Company Lid senvices in the PRC
Huzhou International Containar PRC Developmant and operation 41.31%
Terminals Limitad " ol a eorlainer tarminal

(1) Audded by PricewnferhoussCoopers netwosk firns

There i3 no associated company as at 31 December 2018, which in the opinion of the direclors of the Trustes-
Manager. is indwidually matarial to the Group.

There are no mabenial conlngent kabillies relating lo the Group’s inférests in he assodaled companies

Set out bebow are the aggregate amownt of the Group's share of the folowing flems of associated companies:

2018 2017

HES 000 HES 000

Profits less iosses afler lax {06 BI04 ) {116.405)
Oiher compransnsve [loas)meams (#3.148) 31,813
Tolal comprehensive loss {130,052} (84 402)
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Joint ventures
Group 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of not assots 3486227 3,526,633
Loans ko joint ventures (note a) 127 550 309,250
Less, accurnulgled Impasment (nobe bl 1930,000) -
2681777 3,835,683

MNoles

(a) A loan of HIKS120,000,000 (2017 HKS300,000,000) provided 1o a joint venbure ie interest bearing at Hong
Hong Interbank Ofered Rabe ("HIBOR") plus 2.1% per annum (2017 HIBOR plus 5.0% per annumj
Another loan provided o @ jonl venure of HKST 550,000 (2077 HKS9,250,000) s interest free Both of
thie Ipans prowvided to jont ventures ane unsecured and nol expecied 1o be repayable within one year, The
carrying amouni of the loans to joint veniures approximates |t fair value

13} In the fourth quarter of 2018, an impairment assessmani was underaken n respect of the Group's joint
venlufes engaging in lerminal operations n Horg Kong as management considered these joint venlures
would experence simitar challenges as detalled in Mote 14(b) Based on the resuls aof the impairment
assessments, an impamment boss on Invesiment in a joinl vanlure of HKS930 milkon were recognised for the

year ended 31 Decemnber 2018

The recowverable amount has been delermined under the value in vuse model, which assumed larminal
growth rates and discound rates of 2% and 0% per annum, respectively Terminal growth rates are
determined by considering beth intemal and external factors relating to the podt operation and discount rates
reflect speciic risks relating o the relevanl business.

Dedails of principal jpint ventures at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation! Effective
Hame establishment Principal activitios interest haeld
COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Development and operation 50.00%
Limited™ of @ contmingr larmanal
Asia Conlainer Tarminals Limied™ Hang Kang Develapment and operation AD.00%
of & conlamner larmanal
Beijing Leading Edge Conlainar PRE Provision of logistic services 50 (0%
Services Co., Limited™
Marcury Sky Group Limited™ Britssh Virgin lslands  Imvestment holding 50.00%
Shenzhen Leading Edge Port PRC Pravmion of port agency 48 .00
Services Co. Limiled™ BEVICES
‘fantign Par Inemalional PRC Pravision of eleciionic pon 2B8.21%

Infesmaton Company Limited

commily System

(1) Auched by PricewalarhouseCoopers netwerk Tims

(2] Mot requred bo be sudiled under the Liws of the counkry ol incerparation

Thote is no point veniure a5 at 31 December 2078, which in the opinion ol the dirsciors of the Trustea-Manager, is

Ind viduaty matenal to the Group,
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Joint ventures (Continued)
Thare are no matenal contingent kabiities relating to the Group'e intarests in the joint ventureas.

Sl out bekow ane the apgregate amount of the Group's share of the folowing lems of pnt veniunes

i L] 2017
HES000 HKS (WY
Profits less losses afler lax 54 279 TB.2TS
Other comprahensive iosa (585) -
Tolal comprshensive incoms: 53 684 8,373
Other non-current assets
Group 2018 2017
HES 000 HICS 000
Inveaimenis
Lisled equity securly 38,150 45,225
River Ports Econamic Banafils (Nota) 428600 518600
Prepayment for fixed assets, leasehold land and land use nghts 2159 f.rMa
Qithat receivables and propaymants 99,020 103,782
SE0. 920 739308
Mode:

The River Pore Economic Benafite represant the economie inferest and benefits of the river ports in Manhal and
Jiangmen, tha PRC (fogether the “River Pors™), mcluding all dividends and any other distrbufions or olther monies
payabla to a related company of any of ds subsxdary companies in fis capacity as a shareholdar of the mlevant
helding company of the River Pors ansing from the profits altibaiable 1o the business of the River Ports and afl
sahe of disposal procecds derved Trom such businessen, assels, rghls andior kabilities constiliting any part of e
business of the River Poris as agreed with & refsled company and any of is subsidiary comaanias.

Deferred tax

Group 2018 2017
HEE 000 HES D00

Deferred tax assets (18.528) (22.712)

Defarred tax abifies 10,200 BEE 10,635,108

Mol deferrad Lax liabdibes 10,272 328 10,612,386

334/485



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

HUTCHISON PORT HOLDIMGS TRUST 119
AMMUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements

Deferred tax (Continuod)

The movemenls in defered 1ax (assats)/letelilies during the year are as lollows

Fair value Withholding

Unused  Acceleraled adjusiments tax on
tax depreciation arising from  unremitted
losses sllowances acquisitions earnings  Others Tatal
HES'000 HES"000 HKS 00D HKS'000  HKS000 HEKS 000
2018
At 1 January 2018 {26, DEE) 616 563 0734 188 208 202 (6.522) 10812 206
Tax charged feredited) o
Income slatemant 5363 (6. 880) {361,128) 23,314 (377 {338.718)
Oiner wmporary difarences - 15 (61} {350) ar (348)
At 3 December 2018 {23,702} a0, 718 8,372,988 321,168 (6,852) 10,272,328
Mar
At 1 January 2017 (17.582) B12.230 10,044 865 237,118 (6.482) 10820237
Tax {credited )’ charged to
incoma slatemant (M47H 3,363 (380.710) 61,086 204 (307530
Other tamporary dfferences - - [BT) - (244) {311)
AL 31 Decomber 2017 [ 29.085) B15.583 09,714 188 258202 (6.522) 10.612.386
Modes:

(a) The defarred tax assats and liabilibes are offsal whan thefe s a legally enforceable nght o sat off and when
th defarred laxes relabe 1o the same Niscal aulhority,

(b) Deferred lax assels are recognssed for tax losses carried forward fo the extent that reakisation of the
related {ax benefi through the future taxable profil is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses
of HKSTE 722,000 at 31 Decamber 2018 lo carry forwand against future taxable income. O these,
HEE61,506,000 can be camed forward indefinitely, The remaining HKS14,.216.000 expires in the Tollowing

yeaTs
2018 2017
HKS 000 HES 000
In the firsl year = z
In the second year - -
in tha third year T892 1513
ini tha folirth yaar - 152407
In the fifih year 6,224 -
14,218 16,720

fed Deferred tex liabilities are calculated in full on lemporary differences under the kabilities mathod wsing
fhe fax rale of the countries mn which the Group oparated. The temporary differances are for accelarabed
depreciglion alowances, fair value adjustments wesing from acquisiions and wilhholding taxes ansing from
unremited samangs.

(d) Defemed fax assels and liabilies are expacted to be recovered or settied mostly afler more than twehve
manths
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19  Cash and bank balances

Group 2018 047
HHES 000 HKE'000

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand B17,733 541,272
Bhorl-tadm bank deposds 5,708 621 6,184 810
6,524,354 6,726,082
Restricted deposit (Mota) 42 00 42,000
Cash and bank balances 6,568,354 §.768.082
Trust 2018 2097
HEKS'000 HK$ 000

Cash and cash aquivalenis
Cesh at bank and on hand 4,525 2,054

Mota:

Al 31 December 2018, & deposd of HKS42 000,000 (31 December 2017 HK$42,000,000) was placed by &
subsidiary company of the Group as a collatersl for the secured bank loan entered in 2016,

Cash and bank balances am denorminated in the following curmences

Group 2018 27
Porcentage  Percentage

Heang Kang dollar 43% 5%
Renminbi 1% 6%
Unied States doliar % 1%
100% 100%

Trust 2018 2017
Parcantage  Percentage

Homg Kong dollar 3% 19%
Unted States doliar 20% 24%
Singapore doliad 4T% 57%
100% 100%

The carmying amounts of cash and bank balances approximale their fair valees The mdaximoam exposure 1o credit
rish 18 the carying amounts of the cash and bank batances.
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Trade and other receivables

Group 2018 207
HKS'000 HKE'000
Trade recasvables 2518572 4817 ara
Less | provision for impairment of receivables {51,255) {54, 838)
2467317 4580434
Qe raceivablos and prapaymants 355,782 4022
Dividand receivable from joint ventures 30,081 -
Amauni dus from & related company (Maole a) 20 9,260
Amounts due rom associated companses (Nobe a) 12,139 1,7
Amounts due from joint veniures (Mote a) 105 558 185,438
Loan 16 an associated company [Nobe b) - 315,350

3,060,915 3446205

Trust 2018 2m7
HKS'000 HKS'000

Other recaivables and prepayments 335 1.438
Amaund duse from a subsidiary eompany (Mobe a) 2 =
337 1,438

Trade and ather recelvables are denominated in the Tallowing curmencies

Graup 2018 2017
Percentage Percentage

Hang Kong dollar 51% S0r%
Ranminbi 3% 5%
Unded States dollar 18% 14%
100% 100%

Trust 2018 2017

Parcentage Percentage

Singapore dollar 100% 100%

The carrying amawunis of trade and ofher recoivables of the Group and of the Trust approximate thair fair valuos.
Motes:

(@) The amoeunts due from a related company, associated companies and joint ventures of the Group; and
amoun! due from a subsidiary company ol the Trusi are unsecured. inleres free and have ne fived tarms of
rapayment

ik} The loan lo an associaled company of RMB2GS5 000,000 {approamate to HES315,350,000) is unsacured,
interest bearing at a foled rate of 2,30% per annum as at 31 December 2017, The loan was menewed and
non-curtent N nature as al 31 December 2018, Dotail of the non-curman! loan o an associaled company |5
disclosed in MNole 15
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20 Trade and other receivables (Continuod)
Moles: (Contnued)
[ed Al 31 December 2018, trade receivables of the Group amounling to HKS1,305806000 (2017

HKE1, 135446, 000) wene past dus bul nel impaired  Thess refate 1o & numbar of ndependen] cusiomam fer
whom there s no recent history of defaull. The ageng analysis of (hese rade recervables (s a3 follows

2018 2017

HHES 000 HHS5000

Up 1o 2 months 883,560 08,775
2 to 3 manths 138274 137,070
Over 3 months 183,672 260801
1,305,806 1,135,446

Al 31 December 2018, trade recaivables of the Group amounbng o HKE51,255 000 (2017 HKS56, 638 000)
werne impaired and provided for.  The impaired receivables are balances mainly related to a customer that
was in financial difficules. The Group does not hold any collaleral ower thess balances.

Movernenls of provisions fad impaimmeant ol rade recesvables of 1he Group ade as Tollows:

2018 2017

HES'000 HKS'000

Al bagnnang of 1he yaar 58,838 GOBSD
Provision for mparment 220 -
Winle back of provision for impalirment (5.803) {3,807
Receivabies willan off as Uncolectible - (205}
Al end of tha year 51,255 56,838

The creilion and release of provisions for mmpairmen] of receivables have been included in the incomse
slatemant, Amounts charged 1o the provision for impairmenl of receivables are generally writien off when
there i no expaciation of recovenng additonal cash,

The olher classes within trade and other receivabies do nod conlain impaired assels,

The maximum exposure to credit nek at the reporting date is the carrying value of sach class of recevables
mentioned abowe

21  Trade and other payables

Group 2018 w7
HES 000 HK$000

Trade payables, alther payables and accruals 5511212 8 366 404
Interest rate swap under fair value hedge (Mote 24) - 4,084
Loans fram non-contralling inlerests (Nobe a) 167,742 161,242
Amounts due lo relaled companies (Nobe b) 100,846 99,229
fmounds due o associaled companies (Mobe b) 5482 3,716
Amounis due o joint ventuses (Note b) 162 838 106,957
582821 6,741,620
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Trade and other payables (Continued)

Trust 2018 2017

HKE 000 HKE000

Trade payables, other payables and acoruals 4,535 1,378
Amounts due o

-a related campany (Mole b) 12,405 12,165

- subsidinry cormpanies (Mol b) 3615 B.7E9

20,585 30,312

Trade and othar payables are denominabed in the following curmencies:

Greup 2018 2097
Percentage Percentage
Hang Kang dollar To% To%
Renminbi 25% 2%
100% 100%
Trust 2018 2017
Percentage Porcentage
Hong Kong dollar 18% 2%
Uniled States dollar G0 30%
Singapore dollar 2% 8%
100 100%
At 31 Decamber 2018, the camyng amounis of trade and othar payables of the Group and of the Trust approamate
I fair values,
Mofes:
@) Tha loans from non-controliing interests of the Group are unsecured, inlerest free except for the amount

of HK$30.380.000 (2017: HK$30,380,000) and RMBTO,000,000, approaximate to HKSTS B0OD,000 (2017:
RMBT0,000,000, appraximate 1o HKSTS 100,000) which bear imerast st Hong Kong Doltar Prime Rate
(2017, Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rale) and fixed rate of 2.00% per annum (2017; 2.00% per annum],
respeciivaly, and have no fixed lerms of repayment and rapayable in one year, respectively

(b)  Amounts due o relaled companies, associated companies and joint venlunes af the Gfoup, and amounts

due o a related company and subsidiany companses of the Trust are unsecured, mberest free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.
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22  Bank and other debts

Current  Mon—current

Group partion portion Total
HKS 000 HHS 000 HKS 000
Unsecuned bank loans Z.510.000 21,313,350 23 823,350
Securad bank loan 9.120 57.000 66,120
Guaranieed nales - 7,800,000 7,800,000
Tolal principal amouni of bank and other dabls 2519120 28,170,350 31,680,470
Unamortised loan (acidies fees and discows related 10 debls {1.614) {135,010 {137,524)
Unfrea'isad loss on bank and othed dabis pursuant to inbenst
rale swap conlracls - {60.319) 180,319)
At 31 December 2018 2.517.508 28,874,121 31,481,627
Unsecunod bank loans 340,000 20,583,350 20,923,350
Secured bank lean 7140 64,020 76,160
Guaranteed noles 3,900,000 7,800,000 11,700,000
Tolal primcipal amount of bank and other debis 4,247 140 26452370 32,099.510
Unamortsed loan tacdifies fees and discounis refated o debts {1.800) {148 146) {150,016}
Uriea@sed loss on bank and other debis pursuant ta inbenest
rale swap conlracts (4.084) {35.329) 159.413)
At 31 Decembar 2017 4,241 186 28,248 BG5S 32,490,081

The carrying amounis of bank foans of the Group approximale thedr lair values as the bank loans bear floalmg
interest rates and are repriced within six months al tha prevalling markel inlerest rales, Tha loans will ba fully
repayable from March 2018 to June 2024 (3017 repayabla from March 2018 to June 2024).

In March 2015, the Group issued a S-year USS500 milkon 2.875% guaraniesd nobe due 2020, Interests rale swaps
are ublised by the Group in the management af s interes rale exposures. The Group's policy |s not to utillse
derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The Group has entered inlo interes? rale swap
agreaments with banks 1o swap tha ficed imerast rate guaranteed notes to floabng interest rate.

In Seplember 2017, the Group imsued a B-year USS500 million 2.75% guoranioed nole duo 3022 Cross cusency
imteresl rate swaps are ublsed by the Group in the management of its foreign currency exposures. The Group's
policy = not to utlse denvatve financsal instruments for frading or speculatve purposes.  The Group hes entered
inke cross cumency interesi rale swap agresments with banks o swap the fixed meres! rale United Siates doblar
guaranieed notes to fded interest rate Hong Kong dollar debts

The effective interest rale of the Group's bank and other debts al 31 December 2018 & 3.2% per annum (201
2 2% per annum).
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22  Bank and other debis [Continued)

Bank and other debts are denominated in the following cumencies:

Group 2018 a7
Percentage Percentage

Haong Kang doflar 21% 2%
Unied Slates dollar T9% (k]
100% 100%

Al 31 December 2018, feasehold land and land use nights of the Group totaling HKS200.770,000 (2017
HICS207, 645 000) were pledged as securily tor a bank ksan

23  Pension obligations

Group 2018 207
HEy 08 HER0Y:
Defined benefit plans
Pension obligatsons 56,601 80,552

The Group operales a number of definec benefit and defined coniribution plans. the assets of which are held
independently of the Group's assets in nusles administered funds

{a}  Defined benefit plans
The Group's defined benefit plans in Hong Kong are a contributory final salary pension plan and a non-contributory
guaranieed refurn defioed contribulion plan. The Group's plans were vakeed by Towers Watson Hong Kong
Limited, quakfied acluaries al 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 usng the projected unit credid method to
accounl fer the pension accountng costs in accordance with HKAS 18 (2011] “Employee Benefits”

The principal acluaral assumplions used for accounting purposes are as follows

2018 2017

Parcentage Percentage

Discount rate 2.30-2 40 1.80-1.80
Fulure salary incmnsas 40 40
Interast credited on plan aceounts 5.00-8.00 5.00-6.00
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23  Pension obligations {Continued)
{a}  Defined banefit plans (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of fmancial positon are determined as follows:

2018 amT

HES 000 HKES 000

Prasent value of defined banefil obligations 1,370,633 1413479
Fawr value of plan assefs (1,314,052} 11,332,927
Mt dirfined beneli labillies 56,601 B0 552

The movements in the present value of the defined benalil liabilibes and iz components are a8 fobows:

Defined Fairr value Net dofined

benefits of plan bencfit
ahbligations assels liabilities
HKE'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
2018
At 1 Januany 1413470 11,332.927) B0 562
Met charge/{credit) to the income statement
Current service coal 32328 B25 2313
Interent costi{income) 2777 (Z1,803) ar4
75,103 {20,978) 54125
Mat {erediticharge to other comprehensive income
Remeasyrements oss! gain)
Actuarial lossigain) arsing from
Expertience adustment 4,802 - 4,602
Financial assumpliong {65,581) - 65 581)
Damographic assumption 48 - 48
Retum on plan assels excheding inierest mcome - 19 726 19, 726
{60,541) 19,726 (40 B15)
Qther
Contrititions paid by the employs: - (37,261) 13T, 241)
Contibutions paid by the employee 5300 {8,300) -
Banefits paid {64.005) 4,005 -
Net transfer {1,883) 1,683 -
Al 31 December 1,370,653 (1,314,052} 56,601
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Pansion obligations [Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Defined Fair valua Het defined

benefits of plan benefit
obligations assets liabikities
HES 000 HKE 000 HES (00
2017
Al 1 January 1,464 270 (1,185 1948) 270,072
Mel charge/{credit) to the income statement
Currant safvice cosi 55586 T8 58372
Interest cosl{incomal 13,085 {10,703} 2382
BEETY {o.oa7) 58 704
Mel eredit to other comprehensive income
Remeasuremants loss/[gain)
Actuanal lossl{gain) arising fromc
Expefience aduatment T.856 = T.858
Financial assumptions (81 248) - (BT 245)
Demographic assumplion 27 310 - 27,310
Refum on plan assels excludang inleres! meome - (174,410} (174,410}
(46,128) (174 410) (220.529)
Other
Contnibutions pald by the employer - {36,685) [36,685)
Contributions paid by the employee 8830 (8,630} -
Benefits paid (B1,580) 81 580 -
et transier [383) 343 =
Al 31 Decembar 1413470 (1,332,927} B0552
Falr value of Ine plan sasels = analveed as follows:
2018 2017
HKS'000 HHES'000
Equity instruments 838,307 B73,725
Drebd instruments 35T 408974
Cash gnd odhers 30 002 5028
Al 31 Decembar 1,314, 052 1,332 927
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23 Pension obligations [Continued)

{a}  Defined benefit plans (Continued)

2018 2017
Percentage Percentage

Equity Instrurnania

Conglomesales and manufaciunng 4% B%
Construction and matenals 1% 2%
Consumer markels 2% 5%
Energy and ulilibes 3% A%
Financial institutions and units tnest 6% 18%
Health and care 4% 5%
Insuranca 1% %
Real estate 1% E ]
Information technology 6% 14%
Dthers 1% 4%
T1% B65%
[hebt instruments
Governmen] (alher than US) 7% 12%
Financia! institutions 5% 3%
US Treasury % 8%
DAhers 1% 10%
28% 3%
Cash and othars 3% 4%
: 100% 100%

The debt instruments are analysad by msuer's credd rating as follows:

2018 2017

Percentage Percentage

LECTEET 24% 2%
AaaliAA+ 1% 1%
Aaliag 4%, 15%
LERILES T% %
AliA+ 1% 5%
AN 1% o
A4 6% T
Basi/BEA- 7% 5%
Ban2/BBB % 5%
Ciher lower grade 4% %
Ma investment grade 6% 4%
100% 100

The fanr walue of the above equily insirgrmems and debt mstruments are determangd based on quaoled markel prices
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Pansion obligations (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Thare 15 no immediate requiremsan for the Group 1o fund the defic betwean the fair value of definec benafil plan
assets and the present value of the defined benell plan abligations disclosed at 31 Decamber 2017 and 2018
Coniributions 10 fund the obligations are based upon the recommendations of independent qualfied acluaries for
each of the pension plans of the Group o fully fund the relevant schemes on an ongeing basis. The realisation of
ther deficit is confingent upan the realisation of the actuanal assumpbons made which is dependent upon a number
of faclors including the market performance of plan assels. Funding reguirements of the majer defined banefit
plans of the Group are detadled bebow

The Group operates two principal plans in Hong Kong. One plan, which has been closed o new entrants since
1894, provides pension benefils based on the greater of the aggregate of the emoloyes and employer vested
contribulions plus a minimum inberest therean of 8% par annum, and pansion benefils darived by a formula based
on the fnal salary and years of service. An ndependent acluanal valuation, undertaken for funding purposes under
the provision of Hong Kong's Occupations| Reteement Schames Oroinance ("ORS0%), &t 31 May 2017 repored a
furefing level of 125% of the accrued actuanal liabilites on an ongoing basis. The valuation used the aftained agpe
valuation methed and the main essumglions in the valhation are an inveatment retum of 5% per onnum, salary
increases of 4% per annum and interest crediled 1o balances of 6% par annum. The valuslion was prepared by
Tian Keat Aun, a Fellow of The Institute of Astuaries, of Towers Walson Hong Kong Limited. The second plan
provides benefits equal to the employer vesied contributions plus @ minimum interest thereon of 5% per annum.
As at 31 December 2018, vested banefils under this plan are fully inded in accordance with the ORSO funding
fequrements. Dunng the year ended 31 December 2018, forfeited contributions tetaling HKEBG3.000 (2017
HK$1,586 D00) were used 1o reduce the lovel of contributions of the year ended 31 Decermber 2018 and no
forfafted conlnbution was aveilable at 31 December 2018 (2017 Nil) ta reduce future year's contributions.

The sedsitivity of the defined benelil obigation 1o changes n the significant principal assumplions s

Im pact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumplion assumption assumplion
Descount rale 0.25% Decrease by 1.7% Increase by 1.8%
Salary incresse 0.25% Increase by 0.4% Dacrease by 04%

The above sensilivity analyses ars basad on a change in an assumption while hokiing all alher assumptions
ongtan. In practice, this is unikely 1o occur, and changes in some of the assumplions may be cormezled. When
caleulating the sensitivily of the defined benelil obligalion bo significant acluarial assumplions, the same mathod
{present value of the defined benefit obligation calculaled with the projected unit credd method at the end of the
rapoeting perizd) has bean applied as whan calculating the pension hability recognised within the siatemant of
knancial posdion The melhods and lypes of assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did nol change
compared 10 previcus year

The Group expects 1o make contributicns of HKS38, 055000 (2017 HKS239,036,000) to the defined benefit plans
during the ned yaar

The welghted average duralion of the defined benefil cbiigation iz 7.0 years as &l 31 December 2018
(2017 7.5 years)

Dufined contribution plans

The Group's cost In respect of defined contribution plans for the year amounted o HEST3, 221,000
(2017 HESED, 645 000),

345/485



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

130  STAYING FOCUSED

Notes to the Financial Statements

24  Other non-current liabilities

Group 2018 207
HKS'000 HKS" 000
Fanf walug hadges
Interest rate swaps 60318 59,413
Cash flow hedges
Cross currency interest rale swaps BO.T23 1,214
Interest rate swaps 16,535 -
Less: current portion of nleres] rale swaps under fair value hedges - (4 B4}
Man-current portion 167 279 o6,543
Oithers 104 831 73,328
262.210 129.8T1

25 Units in issuse

Group and Trust Number aof
units HES'000
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 31 Decamber 2018 B.711.101.022 BB,553.830

All mswed units are fully paid and rank pan passu in gll respecis,

26  Investment in a subsidiary company

Trust 2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
Investmant cost 10,000 10,000
Capital contribution 50 592 308 62 341427
Less, accumulaled imparment (MNols) (24,212,051} -

26,390,258 52351427

Pursuani to an invesimen! agreement entered betwesn the HPH Trusl and a whally-owned subsidiary, HPHT
Limited, dated 4 August 2011, HPH Trust made capital confribubions of HEKSET 280 000 000 to HPHT Limiled
(*Capital Contrnibuton®) fhrough capitalising the amounts due from the subsidary. HPH Trust has no right to require
HPHT Limited to refurn any Capital Contnbution. HPHT Limited may return to HPH Trust any Capital Contrnbution
al vy fime in whole of in parl. Accordingly, the capital contribution is accounded for as invesimenl n o subsidiary
company,

Diedails of subsidiary companies of the Group are disclosed in Mols 31,

I

As gxplained in Note 14(b), the recoverable amounts of the underdying busnese ol HPHT Limited in Hong Kong
and Mamniand China deep-water container poet have decreased based on the latest forecast from managemeni

Aceordingly, provision for impairmant of the investmant in HPHT Limited amounting 10 HKS24.2 billlon was
recognised in curranl year,
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Reconciliation of oporating profit to cash gencrated from operations

2018 27
HKS' 000 HKS 000
Operating proft 3,551 742 3,601,453
Depraciation and amortieation 3076015 3,003,337
Melt loss on disposal of ixed assels and myvesiments 17.069 5,591
Dividiend inCorma (AB.7EE) (3.206)
Interest mcome (108 428) (70, 187)
Operaling profil before warking capital changes 5,486 508 6,537 008
Decraase in imenlories 547 2,654
Disciease in trade and othaes recehables 148 158 BE3,064
Maovemant in balances with associaled companies and pnt veniures 27,192 41,571
Decreasa in trade and othar payables (631,020) (143,215)
Increase in pensan obligations 16 864 22,019
Cash generaled from operations 6,055 260 7,143,141
Reconciiation of liabilites aftaing from financing activites are as follows
Cross cufrency
interest rate
swaps contract
and interest rate
awap conlracts
held to hedge
against foreign
Bank currency
Dividand loans Bank risks and fair
payable  repayable loans value risks af
to non- not  repayable Guaranteed
controlling  exceeding more than Guaranteed notes and Bank
interests 1year 1 year notes loans Total
HKE'000 HHES 000 HKS'Q00 HFS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
At 1 Januany 2018 = 347 %40 20,552,160 171,590,772 60627 32,550,708
Cash flaws (1.240.088) (347.010) 3201975  (3.900,000] = [2,385.124)
Foreign exchange
adjusiments 1081 (130) (2,900 - - 7.BE1
Fair value adjustmants - - - (906) - [S06)
Translsr babwesn
categonies - 2517506 (2.517506) = = &
Dividends o non.
contralling Inkerests 1.323178 - - = = 1,329,178
Othar non-cash
MaVamiEnls = = 34 920 15587 96 8527 147 460
At 31 Decambar 2018 — 2517506 21268658 7705463 157570 31,648,208
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27  Reconciliation of aparating profit to cash genorated from oporations (Continuad)

Cross currency

OooOooooOoooooooooboood

interest rate
swaps contract
and interest rate
Swap conlracts
held to hedge
Bank against foreign
Dividend loans Bank currency
payable repayable leans risks and fair
1o non- not  repayable value rishs of
controlling exceeding more than Guaranteed Guaranieed
interests 1 yoar 1 year notes notes Tatal
HKS'000 HES 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Al 1 January 2017 238,250 4,244 480 21,516,679 7,721,612 a3, 757 23,762,778
Cash flows (1.050,073) (4,244 G50) (6612500 3,B6GH14 = [2,088,158)
Foselgn exchangs
adustments {1,238) 170 i, 480 - - 3.4
Fair value adjrstments - - - {15,658) - {15,656)
Transler between
catagones 347 140 (347,140}
Dvidends to non-
conlrofing intereats 815082 - = = - 815,082
Cthar non-cash
movemants - = = AW W0 16870 TAITZ.
At 31 December 2017 - 347,190 20,552,188 11,580,772 00,627 32,550,708
28 Commitments
{a}  The Group's capital commitments for fiwed assets and projects under development are as follows.
2018 2017
HES 000 HES 00
Contrected but not provided for 32,230 28,525
Authotised bul nol conlracied for (Nole) 724415 936,363
756,845 D66, BE8
The Group's share of capital commitments of e associaled companiea and joinl vemuras are as follows
2018 2017
HKS 000 HKS'000
Contracied bul not provided for 48,738 16,508
Aulnonsed but not contracted for b4, 022 83,215
142 a0 99,721

Mata:

The capial commémants were budgeled amounts estimated for future capital expendiures of the Group. These
estimates are subsect bo b rigorous authorisalion process belore the expenditure is commilied
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28 Commitments (Continued)

{bj Al 31 Dacember 2018, the Group had fulure aggregate minimum lease paymants under non-cancellable operating
leases for office pramises and port fachties as follows:

a0me o7

HES 000 HKS'000

Within ona year T.581 12,1840
Belween wio 1o five years 178 1043
7768 13.212

(e} Al 31 December 2018, the Greup had Tulure apgregale minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases for office pramises and port facilities as follows:

2018 2017

HK$000 HE$'000

Within one year 37,63 43,345
Between two 1o five years 72,783 48,238
110,424 73,584

29  Related parties transactions
Significant trensactions between the Group and related parties during the year that are carried oul n the normal
cowrse of business are disclosed below. Oulslandng balances with asscciated companies, joint venlures and
Group componies ore disciosed in Notes 15,16, 20 and 21

1] Income from and expenses io relaled pares

2018 2017
HKS 000 HHES 000
Income
Container handling fees recengd from joint ventures, an associaled
company &nd related companies (Mole a) 41,553 40,340
Managemant, service and suppord foe receved from joint vontures and
related companies (MNale b) 50,189 52071
Transporiation management services fee income from a joint venbure and
related companies (Nole ¢ /778 39,246
Intarest income from a joint venture and an associated company [Note d) 20,040 18 484
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29 Related parties transactions (Continued)

{1y Incame from and exgenses lo relaled parlies (Conbinued)

2014 207
HKS'000 HKS 000
Expenses:
Comamner handling charges pad to joant veniures, associaled companies

@nd a mlated company (Nolo of 28,51 35401
Operating lease renlals on premises pasd to & joint veniwe and relabed

companies [Nols o) 6,308 6,128
Trustes-Menager managamenl lees (Note 1)

- Base lee 23,088 237
Global support senvices fees bo a related company (Note g) 141, 7ar 141 418
Informalion techrology (1T suppon and malnlenance senvico lees poid

1o a joint vendure and relsted companies [Maole h) 40,154 45 568
Telecommunicalion charges paid 1o relaled companies (Nole 1) 1,527 6,188
Sacurity guarnds service fees paid io o related company (Mol |) 0,517 10,148
Nobes:

{a}  Container handling fees received from joint veniures, an associated company and relaled companies
wara charged at tarms pursuant fo the relevant agreemants.

B} Managemeni, service and support fee received from podnt veniures and relaled companies wene
charged al lenms mulually sgreed,

{g)  Revenue from a i verlure and relaled companies fior the provision of transportation managemant
servicns was changed al phces and terms mutually agheed

{d} A loan of HK$12D 000000 (2017 HKS300,000,000) provided to a [oint venlure s inlerest
bearing at HIBOR plus 2 1% per annum (2017 HIBOR plus 5.0% per annum). Another koan of
RMBEI00,000,000, approximaie o HKS342.000,000 (2017 RMBIG5 000,000, approximate 1o
HKS315,350,000) proveded 1o &n associaled company i unsecunsd, inlesesl baanng al o ficed rde af
4.0% per anmam (2017, fixed rele of 2.3% per annum)

{o}  Contaner handing charges and operating leaso ronfals paid 1o joint ventures, essociaied companies
and relaled companies ware charged at lerms pursuant 1o relevant agreemeants

in The Trusiee-Manager's managemen] lees were changed in accordance wilh the Tusl Deed,

The base fee was charged at a fived fee of US52 500,000 (equivalent to HKS18,500,000) per annum
which = subjeci lo increase sach yead from 2012 by such parcantage repfesenting tha parcantage
increase in the Hong Hong Composile Consumer Price Index, The base fee for he year ended 31
Decemies 2018 & payable in cash, As the December 2018 figure for the Hong Kong Composibe
Consumer Price Index & yet fo be published as at the date of preparation of these financial
statemanis, the adjustment lo the base fee, il required, will be accounted for in the subsegquent
financial yaar

gl Global suppor services fees in respect of adminisiraton serices, and boence for certain inbeliechual
property righis were charged of prices and lnrms mutually agreed.

] IT suppan and mamnienance services fees in respect of the support and mainienance of 1T syslems
paid 108 o venlure and related companies were charged al prces and tenms mulually agreed.
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29  Related partios transactions {Continued)

{a}

L]

fii)

{iii}

(v

Incame from and axpenses lo relaled partes (Contnued)
HNotas: (Continued)

{1} Telecommunication charges paid o related companies were charged at prices and lerms mutuglly
agresd.

ik Secunty guards sanvice Teds paid to a related company were charged al prices and berms mutually
apresd

Other transactons with related parties

Dunng the year ended 31 Decomber 2018, the Group sakes and acquired fixed assels iofrom an associabed
company and related companes which were charged at prices and terms mutually agreed as balow:

018 2017

HKS 000 HES'000

Sales of lwed assels [o an associaled company and a relaled company 15,389 -
Purchases of fixed assels rom related companies £8,048 21,583

Co-Management with joinl veniures

Pursuant te a Co-Menagement Agreamant anfered info by Hongkeng Inlemational Terminals Limited,
COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited and Asia Container Terminals Limited, with effect from
1 January 2017, they collaborate for the efficken] co-management and operaton of the 16 borths across
Terminials 4, B, 7. B and 9 (North) In Kwai Tsing. The revenue and expenses fram the management and
operation of the faciities of the combined lerminal are aliscated among Hangkong International Tesminals
Limited, COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited and Asta Container Terminals Limied by relerence to
the respective dasigned capacity of the faciibes owned by aach party.

Hey managemen! compensation
HKey manepement of the Group includes managing directors and key management of the deep-water

cantainer ports of the Group. The compensation paid or payable to key managemant for employes sanices
s shown balow

2018 2T
HES (0 HKS' 000
Salaries and employes benefils 30,158 30,378

Financial risk and capital management

Cash management and funding

The maor inancial mstrements of the Group include bquid funds, invesiments, rade and olher recevables, trade
and ather payables and bomowings. Dedails of these financial instrumenis are disclosed in the respaclive noles to
the financial siatements. The risk managament programme of the Group is designed to minimise the financial risks
of the Group. These risks inclede credit sk, inlerest rate risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk.

The Group generally oblains long-derm financing to meel funding requirements. Management of the Group regularly
and ciosely monitors its overall pet debt position and reviews I8 funding cosis and maturity profile to facilitate
refinancing
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a0 Financial risk and capital management |{Continued)

{b}  Caplital management

The Group's strategy invoives adopling and maintaming an appropniate mix of debl and eguity 0 ensure oplirms
relufna 1o whitholders, while maintaning suflicient Aeabiddy o implemant growth alialegies

The Group may coneder diversifying s sources of debt financing by accessing the ceb! capital markels through
lhe issuance of bonds 1o opbimise the debl matunty profile and o make adjustments to the capital struciure in ight
of changes in economic conddions

The Group has comphed wilh &l extemally imposed capital requirements which inciude leverage ratio

At 31 December 2018, folad equily amounted to HKSAE B6E, 159,000 (2017 HIKEE0,321,906,000), and consolidated
net dabt of the Group was HKE25 123,116,000 (2017: HKS25.631 428 000).

(e}  Credit exposune

The Group's holdings of cash and cash equialenis, cross currency inleres! rale swaps condract and interest rate
Swaps contract wilh linancial inslilubons expose the Group to counberpany credit sk, The Group conlrals ds eradit
risk o non-perfoimance by ks counlerparties hrough regular review and maniiodng of their eradit ratings

The receivables from cuslomers and other counterparies also expose the Group to credit risk. The Group
controls ds credit risk by assessng the credit quakty of the customer, taking into account ds financial posdion, past
expenence and other faclors. Indevidual risk rmils are sel based on internal or exlemal ralings m accordance wilh
limits a2l by the managementl The ulidsaton af eradit limils i regulary mandared

Tha ECL on ade recesvablas are calculated using a provesion mairx whera a provision rabe applies based on fs
historcal sdserved defaull rales. On thal Basts, no addilanal ECL was recognised as 81 31 Decembes 2018 and 1
January 2018 (on the adoplion of HKFRS 0]

{d]  Interost rate exposune
The Group's mam inleres! nsk exposures relfale o cash end cash equivalents, loans from non-cantralling intemsats,
bank and other debis. The Group manages its inlerest rate expoaure with a focus on reducing the Group's overall
cost of debd and exposure to changes m interest rates.

The wmpaci of a hypothelical 5 basis points increase in markel inberest rate ol the end of the repariing period would
reduce the Group's profit and unitholders' equity by HEKS11, 344,000 (2017: HKS12 405,000).

The Group has enlered inlo cross cumency nleresi rate swap conlracks and inlenesl rale swap conlracts to achieve
an appropriale mix of ixed and floabing rate exposure consislent with the Group's poficy.

Tne effects of the mierest rale swap contracis and cross curmency inierest rale swap contracts on the Group's
financial position and performance are as follows:

2018 M7

HEKS$000 HKS 000
Carrying amount (kabidies) {146 A0E) (59.413)
MNaotional amount 11,700,000 7,800,000
Maturity date March 2020 o March 2018 to
March 2023 March 2020

Hedge ratio 11 11
Change in laif valse of oulstanding hedging instruments snce 1 Janusry (T4 6200 {15,857}
Change in value of hadged ibem used to delermeae hedge efecliveness T4.820 16,657
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Financial risk and capital management |Continued)
Foreign currency exposure

The Group has emfered inlo coss currency inberest rale swap contracts (o hedges ils faegn curmency exposune in
reapect of bank bofreaings denominated in Unded Slates dollar

The affects of (he cross curmency mtarast rale swap conlracts on the Group's financial posiben and performance ane
as loflows!

2018 2017
HES' 000 HEK$'000
Carrying amount (Eabilfies) {80, 725) (1,214}
Mational amaount 7,800,000 3 800,000
Maturity dale Septembaer 2022
te March 2023  Seplembes 2022
Hedge rabio 11 11
Change in fair value of cutstanding hedging instruments since 1 January {26, 416) {1,214}
Change in vake of hedged ilem used to dolarmne hadge aflecivenass 26,416 1214

For overseas subssdinnes, associobed companses and posnt veniures, which consist of non-Hong Kong dollar assets,
the Group generally monilors the developmenl of the Group's cash flows and debt market and, when appropriale,
would expect to refinance these businesses with local cumency barrowings.

Cuirency nak os defined by HEFRS 7 anses on fnoncial instruments denominaled in a currency thal is not e
functional ewrrency and bBeing of a monetary nature  DiFerences resulting from the translation of financial
slatements of overseas subsidianes into the Group’s presentslion currency aqe thersfors nat taken nto
consideration for the purpese of the sensidivity anatysis for currency risk.

The impact of a hypothetical 5% weakening of tha HE daollar againsl all exchange rales at the and of the reparting
period, wilth &l othar vanabdes held constant. on the Group's profit for (he year is sat out &8 below,

Hypothatical increasal
(decroase) in profit

2018 2017

HKS'000 HK$'000

Renminbi 26,058 23,634
United Slates dollar (1,108,387 {1,128,215)
Sinpapore doliar (103) (426)
Oittses 3 10

{1,082 428) {1.102,083)
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30  Financial risk and capital management (Continued)
] Liguidity exposure
The following tables detad the remaining confractual maturites at the end of the reporting peniod of the Groug's and

e Trust's financal kabivtes, which are basad on confraciual undiseounted principal cash Mows and Me eardaat
date on which the Group and the Trust can be required to pay

Group Caontractual maturities
Total Within
Carrying undiscounted Within FALE ] Affter
Amounis cash flows 1 year Yoars 5 years
HKS"000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKE 000
2018
Trade and olhar payables 5928221 5,928,221 5828221 - -
Bank and other debts, and
oiher man-cument labdties 31,753,837 31,681,451 2 557 927 29.116.884 G, 840
37 A2 058 37 608,672 8,486 148 29,116,684 B840
2017
Trade and olhar payables 8,741,629 6,747 104 6,747 184 - -
Bank and other debts, and
oiher non-curent labdties 32,610,852 32,708,069 4,261 268 28425351 21,420
39,361,581 39,455,233 11,008 462 28425351 21,420

The lable for the Group above excludes inlerest ascruing and payable an carain of thess labddies which ane
eelimated 1o e HEKS943 504,000 (2017 HKST 14, 703,000) in “within 1 year” maturity band, HKS1,731,732,000
(2047 HKS1.548 340,000) in “within 2 to 5 years” maturity band. HKS152.000 (2017: HK$1,111,000) in “after 5
yoears” maturity band, and after assuming the affect of interes! rales wih respecl o varable rate financsal kabiies
remdadning constanl and no change in eggregate principsl amount of nsncel Eabdiies olher than repayment al
scheduled maturily as reflected in the table.

Trust Contractual maturities
Total
Carrying undiscounted ‘Within Within
amounts cash flows fycar 2to5years
HKS'000 HK35'000 HKS'000 HK3$'000
2018
Trade and ofhar payablas 20 555 21,555 20 555 -
2097
Trade and aiher payables 30,312 3oz 30,312 -

{a]  Fair value estimation

The table below analyses recurnng fair value measurements for financial assets/|liabifikes). These fair value
measuramants ane categorised into differant levels in the fair value hisrarchy based on the inputs to valuation
lwchiigues used. The diferen] levels are defined & Tollows

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asaats or liabilities;

Level Z Inpuis other than guoted prices inchuded within Level 1 that are observable for the assels or liabiktes,
withar direcily (Le. as prces) or indinectly (Lo, derved from prices), and

Level 3. Inpuls for ihe assets or habdilies thal are nol based on observable maskel date {ie, unobservable inpuls)
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30  Financial risk and capital management |(Continuad)

{@)  Fair value estimation [Continued)

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note HIS 00 HES" 000 HES" 000 HES 000
At 31 Decambar 2018
Listed egquity secutity 17 30150 - - 38,150
River Poris Economic Benelits T - - 428,600 428,600
Fair value hedgeas
Intorest rale swaps 24 - (B0.319) - (BO.318)
Cash flow hedges
Cross currency intensst rale swaps 24 - (B0, 735) - (B0, 725)
Intorest rate SWaps 24 - (18.535) - [18.535)
39,153 (1567.578) 428,600 310,171
Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Note HES 000 HES 000 HKS" 000 HHES 000
At 31 Decombar 2017
Listed eguily secanty 7 45 225 - - 45225
River Poris Econome Benafits 17 - - 518,600 518,600
Fair value hodges
Interest rate swaps 24 - (58.413) - (68.413)
Cash flow hedges
Cross curmency interest rale swaps 24 - (1.214) - (1.214)
45 725 (B0.82T) 516,800 503 188

Tha fair wvalue of the cross curmancy mierest rate swaps and inferest rate swaps included in lovel 2 calegaty above
are astimaled usng the prosent value of the estimated futwie cash Nows based on observable yield curves, The
fa:r value of inancial instruments that are not traded in aclive markel (level 3) is delerminéd by discounied cash
e Bnalysss with reference fo inpuls such as dividend stream.

Changing uncbsoervable inpuls usod in Level 3 valuation % masonable altermative assumplions would nol have
significant impact on the Group's prof of loss

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no lransfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and
Lewe! 3 fair value measurements.

Al 31 December 2018, the fair value of bank and ofher debis (nole 22) was HIKS31 403.9 milllon (31 December

2017 HKS32 514 3 millign), The carying amounts of the remaining financial assets and financial llakilities
approximate their (air values,
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3 List of subsidiary companies of the Group

{aj  Details of principal subsidiary companies of the Group at 31 Decamber 2018 and 2017 are as foliows:

Particulars of
Place of issucd share Effective
incorporation!  Principal capitaliregistered interest heid
MNams esiablishment aclivilies capital 2018 2017
HPFHAT Limaed™ Hong Kong Investment HKS10,000, 000 100% 1005
hiding
Gianlfiald Resoumes Limibad™  Bntish Virgin Imvestmenl 2 ordinary shares 100%: 100°%
Isandes huiching of U551 each
HIT Investmenis Limited™® Btish Virgin Investrment 200 ordinary "A” 100% 100%
Islands hoiding shares of U551
each
B0 non-voling
prefemed “B°
shares of U551
mach
Pearl Spirf Liméed = Baitish Virgin Imvesiment 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
Istangis hoching of U331
Hongkong International Hong Kong Development HKE20 100% 100%
Terminals Limited™" and operabon
of contaimg
lerminals
‘Yantian Intemational Container PRC Development HKS$2. 400,000,000 S641% H641%
Terminals Limited™ and operaton
of contaimar
lerminals
‘Yanttan intemational Conteiner  PRC Development HKSE.056,960,000 S164% 51.84%
Terminals (Phase |Il} Limiled™ and oparation
of contasmer
lermunals
Shenzhen Pingyan Mulimodal  PRC Provision RMB 150,000,000 S164% 5164%
Company Limited™ of various
transportation
Servisns
Shenzhen Yantian Wesi Pori PRC Development RMB2 343,300,000 5164% 51.64%
Terminals Limited™ and oparalion
of container
lerminals
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34 List of subsidiary companies of tho Group [Continucd)

{aj  Details of prncipal subsidiary companies of the Group at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as folows: {Continued)

Particulars of
Place of issued share Effective
Incorporation!  Principal capitaliregistared interest held
Namse esiablishmenl activilies capital 2018 2017
Hulchson Pors Yantian Hong Kong Irmvasimant HKS10,000,000 A 45% To.45%
Limitad'" haolding
Watirus Limited™ Baitish Wirgin Investment 32 "A” shares of 94 88%  D4.88%
Istands halding USS1 each
583 “H” ghares aof
US%1 each
Sigma Enterprses Limiled™ Batish Virgin Invastment 2,006 "A"shares of  TR45% TO45%
Istands halding USE1 each
&.424 "B ahares of
LiS%1 each
Hurlchison Pors Yanlian Batish Virgin Imvastment 200 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Investments Limied™ Istands halding of USE1 each
Birrong Limited™ Biish Virgin Investment 10,000 ardinary 100% 100%
Istands holding shares of USS1
each
Hutchison Shenzhen Easl Buitish Virgin Irnreatmien 1 oedinary share of 100% 100%
Investments Lamited™ Islandis molding uss

(1) sudded by PricowsterhouseCoopers nobwork firms
(@) Nel required to be audied under the laws of the country of incorparalion
Apppintment of auddors
Ther Trusl has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the Lising Mamsal of the SGX-5T in relation 1o ks audiors.
{b)  Materal non-controling interests
‘Yantian Intemational Container Terminals Limiled, Yantian International Confainer Terminals (Phasae |l1) Limiied,

Shenzhan Yantan Wesl Pon Terminals Limded, Wafirus Limited and Sigma Emerprises Limibed are the subsidiary
campinies wilh pon-controfling inleresis thal are malerial 1o he Group
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31 List of subsidiary companies of the Group (Continued)
(b}  Material non-contraliing interests (Centinued)
Sal aul el are the summarnsed financal information fof these subsilary companes:

Summarised statement of linancial poaibion

2018 2017
HES"000 HKS 000
MNon-current assats 65,581,163 67,179,233
Carront assols 3,587 197 6,680,448
Tolal aszets 72 178,360 73,850, 681
Mon-current liabilities 8401 928 10,818,872
Current liahilfies 4,008 408 4 097 165
Tolal liabities 13,310,334 14,716,037
Summarnsed income siatement
2018 2017
HES 000 HES" 000
Revenus and olher neome T403.373 7,240, 875
et profit for the year 2,857,502 2,854,074
Summarisad slatemant of cash flows
2018 2017
HES 000 HES 000
Med change in cash and cash equivalents 242, 3487 2,006,077
Dwidends pald 1o non-eantralling inlesass 1,340,089 1,050,073

The informatcn sbove is the amount befoe intar-company sliminations.

32 Subsoquent event
On & January 2018, Hongkong Intemational Termenals Limited, COSCO-HIT Terminals (Hong Kong) Lemited, Asa
Contamer Terminals Limiled and Modemm Terménals Limited entered info a Hong Kong Seapori Joint Operaling
Alliance Agreamant regarding the tarms on which thay will collaborale with each ather for the efficen! managemant
and operation of the 23 berths in Kwal Teing, MNew Tembones. Hong Kong

33  Approval of the financial statemonts

Tne financial siatements set oul on pages 87 1o 142 were approved by ihe Beare of Direciors ol the Trustee-
Manager for issue on 12 February 2019
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HPH

25,088.9 100.1
(14.1) 0.1
1.7 0.0
25,076.5 100.0

(14.1) 0.0

(7.796.6) 17.1

53,374.0 117.1

45,563.3 100.0

HPH HPH HPHT

32 250 3,800 40
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2019 12 31
25,093.3 348,044
16.8 233
25,076.5 347,811
8,711,101,022
2.88 40
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CDP 10.00
CDP

CDP

CDP
CDP CDP
CDP

HPH
60

HPH
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38 59 131

23 103

193

independent auditor®s report

2020 29
13.87
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2019 12 31
2019 12 31
2019 2018

3 24,771 344 24,115 334

(3,250) (45) (3,294) (46)

(114) ©) - -

(5,452) (76) (5,533) an

(8,816) (122) (8.827) (122)

15,955 221 15,288 212

(10) (0) - -

4 15,945 221 15,288 212

(2,657) 37 (2,486) (34)

13,288 184 12,802 178

7 15,000 208 15,000 208
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2019 12 31

2019 2018
8 399 6 - -
399 6 - -
10 8,739 121 9,988 139
11 12,818 178 12,423 172
21,557 299 22,411 311
12 4,407 61 3,710 51
13 169 2 - -
2,638 37 2,481 34
7,214 100 6,191 86
14,343 199 16,220 225
14,742 204 16,220 225
13 234 3 - -
14,508 201 16,220 225
14 100 1 100 1
14,408 200 16,120 224
14,508 201 16,220 225
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2019 2018
16,371 227 15,774 219
(10) © - -
(2,500) (35) (2,555) (35)
13,861 192 13,219 183
(15,000) (208) (15,000) (208)
(110) ) - -
(15,110) (210) (15,000) (208)
(1,249) an (1,781) (25)
9,988 139 11,769 163
8,739 121 9,988 139
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100 16,120 16,220
- 13,288 13,288
- (15,000) (15,000)

100 14,408 14,508
1 224 225
- 184 184
- (208) (208)
1 200 201

100 18,318 18,418
- 12,802 12,802
- (15,000) (15,000)

100 16,120 16,220
1 254 255
- 178 178
- (208) (208)
1 224 225
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50 2011
CK
CK
HPH
HPH
048623 50
32-01
FRS

FRS

2019
FRS 116
FRS 116

FRS 116
FRS 116 FRS 17

369/485



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

)

12

)

370/485



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)
FRS 116 2019
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116
FRS 17
FRS 104
FRS 116 2019
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2019 12 31

FRS 116 FRS 116
- 114
5,572 (120)
- 10
13,292 0

2019 12 31

FRS 116 FRS 116
- 399
- 169
- 234
14,412 )

2019 12 31

FRS 116 FRS 116
16,251 120
- (10
- (110)
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2019

2018

24,618 23,988
153 127
24,771 24,115
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2019 2018
114 -
59 -
- 179
3,250 3,294
4,758 4,758

2019 2018
10 -

2019 2018
2,626 2,481
31 5
2,657 2,486

2019 2018
15,945 15,288

17 2018 17

2,711 2,599
(205) (205)
146 109
(26) ©2)
31 5
2,657 2,486
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2019 2018
15,000 15,000
513,000
179,000
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
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2019 2018
5,039 1,988
3,700 8,000
8,739 9,988
2019 2018
61 92
4 4
35 4
100 100
2019 2018
12,810 12,405
8 18
12,818 12,423
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2019 2018
169 -

234 -

403 -
10,000,000 100,001

2019 2018

15,955 15,288

114 -

16,069 15,288
(395) (247)

697 733

16,371 15,774

513
(110)
(10)

10

403
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AMMUAL REPORT 2010 7

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note 2018 2018

HKS'000 HKS$'000

Rewenue and oher incame 3 24,1 2415
Slaff cosls {3.250] {3,294]
Depraciation (114} -
Ciher operaling expemses 15.452) {5,533)
Tatad operating expenses {8,816] {BB2T)
Operating profit 15,855 15,284
Finance cosis 5 {10} -
Profit before lax i 15,045 15,288
Tax ] 12,657 (2,480)
Profit and total comprehensive incaome for the year 13,268 12,802
Diviund 7 15,000 15,000
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8 HUTCHISOMN PORT HOLDIMGS MAMAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2009

Note 2018 2018
HES'DoO HKS'000
ASSETS
Non-current assots
Fixed mssats f - -
Right-ol-use assels B 300 -
388 -
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalenls 10 8,730 8,883
Trade and other recenvables M 12,818 12423
21 557 22411
Current liabilities
Trade and olher payables 12 4407 3710
Loase kabities 13 169 =
Current tax lbililies 2638 2481
T.214 05,181
Net current assets 14,343 16,220
Total assets less current labilities 14,742 16,220
Men-current Rability
Loaso labdflics 13 234 -
Het assels 14.508 16,220
EQUITY
Share capnal 14 100 100
Retained prafits 14 408 16,120
Total equity 14,508 16,220
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AMMUAL REPORT 2010 o

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note 2018 2018
HHS'000 HH$'000
Operating activities
Mol cash generated from operations 15(a) 16,371 15,774
Imlerest and olher finance cosls pad 15(b) (10] -
Tax paxd 12.500] {2,555]
Net cash from operaling activities 13,661 13.218
Financing activities
Devidand paid 7 (15,000) {15,000
Princpal elements of leasse payments 15(b} {110 =
Cash used in financing activities {15,110) {15,000)
Nt changes in cash and cash squivalants (1,248) {1,781)
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of the year 0,088 11,760
Cash and cash equivalents at end aof the year 8,738 #0848
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10 HUTCHISGH PORT HOLDIMGE MAMASEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Share Retained
capital profits Tatal
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2019
Batlance af 1 Jonuary 2018 100 16,120 15,220
Profit and fotal cornprehensive income for the year - 13.288 13,288
Transactions with owners
Dindend [Mobe T) - (15,000] {15,000}
Balance at 31 December 2010 100 14 408 14,508
2018
Balance at 1 January 2018 100 18318 18418
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 12,802 12,802
Transachans with owners
Dividend (Mote T) - (15.000) {15,000)
Balance at 31 Decembear 2018 100 16,120 16,220
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AMMUAL REPORT 2010 17

Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Huichison Porl Holdings Managemant Ple. Limited (the “Company”) is a imiled lability company mecorporated n
e Riepublic of Singapore on T January 2011 under the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Sngapore, The Company's
immediate holding company is CK Hulchison Global Invesiments Limited, its ultimate holding company is CK
Hutehison Holdings Limited. which s incorporated in Cayman |glands and its shares are listed on The Siock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The Company acts as the Trustee-Manager of Hulchison Port Holdings Trust ("HPH Trust’) and has dual
rasponsibilies in saleguanding the intarests of unifholders and managing the business of HPH Trust

The regestered office address of the Company s at 50 Raffes Place, #32-01 Singapore Land Tower, Singapone
04BE23.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statemants hawe baan prepaned in accordancs with Smgapare Financal Reporling Standands ("FRS")
The financial statemenis have been prepared under the historical cosl convention, excepl as disclosed in the
accountng policies below,

The preparaton of financial stalements in confamity with FRS requires managemen io exercisa its judgemant in
me process of applying the Company's accounling policies. I also requires the use of certdin cribcal accounting
estimales and assumplions. Howaver, there are no areas invodving a higher degres of judgement or complexity, or
areas where ealimabes and assumpbons are significant to the financial stalements

The Company has adopted all of the new and rmevised standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the
Accounting Standards Councel that are relevant fo the Company's operations and mandatory for annual periad
beginning 1 January 2015 The changes in accounting policies and the effects of changes in accounting policies ane
summansed below,

FRS 118 Leases

FRS 118 specifies how an enlity will recognse, measure, present and disclose leases. The new slandard provides
o single, on balance shesl lease accounting model for lessees. Il will resull in almeost all keases being recognised
by thie lessee on the balance sheet, as the distinciion between operating and finance leases s removed. Linder
FRS 116, an assat (tha right 1o use the leased dem] and & financial hability to pay rentals are recognsed. The anly
exceplions are short-term and low-value lzpges,

Lessors continue o classify leases as operabing or finance leases wilh FRS 1168 approach to lessor accountng
whach 13 substantially unchanged from its predecessor FRS 17

(@) Changes in accountng palicies

Lease

An arangement, comprising a ansaclion or a series of ransactons, is or conlains a lease if the Company
delarmines thal the armangemenl conveys a righl 1o contral the use of an identified aseel for a peried of
fima in exchange for consideration. Such determinabon 5 made on an evaluabon of the substance of the
arrangement, regasdiess of whether the amangemants lake the legal form of & lease,

{ip Assels loased lo the Company

Leases are initially recognised as a night-of-use asset and comesponding liability at the date of which
the beased asse! s available for use by the Company, Each |ease paymen! & allocaled between the
lkability and finance cosl. The finance cost is charged o the income statement over the lease peniod
0 8% lo produce a constan! perodic rale of inlerest on the remaining balance of the Eabiddy for sach
penad The right-ol-use assel (s depreciated over the shoeer of the asset's useful life and the lease
{erm on &8 straighl-line basis.
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12  HUTCHISON PORT HOLDIMGS MAMASEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continuad)

grds (Condinued)

FRS 116 Leases (Continued)

(&) Changes in accounting palicies |Continued)
Loase {Contnuod)
i} Assets leased 1o the Company {Contnued)

Assels lwased to the Company and the cormesponding liabilites are indially measured on a presant
value basis. Leaso liabiiies include the nel presant value of fe following lease paymants

- fixed payments (ncluding in-substance fixed payments), less any lease ncantives recevaoke;
- vanabbe lsaze paymenis thal are based on an index or a rate; and

payments of panaflies for terminating the lease,  the laase lerm reflects the Company, as &
lesses, exercising an option to 1erminale the ease,

The leass payments are discounted wsing the inferest e implict in the leass, if thol ale can bo
doetermined, o ihe ncremontal borrowsng rate of he respeclive entibes Righl-ol-use assels ame
measured al cost compnsing the foliowing

- the amount of the mitial measuremant of leasa liability,

- any lease payments mada al of boefore the commancemant dale, less any leass ineanive
recewed;

- any initial deect costs; and

i restoration coste.

Payments associaled with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a

siraighi-line basis as an expense in the income statement. Short-lerm leases am leases with a lease

term of 12 months or less. Low-value assels comprise equipment and small flems of office fumnilure.
(i) Assels leased oul by the Company

A loase i clazsified as a finance lease 4 it transfers substantially all the rsks and rewards scidental

o ewnership of an underying assel. A loase is classifiod as an oparaling lease H It doss nol Eransber

substantialy all the risks and rewards incidental te ownership of an undedying assel. Income

recaived under operating beases net of any incentives proviged to the leasing company are credited
o the incomea statement on a straighl-line basis over the lease panods.
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AMMUAL REPORT 2012 43

MNotes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

gris (Condinued)

FRS 116 Leases (Continued)

()

Eftect of changes in accounting polickes

In accordance with the transition provisions of FRS 118, the Company has adopled the modified
refrospective application for exstng lases at 1 January 2019 wilh corlain transibon refets, and under which
comparative figures are nol restated

For leases previously classified as operafing leases, the Company has elected o measure the nght-of-use
asscts ol the amounis equal o the lease labdilies odjusied by any prepasd of accrued lease payments
Accardingly, no adjusimenis waens recognised (o the openng balance of relained profils at the dale of initiad
application

The Company appled the following practical expedients on transilion fo FRS 118 for those leases which
wore previousty dassified as cperaling leases under FRS 17

. applying the recogrition exemption for short-t2rm |ease

Tha Company has alse elected not fo reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease ol the dale of
imifial application. [natead, for conlracts enlered into before the lransition date, the Company relied on
its assassmeni made previously whan agplying FRS 17 and INT FRS 104 Determining whether an
Amangement conlains a Lease

The adoption of FRS 110 has not resulted m any matenal impact o the carrying value of balance sheet as at
1 January 2019,

The amounl by which each financial statement line em = affected by the applicabon of FRS 116 as
compared ba FRS 17 {previously in affect) is as Tollows:

Statement of comprehensive income [extract)

Far the year anded 31 December 2019

Before Effects of
adeption adoption of

of FRS 116 FRS 116  As reported

HKE 000 HKS$"000 HEE 000

Depreciation - 114 114
Other operating expenses 5572 {10 5452
Finance costs - 10 10
Profit for the year 13,292 {4y 13,288
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14 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGE MAMNASEMENT PTE. LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Adoption of standards and amendmenis to existing standards (Continued)
FRE 116 Leases {Continued)
(b) Etlect of changes in accounting polices (Continued)

Staternent of financial position [extracl]

Al 31 December 2019

Bofore Effects of
adoplion adoption of

aof FRS 116 FRS 116 As repored
HHS'000 RSO0 HKS00D

Mon-current assets
Right-of-use assets - e Jon
Current liabilites
Lease habdlies - 169 169
Man-eurrent lkabiity
Leose linbd#ties - 34 234
Equity
Relainad profits 14,412 {4y 14 408

Statement of Cash Flows [extrac)

For the year ended 31 December 20718
Before Effecis of
adoption of adoption of

FRS 116 FRS 116  As reported
HHS 000 HES"000 HKS 000
Operating activities
et cash generated from operations 16,251 120 16,371
Inleresl and other finance costs paid - (10 (10}
Financing activities
Principal elements ol lease paymants - {1104 {114y
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AMMUAL REPORT 2012 45

Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Al the dale of authorsabon of the financal stalements, the lollowng slandands and amendments were n msue and
relavant ta the Company but nel yet effective and kave nol been sary adopted by the Campany

Amendmants o FRS 103" Business combinations

Amandments o FRS 1 (Revised) and FRS AiY Definition of Materiality

Amandments 1o FRS 30, FRS 7 and FRS 108" Interest Rate Banchmark Reform

Amendments o FRS 110 and FRS 287 Sade or Coniribution of Assets between an Investar and its

Associate or Joinl Venlure

M Effectvae for anmusl peeds begnning 1 January 2020
9 New aflactye cale Io ba determined

The Company is assessing the full impact of these new or revised FRS. Certain of them may give rise lo change n
presentabon, disclesura and measuraments of cerain lems in the financal siatements but they are not expacted to
have material impacl to the Company,

Flxed assels

Fimed asseis are stated at cost less accumulated depreciabion and accumulaied impairment losses.

Depreciation of fined assels is provided al rales calculaled to wrile off their costs Lo their residual values over their
aslimaled useful Iives on & siraight line basis as follows:

Furmsture and fixtures Crver the lease term of office premise
Computes equipment 5 yoars

The gain or loss on disposal or retirerment of a fixed asseal is the differance between the net sales procesds and the
carrying amount of the relevant assat. and is recognisad in the income statement.

The assets’ residunal vakies and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnales, a1 each end of reporng
ponod

An asset's camying amount is whtten down immediately to s recoverable amount if the asset's camying amount is
greaber tian ils eslimaled recoverable amount

Asset impairment

iF ial
The Company apples the ‘expected credil loss’ ("ECL") model lo assesa jmparment of financial asssls classified
at amostised cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprahensive income, conract asseis
under FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers, lease receivables, lean commitments and certain financial
guaranies conlracts (f apphcable) The impairment methodology 1o ba appliad depends on whathar there has baen
a significant increase in credn risk,

For rade receivabies, the Company apples the simplified approach permitied by FRS 109, which requires lifetime
expaciad losses for amounts dus from cusiomans o be recognised from initial recogniton of the trade receivables

As debl ingirumenis a1 amorised cost are conaidered to have low credit risk, the impairment piovison apphed is (o
recognise 12-month ECL.
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146  HUTCHISON PORT HOLDHNGS MAMASEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

[b)  Asset impairment (Continued)
impairman] of cther assets
Assets (hat are subject o depreciation and amornisaton are reviewed for impalment to determine whelher theme
is any indicaton thal tho camying walues of these assats may not ba recoverable and have suffered an impasrmant
logs. W any such mdicabon axisis, the mooverable amount of tha asset is estimated n ondar to dolerming the exent
af the impairment loss, i any, The recoverable amount 8 the higher of an assel's fas value less costs (o sall and
valee n use. Such impairment loss s recognised in prof or loss excepl where the assel s carmied at valushon
and the impairment less does nol exceed the revaluation surplus for that asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease and recognisad in other comprehensve ingome.

e} Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivablas are initially recognised at fair value and subseguently measured al emortised
cosl using fha effective interest melhod, less provision for impairmanl. Appropriate allowances for estimated
Irecoverable amounts ar fecoghised n the meome slatement based on Wabme ECL

[d]  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash aquivalents comprise cash al bank and demand deposits with maturity less than threa months

(e}  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables ane inflially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
e affactive interest mathod

[ Provisions

Provisions are recognised when it is probable thal an outfiow of economic benefils wil be required to saltle a
preseni obligation as a resull of pas! evanis and a reliabtle esliimale can ba made of the amount of The obligaton

[@]  Foreign exehange
n Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented n Hong Kong dollar wheress the functional currency of the Company
= in United States dollar, Any exchange differances arising from translation are recognized in ether
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of exchange resarve
(i) Transactions and balances
Transactons in foreign cumencies are convered at the retes of exchange ruling at the transaction dates.
Monelary assets and liabilihes are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of reporting pariod.
Exchange diferences am included n the delermination of profil or loss,
[h)  Current tax
The curment tax charge s calculated on the bas:s of the tex laws enacled or substantively enacled at the end
of reporting period in the country where the Company operales and generales taxable income. Management
periodically evaluales poaiticns laken in lax refurns with nespedt 1o situations in which appicable lax regulabon is

subjact 1o inbenprataton and establishes provisions whene approprabe on the basis of amounts expected 1o be pasd
to the 1ax authorties
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AMMUAL REPORT 2012 T

Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies |(Continued)
Leases (Prior to 1 January 2019)

A lease 5 classifed as a finance lease i 8 ransfers substantia®y all the nsks and rewarnds incidental 1o ownershegp
al an undatlying assel. A lease (8 classified as an operating lease if It does nal lransler substantially all e risks
and rewards ncidental to ownership of an underlying essel.  Income received under opemaling leases net of any
incentives provided o the leasing company are credited to fhe income statement on 8 straight-line basis avar the
lvase periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognisod when or as the control of the good or servico & transfermed to the cuslomor. Dopending
on the larms of the contract and the Baws that apply 1o the coniract, control of the good or service may be
Iranaferned over lime or at a paint in e

Control of the good or service is transfened over fime if the Company's performance provides all of the benefits
mecatved and consumed simulfaneousty by the customar.

If sontral of the assel iransfers over lime, revenue (8 recognized over the pencd of the contract by referance 1o the
progress fowards complate satisfaction of that performance obligation  Dihersise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer oblains control of the asset

The progress lowards complele salisfaction af the performance obligation |s measured based on direct
maasurementa of the value tranaferred by the Company to the cusiomer,

Transackon price of a conlract shall be allocated fo indevidual performance obligation (or distinct good or seraca)
The objectlive when allocaling the transaction price is for an entily 1o allocate the lransaction price fo each
parfarmance obligation m an amount thal depscls the amounl of consideration 1o which the enlily expects lo be
enliled in exchangs for transferring the promised goods of sarvices 1o the customer

Management and service fee mcome is necognised over lime along with the progress when service is rendered

Revenue and other inceme

2018 2018
HK5'000 HK$'000
Revenue
Managemant and service fea incame 24618 23,988
Other ncome
Intores ncome 153 127
24,771 #4115
Profit before tax
Profit befare ax i sialed after chasging the follawing
2013 2018
HHKE'000 HK$'000
Depreciation of right-of-use assels 114 -
Expanse relating to shor-term laases 58 -
Oiperating [aase mntals on office pramiss = 173
Stafl costs 3,250 3,204
Dwectors' fees 4,758 4,758
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18 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGE MAMACEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

5 Finance coats
2018 2018
HE$ 000 HKE'000
Interesi and finance chages paidipayable Tor lease habilibies 10 =
i Tax
2018 018
HHS'000 HK$'000
Curment lax;
Carmend tax on profits for the yoar 2,628 2481
Undarprovision in prior year N 5
2 657 2486

The tax charge on the Company's profit before tax difiers from the theosetical amount thal would erise using the
Singapore standard rate of incoma tax as follows:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HKS'000

Profit before tax 15,045 15,288
Tax calculaled at Singapore slandard rata of income tax of 17% (2018, 17%) 2™ 2589
Tax examedion (205) (205}
Expanses not deductibia for tax purposes 146 108
Incomea not subject o tax (26} (22)
WUndaipravigon in prior year Al 5
2 657 2488

T Diwidend

2018 2018

HES'000 HKS'000

Imterim dividend paid of HKS1.5 (2018; HKE1.5) per share 15,000 15,000

B Right-of-use asaets
Duwing the year. the Company enterad into a new lease agreement for office pramises. For the new lease, the
Company is required bo mako fized monthly payments and the Company has recegnged HKS513,000 of right-af-
use asgals and lesss labililbes & inceplion of the |ease,

The folal cash outfiow for the lease n 2019 was HKS1 78,000
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ANMNUAL REPORT 2008 10

Notes to the Financial Statements

Furniture Computer
and fixtures equipment Taotal
HK$'000 HK$'00a HK$'000
2019
At 1 January 2019 - - -
Depreciation - - -
Al 31 December 2019 - - -
At 31 December 2019
Cosl 124 34 158
Accumulaled deprecialion (124} (34} (158]
Mel ook vahus = = -
2018
At 1 January 2018 - - -
Deprecialon - - -
At 31 Decambar 2018 - - -
Al 31 December 2018
Cosl 124 34 158
Accumuisied depreciabon (124) (34) [1548])
Mal book valus = - -
Al 1 January 2018
Cooesl 124 a4 158
Accumulaled depreciation (124} {34} (158}
Net book value - - -
Cash and cash equivalents
20109 2018
HK$000 HKS'000
Cash al bank 5,008 1,088
Short-ierm bank deposits 3,700 8,000
8, raa 8 888

Cash and cash equivalents are denominaled in the fﬂlﬂﬂﬁl‘lg CUMMERCES.

2019 2018

Percentage Percentage

Hang Kang dallar 1% e
United States dollar 4% 4%
Singapore collar 355% 4%
100 100%
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20 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS MAMASEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

11 Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

HH4'000 HK$'000

Trade recevables from HPH Trus! 12,610 12405
Othar receivables B 18
12,618 12423

Trade and other recaivables are mainly danominated in Unitad States dollar and the carmyng amounts approximate
[hair tadr values

The: maimum exposune 1o credd sk al the reporting date = the camying value of bede and other ieceivalbiles

12 Trade and other payables
Trade and gther payables are mamly denominated in Unided Siates doliar and e camying amoanis approximale
e fair values.

13 Leaso liabilities
The following detail the remaining contraciual matunities at the end of the reportng pencd of the Company's

leasa liabilities, which am based on contractual discounied principal cash flows and the earfiest dale on ‘which the
Company can ba required b pay:

2018 2018
HKS'000 HK$'000
Within 1 year 169 -
Within 2 io 5 years 234 -
403 =
14  Share capital
Humbar of
shares HES
A1 31 Docombar 2018 and 2018 10,000,000 100,001
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ANMUAL REPORT 2019

N

Notes to the Financial Statements

Motes to statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from operations:

2018 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cperaling proft 15,855 15,2688

Dagriciabion 114 -

Qperahng profit bafore working capdsl changes 18,068 15,288

Increass in trade and athor receivablos (305] (247}

Increase in rade and other payables Gar 733

el cash generated from cperations 16,371 15,774
Reconcillation of llablities arising from financing activities are as lollows:

Tatal

HKS$'000

As al 1 January 2019 -

Increase in lease liabilibes from enlenng inla a rew lease durng the year (nala B} 513

Principal elemenls of lease payments (mm

Inerest elemants of lease paymants [l

Inlerest axponses on leasa liabilikes (nobe 5) 10

As at 31 Decamber 2019 403

Commitments

The Company leases an office premise with lease term of three yeare. On renewal, the terme of the lesses ane

renegoliaied

The Rulure minimum lease payments under lease nol recognised in the financial slatements ane as follows

2019 2018

HI§000 HKE§ 000

Wihin 1 year - 59
Between 2 0 5 years - -
= 54

Reconciiation from kzase commitments 1o lease habiities

Sot oul below is a recongiliation of the operaling lwase commitments desclesad al 31 December 2018 to lease

liahilibes recognised on 1 January 2019

Tatal

HKE000

Operaling lease commitments disclosed al 31 Decembaer 2018 59
Less: lzases end within 12 months from the dale of inikal application (58)

Lease lability recagnised at 1 January 2019 =
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HUTCHISOMN PORT HOLDIMGS MAMAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

17

18

fa}

Related parfies transactions

Significant transachons belween (he Company and relaled parbies dunng the year 1hat are camed ouf in the normal
course of business are disclosed below!

1] Incame lrom and expensa la related parties

2018 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Incame
Managamenl fees recaived from HPH Trust [Note a)
- Base fee 24 618 23,8688
Expanse:
Lease payments (Mode b) 179 178
MNoles:

(&) Managemen] fees wene chanped in socordance wilh the Irus! deed dated 25 February 2011 and The
first supplemental deed dated 28 April 2014 for HPH Trust (collectively. “Trust Deed™). The base fes
was charged at a fixed fee of USS2 500,000 (equivakant to approximately HKS19,500,000) par annum
which is subject to increase each year from 2012 by such parcontage represenbing the percontage
increase in the Hong Kong Composie Consumer Price Index, The base fee for the year ended 31
December 2019 i payabie in cash As the December 2018 figure for the Hong Kong Compasite
Consumar Price Index is yet to be published as at the date of preparation of these financial
stalemants, the adiusiment to the base fee, if required, will be accounted fior in tha subseguent
financial year

(B} The Company leases ofice préemises from 3 relaled company and was chaiped al lerms pursuani o
the relevant agreament,

(i) Kay managemen! compansations

Fay management includes direciors, the Chief Execulive Officer and the Chiel Financial Officer The
compensation paid or payable 1o key management for employee sarvices (8 shown below

2019 2018
HHS 000 HKS 000
Salaries and directars’ fees B 777 &80T

Financial risk and capital managemant

The majer inancial instruments of the Company include cash and cash eguivalents, frade and other receivables.
rade and other payables and leaze labiliies, Details of these financial instruments are disclosad n the respective
notes 1o the financial statemenis. The risk managemant programme of the Company is designad to minimise the
fnancial risks of the Company. Thesa risks include credil risk and Toreign cunmency sk

Cash managemeni and funding

The management of the Company reguiarly and closely monitors its overall net cagh position and reviews s
funding costs and maturity profile.
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ANMUAL REPORT 2010 2T

Notes to the Financial Statements

48  Financial riak and capital management |(Continued)
b}  Capital management

The Company's stralegy s 1o ensure optimal retums 1o shareholders, while maintaming sulficient flexibilty to
imgramenl growlh sirateges

(e}  Credit exposure
The Company's holdings of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other recehables expose Ihe Company b
counterparty credit nsk, The Company controls its credit risk 1o non-performance By ks counterpames through
regular review and moniloring Lheir oredit ratings.

(d)  Foreign currency exposure

Currency riak erises on finencial mstruments dencminated in a currency that (s not the functional currency and
being of 8 monetary nature

The Company does nol hayve significant loreign curmency oxposun as Hong Kong dollar 15 pegged o Unded Slales
dedlar
48  Approval of the financial statemonts

The Binancial siatements sel oul on pages T 1o 23 were approved by the Board of Direclors of the Company for
tesue on 10 February 2020
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2018 12 31
2018 12 31
2018 2017
3 24,115 334 23,377 324
(3,294) (46) (3,272) (45)
(5.,533) an (5,117) 71)
(8,827) (122) (8,389) (116)
4 15,288 212 14,988 208
5 (2,486) (34) (2,169) (30)
12,802 178 12,819 178
6 15,000 208 20,000 277
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2018 12 31
2018 2017
7 - - - -
8 9,988 139 11,769 163
12,423 172 12,176 169
22,411 311 23,945 332
10 3,710 51 2,977 41
2,481 34 2,550 35
6,191 86 5,527 7
16,220 225 18,418 255
16,220 225 18,418 255
11 100 1 100 1
16,120 224 18,318 254
16,220 225 18,418 255
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2018 2017

12 15,774 219 20,375 283
(2,555) (35) (3,098) (43)

13,219 183 17,277 240

6 (15,000) (208) (20,000) Q77)
(15,000) (208) (20,000) Q77)

(1,781) (25) (2,723) (38)

11,769 163 14,492 201

9,988 139 11,769 163
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100 18,318 18,418
- 12,802 12,802
- (15,000) (15,000)
100 16,120 16,220
1 254 255
- 178 178
- (208) (208)
1 224 225
100 25,499 25,599
- 12,819 12,819
- (20,000) (20,000)
100 18,318 18,418
1 354 355
- 178 178
- Q17 Q77)
1 254 255
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50 2011
CK
CK
HPH
HPH
048623 50
32-01
FRS

FRS

2018
FRS 109
FRS 109
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FRS 109
2018
ECL ECL
FRS 109
FRS 109
2018
FRS 109
FRS 115
FRS 115
FRS 115 ()
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()

2018 FRS 115

FRS 109 @
FRS 28 @

rRs 116 @
FRS 103 FRS 111  FRS 112 2018
FRS 23 @

FRS 19 ™

FRS 103 @

FRS 110 FRS 28 ®

@
&)
®

2019

2020

FRS 116

FRS 116 FRS 116
2019

407/485



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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FRS 116 FRS 17
FRS 116
FRS
116

€))

®)

ECL FVOCI FRS 115

FRS 109

12 ECL
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2018 2017

23,988 23,317

127 60
24,115 23,377
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2018 2017
179 173
3,294 3,272
4,758 4,758
2018 2017
2,481 2,404
5 (235)
2,486 2,169
2018 2017
15,288 14,988
2017 17
2,599 2,548
(205) (209)
109 75
(22) (10)
5 (235)
2,486 2,169
2018 2017
15,000 20,000
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124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)
124 34 158
(124) (34) (158)

2018
1,988 1,769
8,000 10,000
9,988 11,769
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2018 2017
92 93
4 3
4 4
100 100
2018 2017
12,405 12,164
18 12
12,423 12,176
10,000,000 100,001
2018 2017
15,288 14,988
47) 5,642
733 (255)
15,774 20,375
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13
2018 2017
59 173
- 58
59 231
14
)
2018 2017
HPH a
- 23,988 23,317
b 179 173
@ HPH 2011 25 2014 28
2,500,000 19,500,000
2012
2018 12 31
2018 12
(b)
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ANMLUAL REPORT 2018 7

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Faor the year ended 31 December 2018

Note 2018 207

HKS'000 HKE' 000

Rievemis and olfer insoms a 24,115 233717

Stafl cosls [3.284)] {3,273}

Cithor operating oxponsos {5, 533) (5.117)

Tated operaling expanses {8,827) {8,389)
Profit bafore tax 4 15,288 14,088
Taxation ] (2 486] {2,164}
Profit and talal comprehensive income for the year 12 BO2 12,818
Divideand B 15,000 20,000
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2] HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS MAMAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2018

Hote 018 2017
HKS 00D HES 00D
ASEETS
Non-gurrent asset
Fized assats i - -
Current assets
Cash and cash equnvalents B 9,888 1,768
Trado and othar roceivables ] :12 423 12178
224N 23,845
Current liabilities
Trade and athar payables 10 3710 248717
Current tax hsbildies 2481 2550
g.181 SaZr
Net current assels 16.220 18418
Net assets 16,220 18418
EQUITY
Share capdal n 100 100
Retained profits 16,120 18318
Tatal aquity 16.220 18,418

417/485



EDINETOOOO
OOo0ooDOoO0ooo0ooo00oo00b0oo0oo00DbO00DoO0O0no(e25351)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

ANMLUAL REPORT 2018 o

Statement of Cash Flows

Faor the year ended 31 December 2018

Dpearating activities
Mol cirsh generaled from aperations
Tau paid

Net cash from operating activities

Financing activity
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activity

Met ehanges in eash and eash equivalants
Cash and cash equivalants at baginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note 2018 2017
HKE'000 HKE' 000

12 15,774 20,375
2 555 {3,008)

13.218 17.277

B {15,000} {20.,000)
{15,000] {20.000)

(1,781] (2,723

11,760 14 402

o088 11,760
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Share Retained
capital profits Total
HK$000 HES 000 HKS'D00
2018
Betance al 1 January 2018 100 18,318 18418
Profit and tolal comprehensive ncome for the year - 12,802 12,802
Transactons with owners
Dividend (Made &) - {15.000) {15,000)
Balance at 31 December 2018 100 18,120 16.220
2017
Balance al 1 January 2017 100 25 450 25,560
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 12,818 12.819
Transachans with owners
Dividend (Nole &) - {20,000 {210,000)
Batance al 31 December 2017 100 18,318 18.418
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ANMUAL REPORT 2018 17

Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Huichison Porl Holdings Managemant Pila. Limited (the “Company”) is a limiled liability company mcorporated m
e Republic af Sngapare on 7 January 2011 undar the Companies Act, Chapter 60 of Sngapore. The Company's
immediate holding company 13 CK Hutchison Global Invesiments Limited, its ullimare holding company s CK
Hulehison Holdings Limited which s incorporated in Cayman Islands and ils shares are listed an The Stock

Eachange of Hong Hong Limded

The Company acts as the Trustee-Manager of Hulchison Poft Holdings Trusi ("HPH Trusl™) and has dual
reapenaibilites i safequarding e inlerests of unitholders and managng the busineas af HPH Trust

The regsstered office address of the Company = al 50 Raffes Place, #32-01 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore
D4BEZD.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements heve been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporing Standands ("FRS")
The financial statemenis have been prepared under the historical ces! convention, excepl as dsclosed in the
accountng policies below,

The preparatan of financial stalements in confumity with FRE requires managemani o exercse s judgamsant n
he process of applying the Company’s accounling policies. I also requires the use of certain critical accounbing
eslimales and assumplions. However, here are no areas involving a higher degree of pdgement or complexty, o
areas whene esbmates and assumplons ane significant to the financial stalemeants

The Company has adopled all of the new and rovised standards, amendments and inflerpratations ssued by the
Accounling Standards Counvcl that are relevanl 1o the Company's operalions and mandatory Tor annual perod
beginning 1 January 2018 The changes in accounting policies and the effects of changes in acoownting policies ane
summansed below.

FRS 109 Financial Instruments

FRS 108 Financial Instruments addresses the classdficabon, measurement and derecognition of finencial assels
and financisl Babilties, infroduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assats.

{1y Changes in accounting policas
Investments

Invesimenis (other than invesiments i subsidiary companies, associnled companies of joint wenbures)
arg non-dernative equiy financial investmants which are measwied al Tair value P-'Iunngmnn! iz eligible
to make an irrevocable election, on an instrument-by-insirument basis, on aquily investments other than
those held for frading, 1o preseni changes in fair value through profit or loss or fair value thoough other
comprehensive income ("FVYOCI), The Company has elecled lo measure as FVOCI, o which any fair valee
gams or losses accumulalad in the revalualion reserve account will no longer be reclassified lo profil o
lags fallowing the derecogmtion of such imvastment. Dividends from ivestments continued 1o be recognised
as olhar operating income in the Income statement when the right to recelve payment s esiablished.
Impairment losses (and reversal of mpairment losses) are not reported saparately from other changes in faer
valua

Leans and recenables

Loans and receivables are debt mstruments that are held for collection of contracteal cash flows where
those cash Nows represent solely paymenls of prncipal and inferesl. Thay are nilally recognisad al far
walue plus ransaction costa that are direclly alfributable 1o the acquisiton of the loans and recaivables and
are subsequently measwred 81 amortised cost less impairment. Inlerest income wsing the effective interest
method is recognised in the income stalement.
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12  HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS MANACEMENT PTE. LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

FRE 108 Financial Instruments (Continuod)

lards (Confinued)

n Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

mipai F il

FRS 109 replsces lhe ‘incumed koss impasment model i FRS 39 wilh a forward-looking ‘expected credit
loss’ ("ECL") model. The naw impairment model will apply 1o Bnancial assets classified &l amortised cosi,
debl Instruments measured at FYOCH contraci assels under FRS 115 Revenue from Coniracts wilh
Customers, lease receivables, loan commidments and certain financial guaranlee conlracls (il applicable)
The impasrmant methodology to be applied depends on whelher there has bean a significant increase

credil risk

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permedted by FRS 108, which requires
ifebbme expecied losses for amounts due from customers 1o be recognised from indial recegnition of the

rade mocivables

As dabt instremenis ai amortised cost are considered to hewve low credst nsk, the impairment prowsion

applied is lo recognise 12-month ECL.
Hedge aceounting

¥When a financial mstrument that myvolves exchanges of cash flows that are denominated in different
currencies is used in a hedge tansaction, the foreign currency basis spread of the instrument is separated
and excluded from the designaled hedging insifumant. The change in fair vakie of The fomeign curmency basis
spread portion (to the extent | relales jo the hedged item) ks recognised in olher comprehensive income and
B accumulated in & separate costs of hedging reserve under equity

(i) Effects of changes n accouning policies

The Company has appled the modified relrospective approach, where the comparatve infarmation for pries
perods with respect to classification and measurement (including impairment} changes &= not restaled and
diffarances i the camying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilites resufting from the adoption of
FRE 100 will be recognisad as an adjustmand fo the opening Baladce of equity al the date of adoption, ie.

as at 1 Januery 2018
Classification of investmants

Thisie wall be no impact on the Company's sccounding Tor financial mvesimenls as the Company does nol

have any such linancial investments

Classification of loans and receivables

The Gompany's existing loans and recervables ane dell instrumants fal are held for colection of conlractual
cash flows whate those cash flows represent solely paymenls of principal and inberest and therefare vall
continue to be measured al amorised cost.

Impairment of Snancial assets

The Company's sgndicant financial assefs, such as Irede receivables. are subject bo the new ECL model
The Company applies the simpliied approach to provide for ECL prescrnbed by FRS 108, which requires
fhe usa of the lifelime expected losses for all irede receivables The adopbon of the simpified expected loss
approach under FRS 108 has nol resuled in any matedial impact 1o the camying value of trade recevables

a3 al 1 Januery 2018,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

ards (Condinued)

FRS 109 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Eftecis of changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Hedal acomenting
Generally, more hedge relationships mighl be elgibla for hedge accounting under FRS 108, as the

standard miroduces a8 more principles-based approach. However, there will be no impact on the Company's
accounting for hedge accounting as the Company does nol have any such hedge ralabonships

FRE 115 Revenue Frem Contracts With Cusiomers

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracis with Customers eslablshes a framewoerk for delermining whether, how much
and whan revenue is recognised. Under FRS 115, revenue & mecognised through a 5-step approach! (i} identfy
thier conlraci(s) with customer, (i} ientdy separate performance obligations in the contract; () determine the
ransaction price, (ivl alocale the ranseclion price o he performance obligalions. and (V) recognise reveriue wii
a perfarmance obligation (s satisfied,

i)

(i)

Changes in accounting palicies

Revenues ane recognised when of as (he contigl of the good or servica is lransfemed o the customer,
Depending on the tarms of he contract and e laws that apply to the contract, cettrol af the goad of servies
may be iransferred aver time or at & point in lime

Cantral af his good of safvice & Ensisred over lime if the Company’s pefarmancs provides all of e
benelils received and consumed simulianeously by the customer

If control of the good or service trensfers over tima, revenue is ecognised over the pariod of the condracl by
rafefence to the progress lowards complete satisfaction of thal parformance obligation. Othanwvisa, revenue
= recognised al a painl in time when the cusiomar oblains condrol of he good or service

The progress lowards complele satisfacton of the pedormance obligation s measwed based on direct
measurements of the value fransferred by the Company fo the customer

Transaclion price of a contract shall be allcented o individual performance abligation (or distined good of
seryice), The objective when allocating the transaction price (s for sn anbily lo allecate the transaction pricg
o each parformance obigation in an amount thal depicts the amount of consideration 1o which the entity
expecis to be enbitled in exchangs for transferring the promised goods or services io the customer,

Manawam and servics leg income |S recognised over lime along with the progress when service (s
rendengd

Efiects of changes in accouning policies
Tha Company has elacled lhe modified relrodpective approach for Iransition 1o the new revenue slandard
However, there (s no signifieant impact on the Company's accounting with respect to the timing of revenes

recognibon and allocation of the transaction price o performance obligations identified. Accordingly, opendng
balance of relained profils al 1 Jansary 2018 are nol adjusted in respect (o the adoplion of FRS 115

422/485



EDINETOOOO
OO000o0oO0oOdoooooooo0o000odboonoonoo0onoonoan(e2s351)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

14 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDIMGS MAMNACEMENT PTE. LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Al e dote of authonsation of the Anancial statemants, the Tolkawing standards, amendmants and inferpratations
which wera in issue and relevant 1o the Company bul not yat afective and have nol been early adopled by the

Company:

Amendments io FRS 1@ Prepayment Features with Negatnve Compensation
Amendmants io FRS 28" Long-ierm Inleresis in Associates and Jaoint Ventwes
FRS 116™ Loases

Annual improvements to FRS 103, FRS 111, Annual improvement 2018
FRS 112 and FRS 23™

Amendments io FRS 19" Employee Benefils

Amendments io FRS 1035 Business combinelions

Amendments 1o FRS 110 and FRS 28 Sale or Cortribulion of Assets between an Invesitor and its
Associate of Joint Venture

m Effectrva for anmual penods beginning 1 January 2019
o Efective for anrusl peiods Beginnirg 1 Jenuary 2020
M Mew efoctve date b bo determined

FRS 116 Leases

FRE 116 specifies how an enlily will recognise, measure, presant and discloss leasas, FRS 116 is mandalory for
the Company's financial stalemsnts on 1 January 2019

The new standard provides a single. on balance sheat lease accounting model for lasseas. It will resull i almost
all ases being recognised by e lesses on the balance sheel, as the distinchion betwesn operaling and finance
laagas s removed Under FRS 116, an aasel (the nght lo use the leased gem) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

Lessors continug lo classify leases as operaling of finance with FRS 116'% approach 1o lessar accounling
substantially unchanged from its predecessar FRS 17, The Company is currently assessing the impact of FRE 116
and it s not expecied that there would have a matenal impast 1o the Bnancial stalements on the date of adopton.
Howaver, it is anticipated that the application of FRS 116 in the future may impact the Company’s financial
stataments.

Other than the new standard explained above, there are no ather slandards of interpretalions thal are nal yat
effactive and thal would be expected lo have o malerial impaet to the Company.

la) Fixed assats
FI.I:Eﬂ agsels are sialed al cosl less accumulated ﬂ!ﬂfﬂcﬂm and accumulaled I'I'lp!'H'I'I'!eﬂ‘I losses

Depreciabon of fived assets is provided at rales calculated fo wite off their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives on a straight line basis as lollows

Furniture and fixiures Ower the lease term of office premise
Computer aquipmen 5 years

Thr gain or los5 on disposal or retirement of @ fixed asset is he dfference betwesn ihe net sales procesds and the
caying @mount of the relevant assel, and s recognised in the income slalement
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
{a}  Fixed assets (Continued)

The assets’ residual voloes and useful lves are reviewed, and adusted if appropnate, ol each end of reporing
period

An assel’s camying amount is written down immedialely to its recoverable amount if the assel's camymng amount 15
greale: than s estimaled recoverable amount

(b}  Asset impairment

Impairmen of financial assets

The Company applies the ECL model lo assess impairmend of financial assets classified al amoriised cost, debt
Instruments measured al FVOCI, contract assets undar FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts wilh Customers,
lease receivables, koan commilments and certain financial guarantes contracts (if appbcable). The impairment
mathodology to be applied depends on whelher thare has been a significant increase in credi risk.

For trade rrcelvables. ine Company applies e Smpliled approsch permitied by FRS 109, which requires fetime
eapected losses for amounts due from cusiomens (o be recognised lrom inibial recogniten of the trade receivables

As debl instrumenis at amortised cost aro considored to have low credd risk, the impairment provision appled is to
recognise 12-manth ECL

Impairment of pther Assets
Assets thal ame subject o depreciabion and amorisabon are reviewed for impaimment to delermine whelhar theoe
is oy indicalion thal the camying values of these assels may nol be ecoverable and have suffered an impasrment
logs, If any such mdicaton exisld, the recoverable amoun] of the assel = estimated in onder %o delerming the axlent
of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sall and
value n usa Such mpairmeni loss is recognised in profit or loss except where the asset is camied st valuaton
and the impairmen! loss does not exceed the revalualion surplus for that asset, in which case i is treated as a
revialuation cecrease and recognised in olher comprehensive incorme

(e}  Trade and ether recoivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised al fair value and subsequently measured al amorised
oSl using thie effective interest melhod, less provision for imparmant. Appropriate allowances for estimaled
Irrecoverable amaunts are recognisad in the income statement based on lifelime expected eneds) losses

(d}  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash squivalenls compree cash at bank and demand daposits with maturily kess than three months

(e}  Trade and cther payablas

Trade and other payables are milially recognesed at far value and subsequenlly measured at amorfised cos usmg
e affective inleresl method

fy Provisions

Provigons are recognisad when It & probable thal an outlow of economic benefs will be required to seitle a
present obbgation as 8 resull of past events and & relable eslimals can be made of the amount of 1he obligaton
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16  HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(g} Fercign sxchange
(i) Funciional and presentation currency

The financial stalements are presented in Honpg Kong dollar whereas the funcional of the Company is in
United States dollar,

(]  Trarsactions and balsnces

Transachons in foreign cwmencies are converled at the reles of exchange ruling at the lransaction dabes.
Monetary assets and liabiliies are fransiated af the rates of exchange ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange diffierences ame included in the delermimilion of profil or loss

(k]  Current tax

The cumeni tax charge s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacled or subsiantively enacled at the and
of reporting period in the country where lthe Company operates and gencrates taxable income. Management
periodically ovaluates posibions laken in lax refums with esped lo situalions in which appicable lax regulation is
subyeat 1o interpretaton and establishes provisions whene appropriate on the bass of amounts sxpecied 1o be pad
to the lax authorities

i Operating leases

Leases in which & significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownershep of asasts remains with the leasing
coimpany are sccounied for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
meceived from the leasing company are charged fo the income slalement on a streighl-ine basis over the lease
periods,

i} Revenue recognitien

Revenues are recognsed when or as the control of the good or sarvice is transferred fo the customer. Depending
on the lerms of the contrac! and the [ws that apply to the coniract, control of the good or service may De
ranslemmed over lime or at a poinl in bime.

Cantrol of the good or sarvica is transferred over time if the Company’s performance provides all of the banefits
mcanved and consumed simullanacusty by Be cusiomar

If contral of the assel (ransfers aver lime, ravenue s recognised over the pasied of the eontract by referenca (o the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a paint
in tima when the customer oblains contral of the asset

The progress lowards complete salisfaction of the performance obligation s measured based on direct
measurements of the value transferred by the Gomipany to the cusiomer

Transachon price of @ contract shall be allocated to individeal performance obligabon (or distinct good or sendca).
The objeclive when allecaling the transaclion price is for an entily lo allocate the lransaclion price fo each
perfarmance obligabon i an amount thal depists he amount of consideration lo which the enlity axpects o be
entilled in exchange for transfarring the promesed goods or senices 1o the cuslomer

Managument and service fee ncomw is mcognised over time along with the progress when seovice is rendened
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Revenue and other income

2018 2017
HKE'000 HKE' 000
Ruvenue
Managament and sarvica fee incomes 3,884 2am7
Cither income
Intedest moome 127 B0
24,115 23377
Profit before tax
Profit before lax is stated afer chasging the following
2018 2017
HKS 000 HK%'000
Operating lease rantals on office premise 178 173
Stafl costs 3,284 3272
Dweclors’ fees 4,758 4,758
Taxation
2018 T
HHK$'000 HHKE'000
Cuiment tax:
Cusrent tax on profils for the year 2481 2404
Under/{over) provision in prior year 5 (235)
2 4B6 2168

The tax charge on ihe Company’s profit before tax difiers from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
Singapore standand rate of incomae tax as follows.

2018 207

HHS'000 HK%'000

Profit before tax 15,288 14,988
Tax calculated at Singapore standard rete of income tax of 175% (2017; 17%) 2500 2548
Tax exemplion (205) (20a)
Expanses nol deduclible for tax purposes 108 75
Income not subject to tax (22) {10
Undar/[over) provision in prod year 5 (235)
2486 2168
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18 HUTCHISCHM PORT HOLDIMGS MAMNAGEMENT PTE. LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements

& Dividend
2018 2017
HEK$000 HKS$'000
Interim dividend pasd of HKKS1.5 (2017 HKS2) per share 15,000 20,000

T Fixed assets

Furniture Computer

and fixtures equipment Tatal
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK5'000
2018
At 1 January 2018 - - -
Deprecialion - - -
AL 31 December 2018 - -~ -
At 31 Decamber 2018
Cosl 124 M 158
Accumulated depreciation (124) (34 i158)
Met hook valus - - -
2017
Al 1 January 2017 - - -
Depreciaton - - -
At 31 Decombar 2017 = = =
Al 31 December 2017
Cosl 124 M 154
Accumulated depreciation (124} {34) {158)
Ml book value - - -
At 1 January 2017
Cost 124 a4 158
Accumulatod depreciation (124) (34) (158)
Mel book vaioe - - -
B Cash and cash equivalents
2018 2017
ey i S
Cash ol bank 1.988 1.769
Short-ierm bank deposits 8,000 10,000
9,688 11,768
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Caszh and cash equivalents [Continued)

Cash and cash aquivalents are denominated in the fofowing currencies:

L E 2017
Parcentage Parcontage
Hang Kaong dolflar % s
Uniled States dollar A% 3%
Singapore dollar A% A%
100 100

Trade and other receivables
2018 207
HKS'000 HKS 000
Trade recesrvabies from HPH Trest 12405 12 164
Other receivabies 18 12
12423 12178

Trade and other receivables are mainly denominated n Uniled Stales dollar and the carmyng amounts approdimale

ek fair values.

The maximum axposune lo credd risk al the reporting date is the camying value of rade and other recavables.

Trade and other payables

Trade and olher payables are manly denominated in Unifed States dollar and the carryng amounis approximate

it Bair values:
Share capital
Number of
shares HKS

AL3 December 2017 and 2018 10,000,000 100,001
Net cash generated from operations
Reconciation of profif before tax 1o nel cash generaled trom operabons

2018 2mT

_HES'000 HES" 000

Profit before tax belore working capital changes 165288 14,988
(Increase ) decroase in rade and other recelvables 1247 5842
Increased{decreasa) in trade and other payables 733 {255)
MNel cash generaied from operations 15714 20,375
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20 HUTCHISOM PORT HOLDHMGS MAMAGSEMENT PTE. LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

13 Operating lease commitments

Tha Company had fulure minimum lease paymenis under non-cancellable operaling leases a5 follows!

2018 07

HKS 000 HES'000

Within cme year 58 173
Babween two 1o five yoars - 58
50 il

14  Related parties transactions

Significant transactions between the Company and relaled parbies during the year that are carmiad oul in the normal
course of busness are disclosed below:

1] Incame from and expenss (o related parties

2018 2017
HK$'000 HKE'000
Incame:
Management fees recened from HPH Trust (Mofe a)
- Basa fee 23,088 2307
Expensa
Rental expenses (Mote b) 178 173
Motes:

{a}  Managemenl lees wene chacged in accordance wilh the rusl deed daled 25 February 2011 and e
first supplemental deed dated 28 Apnl 2014 far HPH Trusl (eollectively, “Trusl Deed ). The base fes
was charged at & fixed fee of US$2 500,000 (equivalent 1o approxemately HKS 18,500 000} per annum
which s subject to increase each yeas from 2012 by such percentage representing the percentage
incraase in the Hong Kong Composile Consumed Price Index. The basa fae for the year ended 31
December 2018 is payable i cash, As the December 2018 figure for thie Hong Kong Composibe
Consumer Price Index i yel fo be published as at tha dale of preparalion of these financial
statemanis, the adjusiment fo the base fes, if required, will ba accounted for in the subsequent
financiad penad.

(b}  Operating lease renlal paid lo & relaled company was chamed al lerms pursuan! fo the relevant
agreement

(i) Hey managemeni compensations

Key managemenl includes direciors, the Chigl Execulive Officer and the Chigl Financial Officer. The
compensation pald or payable 1o key management for employes semnvices ts shown below

2018 2017
HES000 HKS'000
Salanes and directars’ fees 6,807 6,760
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15  Financial risk and capital management
The major financaad instrements of the Company include cash and cash egquwvalents, frade and olhar recowvables
and trade and othar payables. Datails of thesa financa! instruments are dsclosed in the respectve nobes 1o the
financial statemants. Tha rsk managament programme of the Company & Sesigned 1o minimise the financial risks
of the Company Thesa nska nclude credit nsk and foreign cumeney nsk

{a}  Cash management and funding

The managemesl of the EGMPM}I r!gulnrly and tlﬂ!ﬂ’r manitors its overall nel cash posibon and reviews s

funding costs and maturily profile,
(b}  Capital management

The Company's siralegy is lo ensure oplimal reburns lo shareholders, while mainlaining sulficient Nexibilty te
imglement growth strabegees

(e}  Credit exposure
The Company’s holdings of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables expose the Company o

counlerparty credit fisk, The Company conlrols its credit risk to non-performance by its counterparies through
regular review and monitoring thek credil ratings

(d)  Foreign currency exposure

Cutrency rak arises on financal instruments denominated in 8 cumency that i@ mot the functonal eurmency and
being of 8 monetary natue

The Company does nol have significant foreign curmency expesurs as Hong Hong dollar s pegged 1o Unded Stales
dollar
18  Approval of the financial statements

The fnancial sialements set oul on pages ¥ to 21 were approved by the Board of Direclors of the Company lor
issue on 12 February 2010,
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2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Trust (“Trust”) and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) and the statement of financial position of the Trust are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Singapore Business Trusts Act (“Act”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS’) so as to
give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Trust as at 31
December 2018 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group and the changes in equity of the Trust for the financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Trust and the Group comprise:

the consolidated income statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018;

the statement of financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2018;

the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity of the Trust for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“*ACRA Codg”) together with the ethical requirements

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT

HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the accompanying
financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.
Asin al of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill

Refer to notes 3(b), 14(b) and 16 to the financia
Statements

The Group has a significant amount of goodwill arising
primarily from the acquisition of deep-water container
ports in Shenzhen and Hong Kong in 2011, which is
dlocated to the Group's cash-generating units
(“CGUs") identified according to geographical
locations. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
carrying values of goodwill, before impairment,
amounted to HK$22,629 million. The Group aso has
goodwill included within the investments in joint
ventures.

Goodwill is subject to impairment assessments
annually and when there is an indication of impairment.

We have performed the following procedures to
evaluate the Group’ s impairment assessments:

Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and with the involvement of our
valuation speciaists;

Performed sensitivity analyses on the key
assumptions where we adjusted the discount rates
and growth rates in revenue and cost of services
rendered as these are the key assumptions to
which the valuation models are the most sensitive;
and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT

HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of the Group's impairment assessment
of goodwill, impairment was assessed using the value
in use model for the CGUs in Mainland China and
Hong Kong and for investments in joint ventures.

In carrying out the impairment assessments, significant
judgements are required to estimate the future cash
flows of the respective CGU and investments in joint
ventures and to determine the assumptions. The most
significant assumptions relate to discount rates and
growth rates in revenue and cost of services rendered.

Based on the results of these impairment assessments
conducted by the Group, the carrying values of
Mainland China and Hong Kong CGUs and an
investment in a joint venture exceeded their
recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2018, which
are caculated under value in use models.
Consequently, impairment losses of goodwill of
HK$11,359 million and impairment loss on investment
in ajoint venture of HK$930 million were recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The significant assumptions are disclosed in note 14(b)
and note 16 to the financial statements.

We have performed the following procedures to
evaluate the Group's impairment assessments:
(Continued)

Tested source data to supporting evidence on a
sample basis, such as approved budgets and
available market data and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to these
impairment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable based on available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT

HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition
Refer to notes 3(€) and 4 to the financial statements.

Revenue from rendering of container handling services
is recognised and accrued with reference to the
throughput handled and the terms of agreements for
such service.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from
container handling services amounting to HK$11,135
million is recognised based on the containers handled
as well as the tariff applied. The tariff applied is the
rate agreed with customers or estimated by
management based on the latest terms of the agreement
or latest negotiation with customers and other industry
considerations as appropriate.

Due to the large variety and complexity of contractual
terms, as well as ongoing negotiations with customers,
significant judgements are required to estimate the
tariff rates applied. If the actua rate differs from the
estimated rate applied, this will have an impact on the
accuracy of revenue recognised in the current year and
accrued as at year end.

We have performed the following procedures in
relation to the accuracy of revenue recognised and
accrued:

Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
over the tariff applied in container handling
services.

We selected a sample of transactions and:

Agreed the applied tariff to the respective
teems in the contracts or latest
correspondence with customers where the
tariff has been estimated by management.

Agreed throughput handled, used in the
calculation of tariffs, to the operating system
recording throughput.

Tested revenue calculations and agreed the
revenue recognised to the underlying
accounting records.

Checked to bank advices or credit notes on a
sample basis for the net settlement and reviewed
aged items for any disputed amounts.

We found the judgement made by management in
estimating tariffs in the revenue recognized and
accrued to be supportable and reasonable based on
available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the “Trustee-Manager”) is responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information refers to the information in the annual report which does not include the financial statements and our auditor
's report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the information on statistics of unitholdings,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in thisregard.

When we read the information on statistics of unitholdings, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with ISAs.

Responsibilities of Trustee-Manager for the Financia Statements

The Trustee-Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and HKFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financia statements
and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee-Manager is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee-Manager's responsihilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financid Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Trustee-Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Trustee-Manager with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Trustee-Manager, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Report on Other Lega and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustee-Manager have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Charlotte Hsu Yuh Feng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 12 February 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the
“Company”) are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”)
and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and of the financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2018;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (Continued)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Statement
included in pages 1 to 3 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 12 February 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Trust (“Trust”) and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) and the statement of financial position of the Trust are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Singapore Business Trusts Act (“Act”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS’) so as to
give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Trust as at 31
December 2019 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group and the changes in equity of the Trust for the year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Trust and the Group comprise:

the consolidated income statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019;

the statement of financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2019;

the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity of the Trust for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“*ACRA Codg”) together with the ethical requirements

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT

HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the accompanying
financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.
Asin al of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial

statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill and other operating assets

Refer to notes 3(a), 3(b), 3(c) and 14(b) to the financial
statements

The Group has a significant amount of goodwill and
other operating assets arising primarily from the
acquisition of deep-water container ports in Shenzhen
and Hong Kong in 2011.

Goodwill is subject to impairment tests annually and
other operating assets are subject to impairment tests
when there is an indication of impairment.

For the purpose of the Group’'s impairment
assessments, impairment was assessed using value-in-
use models for deep water container ports in Shenzhen
and Hong Kong, which are the cash generating units
(“CGUSs") of the Group.

We have performed the following procedures to
evaluate the Group’ s impairment assessments:

Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and with the involvement of our
valuation speciaists;

Performed sensitivity analyses on the key
assumptions where we adjusted the discount rates
and growth rates in revenue and cost of services
rendered as these are the key assumptions to
which the valuation models are the most sensitive;
and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT

HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Goodwill and other operating assets
(Continued)

In carrying out the impairment assessments, significant
judgements are required to determine the assumptions.
The most significant assumptions relate to discount
rates and growth rates in revenue and cost of services
rendered.

Based on the results of these impairment assessments
conducted by the Group, the Group determined that
there is no impairment of goodwill and other operating
assets. This conclusion was based on recoverable
amounts, calculated under the value-in-use models,
which exceeded their carrying values of the CGUs as at
31 December 2019.

The significant assumptions are disclosed in note 14(b)
to the financial statements.

We have performed the following procedures to
evaluate the Group's impairment assessments:
(Continued)

Tested source data to supporting evidence on a
sample basis, such as approved budgets and
available market data and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to these
impairment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable based on available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT

HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition
Refer to notes 3(€) and 4 to the financial statements.

Revenue from rendering of container handling services
is recognised and accrued with reference to the
throughput handled and the terms of agreements for
such service.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue from
container handling services amounting to HK$10,749
million is recognised based on the containers handled
as well as the tariff applied. The tariff applied is the
rate agreed with customers or estimated by
management based on the latest terms of the agreement
or latest negotiation with customers and other industry
considerations as appropriate.

Due to the large variety and complexity of contractual
terms, as well as ongoing negotiations with customers,
significant judgements are required to estimate the
tariff rates applied. If the actua rate differs from the
estimated rate applied, this will have an impact on the
accuracy of revenue recognised in the current year and
accrued as at year end.

We have performed the following procedures in
relation to the accuracy of revenue recognised and
accrued:

Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
over the tariff applied in container handling
services.

We selected a sample of transactions and:

Agreed the applied tariff to the respective
teems in the contracts or latest
correspondence with customers where the
tariff has been estimated by management.

Agreed throughput handled, used in the
calculation of tariffs, to the operating system
recording throughput.

Tested revenue calculations and agreed the
revenue recognised to the underlying
accounting records.

Checked to bank advices or credit notes on a
sample basis for the net settlement and reviewed
aged items for any disputed amounts.

We found the judgement made by management in
estimating tariffs in the revenue recognized and
accrued to be supportable and reasonable based on
available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the “Trustee-Manager”) is responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information refers to the information in the annual report which does not include the financial statements and our auditor
's report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the information on statistics of unitholdings,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in thisregard.

When we read the information on statistics of unitholdings, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with ISAs.

Responsibilities of Trustee-Manager for the Financia Statements

The Trustee-Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and HKFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financia statements
and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee-Manager is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee-Manager's responsihilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financid Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Trustee-Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Trustee-Manager with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HUTCHISON PORT
HOLDINGS TRUST (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Trustee-Manager, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Lega and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustee-Manager have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’ s report is Charlotte Hsu Y uh Feng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 10 February 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Hutchison Port Holdings Management Pte. Limited (the
“Company”) are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”)
and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and of the financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Company comprise:

the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (Continued)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Statement
included in pages 1 to 3 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HUTCHISON PORT HOLDINGS MANAGEMENT
PTE. LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 10 February 2020
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